
From: Palmer, Lee Anne
To: Jones, Jennifer L
Cc: Rotstein, David; Carey, Lauren
Subject: FW: Zignature Kangaroo Formula:  - EON-350158
Date: Tuesday, March 27, 2018 3:25:32 PM
Attachments: 2044632-report.pdf

2044632-attachments.zip

In case of interest – taurine level low?

From: PFR Event [mailto:pfreventcreation@fda.hhs gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, March 27, 2018 3:20 PM
To: Cleary, Michael * <Michael.Cleary@fda.hhs gov>; HQ Pet Food Report Notification <HQPetFoodReportNotification@fda.hhs gov>; 
Subject: Zignature Kangaroo Formula:  - EON-350158

A PFR Report has been received and PFR Event [EON-350158] has been created in the EON System  

A "PDF" report by name "2044632-report pdf" is attached to this email notification for your reference  Please note that all documents received in the report are
compressed into a zip file by name "2044632-attachments zip" and is attached to this email notification  

Below is the summary of the report: 

EON Key: EON-350158 
ICSR #: 2044632 
EON Title: PFR Event created for Zignature Kangaroo Formula; 2044632

AE Date Number Fed/Exposed 1

Best By Date Number Reacted 1

Animal Species Dog Outcome to Date Better/Improved/Recovering

Breed Retriever - Labrador

Age 13 Years

District Involved PFR-  DO

Product information 
Individual Case Safety Report Number: 2044632 
Product Group: Pet Food 
Product Name: Zignature Kangaroo Formula 
Description: At the time of diagnosis   was a 13 year old female spayed Labrador retriever who had been maintained on a Zignature Kangaroo
formula  She presented with a history of a progressive cough which, prior to presentation, became productive and she coughed up a small volume of pink foam
(possible pulmonary edema)  On examination she had a 2/6 left apical systolic heart murmur and on echo diagnosed with advanced dilated cardiomyopathy with
severe left ventricular dilation, moderate to severe left ventricular systolic dysfunction, and moderate to severe left atrial dilation  Thoracic radiographs were
suspicious for early congestive heart failure  A whole blood taurine level was submitted and was low at 168  She was treatment with furosemide, benazepril,
pimobendan, spironolactone, taurine and l-carnitine and her diet was changed to Royal Canin Early Cardiac  At her recheck in 2/26/18,  heart had
improved significantly with now mild dilated cardiomyopathy with normalized left atrial dimensions, mild left ventricular dilation and low normal left ventricular
systolic function  The furosemide was able to be discontinued at this time  
Submission Type: Initial 
Report Type: Adverse Event (a symptom, reaction or disease associated with the product) 
Outcome of reaction/event at the time of last observation: Better/Improved/Recovering 
Number of Animals Treated With Product: 1 
Number of Animals Reacted With Product: 1

Product Name Lot Number or ID Best By Date

Zignature Kangaroo Formula

Sender information

Owner information 

 

To view this PFR Event, please click the link below: 
https://eon fda gov/eon//browse/EON-350158 

To view the PFR Event Report, please click the link below: 
https://eon fda gov
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====================================================================================================================

This email and attached document are being provided to you in your capacity as a Commissioned Official with the U S  Department of Health and Human

Services as authorized by law  You are being provided with this information pursuant to your signed Acceptance of Commission

This email message is intended for the exclusive use of the recipient(s) named above  It may contain information that is protected, privileged, or confidential  Any

dissemination, distribution, or copying is strictly prohibited

The information is provided as part of the Federal-State Integration initiative  As a Commissioned Official and state government official, you are reminded of

your obligation to protect non-public information, including trade secret and confidential commercial information that you receive from the U S  Food and Drug

Administration from further disclosure  The information in the report is intended for situational awareness and should not be shared or acted upon independently

Any and all actions regarding this information should be coordinated through your local district FDA office

Failure to adhere to the above provisions could result in removal from the approved distribution list  If you think you received this email in error, please send an

email to FDAReportableFoods@fda hhs gov immediately
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Nutrition Recommendations:
·  Continue the Royal Canin Early Cardiac diet.
·  Consider fish oil supplements (omega-3 fatty acids).  Her dose is approximately EPA 1220 mg and DHA 760 mg total 
per day. Please start at 1/2 the dose for one week, then increase to the full dose if tolerating well thereafter. Please 
avoid Cod liver oil and flax seed as well as products with Vit A and/or D. 
For more information about fish oils, please visit -- http://vet.tufts.edu/heartsmart/diet/important-nutrients-for-pets-with-
heart-disease/
·  In addition to the supplements approved by Tuft's Veterinary Nutrition Service, other reputable brands include 
Welactin and Nordic Naturals.   may have additional brand recommendations.

Activity Recommendations:
·  Continue normal activity as she wants and is able to do.  Please allow  to take more breaks and rest during 
activity.
·  Please avoid exercise in the hot/humid weather.

At Home Monitoring:
·  In order to monitor for the development of early congestive heart failure in the out-patient setting, we recommend 
monitoring your pet's resting respiratory rate several times a week.  Normal resting respiratory rates should be less 
than 30 breaths per minute.  Consider using a respiratory rate monitoring application to track  respiratory rate - 
Cardalis or BI Pharma have reliable phone applications.  Please contact us if you note a persitent or progressive 
increase.

Future Anesthesia/Fluid Recommendations:
·  We expect  to tolerate carefully monitored general anesthesia with normal preoperative bloodwork and a 
balanced anesthetic regimen.  During anesthesia, we recommend careful monitoring of ECG, BP and pulse ox and ½ 
usual surgical fluid rate (ie: 2-4 ml/kg/hr).  Carefully monitor for several hours post-operatively for signs of respiratory 
congestion and consider chest radiographs if these signs occur. There is some risk associated with all anesthetic 
events.
·  Avoid medications with tachycardia as a side effect, such as ketamine, telazol and glycopyrrolate. Cleared for low 
dose atropine if needed for intraprocedure bradycardia. Avoid medications that significantly alter blood pressure such 
as acepromazine and Domitor.
·   should not receive corticosteroids (prednisone) in the future please contact CVCA for recommendations, if 
corticosteroids are indicated.

Reevaluation
·  Recheck with  in the next 2-4 weeks and every 6 months for wellness care as directed, 
close auscultation, blood pressure and complete lab tests including blood and urine testing (CBC/Chemistry/Urinalysis/ 
Thyroid evaluation).  Please forward these results when available. 
·  Please recheck with CVCA in 6 months for a follow up consultation/examination, blood pressure, and 
echocardiogram. Please contact us or schedule an earlier appointment if has any problems or symptoms 
indicative of worsening heart disease or if recommended by .

We thank you for trusting in CVCA to care for   today.  Please do not hesitate to call us with any questions or 
concerns.

Sincerely,
 

Visit Summary
Heart Rate:  130                                            BP:  155 mmHg           Cuff Size/Location: 6 cuff/LF

History: Recheck DCM, suspected early CHF; doing well; RRR - 16 bpm, increased Lasix in January due to increased 
cough; cough seems to be intermittent and related to excitement; good appetite; 3 kg weight gain since 10/2017; walks 
30-45 minutes per day - slow pace, at times winded but recovers very quickly.

Information for CVCA :  03/27/2018
FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000707
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·  Begin Taurine 1500 mg twice daily.  
·  Begin L-carnitine 1500 mg three times daily.  
·  You may purchase the taurine and L-carnitine at any health food or nutrition store or www puritanspride com. You 
may also obtain the L-carnitine in bulk powder form from North Carolina State University by calling 919-513-6325.

 Please allow 24-48 hours for CVCA to process prescription refill requests.
 Refill all medications indefinitely unless directed by CVCA or your primary care veterinarian.
·  Please check all medications and dosages on your discharge report against the pharmacy labels.

Please Note
·  Please see our website www.cvcavets.com for more information about  dilated cardiomyopathy.

Nutrition Recommendations:
· is on a specialized diet which could be contributing to taurine deficiency. Please change her to a new diet, as 
her housemate is on a novel protein diet - consider prescription diets such as Royal Canin or Science Diet. Please 
discuss diet options with 
·  In patients with early/mild heart failure, CVCA recommends feeding a diet with less than 80 mg of sodium per 100 
kCal of food (50-80 mg/100 kCal).  In patients with refractory heart failure signs, further sodium restriction may be 
beneficial.  
·  For more information about sodium content of various foods, please visit:

o Dog: http://vet tufts edu/wp-content/uploads/reduced_sodium_diet_for_dogs pdf
o Treats: http://vet.tufts.edu/wp-content/uploads/treats for dogs with heart disease.pdf

·  CVCA recommends avoiding kidney diets unless  has kidney disease that warrants protein restriction.
·  Diet changes should be done gradually (ie. over ~1 month) to avoid GI upset and avoided until  is stable and 
eating well on the cardiac medications, usually about 2 weeks after starting or adjusting therapy.
·  If you are interested in a consultation with a veterinary nutritionist, please visit -- http://vetnutrition.tufts.edu/make-an-
appointment/
·  CVCA recommends fish oil supplements (omega-3 fatty acids) in many dogs with cardiac disease.  Her dose should 
be approximately EPA 1220 mg and DHA 760 mg total per day. Please start at 1/2 the dose for one week, then 
increase to the full dose if tolerating well thereafter. Please avoid Cod liver oil and flax seed as well as products with Vit 
A and/or D. 
For more information about fish oils, please visit -- http://vet tufts edu/heartsmart/diet/important-nutrients-for-pets-with-
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
·  Keep  very quiet for the next 3-4 days with only brief leash walks to eliminate.  
·  Once her coughing has resolved,  may gradually resume activity as she wants and is able to do.  Please allow 

 to take more breaks and rest during activity.
·  Please try avoid burst type activity, as this increases the arrhythmia risk and avoid exercise in the hot/humid weather.
·  Please try to warm  up for 5-10 minutes with walking prior to moderate activity and take more rests during more 
vigorous activity.

At Home Monitoring:
·  Monitor for signs of cough, respiratory difficulty, exercise intolerance, abdominal swelling, weakness, lethargy, etc.  If 
you note any of these symptoms, please notify CVCA or  as these symptoms may indicate recurrent 
congestive heart failure.  If you note an increase in cough, respiratory rate or effort, please feel free to give an 
additional dose of Lasix/Furosemide, while contacting CVCA.
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
·  In addition,  is sadly at increased risk for sudden cardiac death due to her cardiac disease.  Dobermans are 
particularly at risk for development of severe, sudden malignant arrhythmias that sadly may result in sudden death.  
However, we hope to minimize these risks with our treatment plan.  

Information for CVCA :  03/27/2018
FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000711
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located mitral regurgitant jet, moderate-severe secondary left atrial dilation on 2D imaging and moderately-severely 
increased LA:Ao ratio on M-mode imaging, mild eccentric low velocity tricuspid regurgitation with mildly elevated 
estimated right ventricular pressures consistent with mild pulmonary hypertension, mild right ventricular and right atrial 
dilation, normal left and right ventricular outflow velocities, moderately to severely depressed indices of systolic function
(FS% and EF% by modified Simpson's - LVDI 144ml/m^2, LVSI 90ml/m^2), increased EPSS, elevated transmitral 
inflow velocities and E:A wave ratio on spectral Doppler tracings, normal TDI E':A' ratio of the lateral mitral annulus, no 
masses, effusions or heartworms observed. 
ECG during echocardiogram: Normal sinus rhythm. No ventricular ectopy noted. 
 

Comments
Dear ,

Thank you for sending  to see us with  today.  Sadly,  has dilated cardiomyopathy with 
moderate to severe systolic dysfunction and moderate to severe left atrial dilation. This places her at a high risk of 
developing congestive heart failure and with the progression in her cough I am concerned that we may be dealing with 
congestive heart failure at this time. We have begun therapy to control congestive heart failure, support cardiac 
function, slow down the progression of the heart disease and improve survival.  We are now seeing more dogs on 
specialized diets that are developing taurine deficiency and we have discussed submission of taurine levels to evaluate 
whether this may be a contributing factor to condition.  is interested in pursuing this test at your clinic, 
taurine levels should be drawn and placed in a heparinized tube (green top) and should be frozen and submitted to 

(who sends it to UC Davis). It will be interesting to see if this is a contributing factor to  condition.

We will continue to closely monitor  heart disease via serial echocardiography and institute further therapy when 
progression is noted. While on this course of medication, it is important to monitor the chemistry profiles and blood 
pressures. Dogs with dilated cardiomyopathy are at a higher risk of developing ventricular arrhythmias. None were 
noted today; however, it will be important to monitor for arrhythmias periodically in the future. Unfortunately, the 
prognosis is guarded after the onset of congestive heart failure, and we discussed with the  family that the 
average survival is ~ 6-12 months.

1,2
  Survival time is highly individually variable depending on response to therapy.

We appreciate your continued referrals and the trust you place in CVCA to co-manage your cardiac patients.  We look 
forward to working with you on this case and others.  In an effort to continue to improve CVCA's service to both you 
and your clients, please visit our website at www.cvcavets.com and complete our online referring veterinarian survey.

Sincerely,
 - Cardiology

Information for CVCA :  03/27/2018
FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000713
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From: Palmer, Lee Anne
To: Jones, Jennifer L
Cc: Rotstein, David; Carey, Lauren
Subject: FW: Zignature Kangaroo Formula:  - EON-351031
Date: Thursday, April 12, 2018 1:39:10 PM
Attachments: 2045676-report.pdf

Hi Jen – were you expecting this one? Thx - LA

 

From: PFR Event [mailto:pfreventcreation@fda.hhs gov] 

Sent: Thursday, April 12, 2018 1:36 PM

To: Cleary, Michael * <Michael.Cleary@fda.hhs gov>; HQ Pet Food Report Notification <HQPetFoodReportNotification@fda.hhs gov>; 

Subject: Zignature Kangaroo Formula:  - EON-351031

 
A PFR Report has been received and PFR Event [EON-351031] has been created in the EON System  

A "PDF" report by name "2045676-report pdf" is attached to this email notification for your reference  

Below is the summary of the report: 

EON Key: EON-351031 
ICSR #: 2045676 
EON Title: PFR Event created for Zignature Kangaroo Formula; 2045676

AE Date 02/22/2018 Number Fed/Exposed 1

Best By Date     Number Reacted 1

Animal Species Dog Outcome to Date Stable

Breed Retriever - Golden       

Age 6 Years         

District Involved PFR-  DO         

Product information 
Individual Case Safety Report Number: 2045676 
Product Group: Pet Food 
Product Name: Zignature Kangaroo Formula 
Description:  Patient presented to the cardiology service at  for tachypnea  He was diagnosed with
dilated cardiomyopathy and left side congestive heart failure  Whole blood taurine level was 119 (ref 200-350, critical level <150)  At the time, patient
consuming Zignature Kangaroo Formula and was advised to change  
Submission Type: Initial 
Report Type: Adverse Event (a symptom, reaction or disease associated with the product) 
Outcome of reaction/event at the time of last observation: Stable 
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
https://eon fda gov/eon//browse/EON-351031 

To view the PFR Event Report, please click the link below: 
https://eon fda gov/eon/

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

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000715









 

-- 
Darcy B. Adin, DVM, DACVIM (Cardiology)
Clinical Assistant Professor of Cardiology
North Carolina State University
NC State Veterinary Hospital
1060 William Moore Drive
Raleigh, NC 27607
919-513-6032

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000719



From: Freeman, Lisa
To: Jones, Jennifer L
Subject: ideas for dcm issue
Date: Wednesday, August 08, 2018 4:48:09 PM
Attachments: ideas 8-1-18 for fda.docx

van vleet ferrans myocardial diseases of animals am j pathol 1986.pdf

Attached is an article and the various nutritional deficiencies and nutritional toxicities that
can cause myocardial disease
Lisa
 
Lisa M. Freeman, DVM, PhD, DACVN
Board Certified Veterinary NutritionistTM

Professor
Cummings School of Veterinary Medicine
Friedman School of Nutrition Science and Policy
Tufts Clinical and Translational Science Institute
Tufts University
www.petfoodology.org
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From: Jones, Jennifer L
To: Nemser, Sarah
Subject: RE: 800.261-Zignature Kangaroo Formula:  - EON-350158
Date: Wednesday, April 04, 2018 2:06:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
image007.png
image011.png

Sometimes, I’m the only one on the emails.
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Nemser, Sarah 
Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2018 9:42 AM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer Jones@fda.hhs gov>
Subject: FW: 800 261-Zignature Kangaroo Formula:  - EON-350158
 
I am not getting original emails about cases. Am I not on the emails?
 
S
 

Sarah Nemser  M.S.

Vet-LIRN Network Coordinator

tel: 240-402-0892

fax: 301-210-4685
sarah.nemser@fda.hhs.gov

 

From: Jones, Jennifer L 
Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2018 9:32 AM
To: Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs gov>; Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>; Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: Ceric, Olgica <Olgica.Ceric@fda.hhs.gov>; Nemser, Sarah <Sarah.Nemser@fda.hhs.gov>; Reimschuessel, Renate <Renate.Reimschuessel@fda.hhs gov>
Subject: RE: 800.261-Zignature Kangaroo Formula:  - EON-350158
 
MRx summary below. We are purchasing store-bought product for Tau, Met, Cys testing. A previous case without food had a Cocker Spaniel-same Zignature Essentials Food,
low Tau on labwork. If the Food results are negative, we may need to consider Tau/Cys/Met inhibitors in the food or breed-related AA handling deficiencies causing the
DCM
 
MRx summary:
Presenting complaint 10/27 to rDVM: developed a cough on 10/25, cough for 3-4 days, not lethargic, normal eating/drinking, no vomiting or diarrhea, worse when lying
down, dog didn’t cough while in clinic except for a tracheal cough when pulling on the leashÆ treated with hydroxyzine, doxycycline, hydrocodone Æ stopped all 3 drugs
Monday b/c cough worsened Æ to ER on after coughing up pink tinged foam; no lethargy, continues to eat and drink; UTD on vaccines and HWP, no drugs Æ treat
with Lasix, benazepril, vetmedin, spironolactone, Tau, L-carnitine and vet recommended a diet change Ælabwork done 11/14 Æ to rDVM 11/16: doing well Æ recheck
2/26/18: intermittent cough, related to excitement, change diet to RC Early Cardiac Æ on recheck improved Æ suspect Tau responsive DCM-mild, suspect cough secondary
to bronchial or primary respiratory disease Æ recheck 3/13: resting RR 16 rpm, minimal coughing only when excited, since switching to cardiac food BMs are dense and
tenesmus, owner Is weaning dog off lasix
PE 10/27 @ rDVM: numerous lipomatous & dermal masses, no audible murmur or arrhythmia, shallow breathing

PE  @ specialist: LS-OU, HR 100 bpm, mild periodontal disease, Gr II/VI, left apical protosystolic murmur, questionable mild inc bronchovesicular sounds
bilaterally, SC mass left ventrum, mildly tense cranial abdominal palpation
              PE 11/16 @ rDVM: mild underbite, H/L wnl

PE 2/26: Gr III/VI pansystolic, PMI MV, reg rhythm with S3 gallop, HR 130, BCS 6/9, hepatomegaly
PE 3/13: T 99.9F, RR 56, HR 124 bpm, Gr III/VI murmur, rest nsf

Labs:     10/27    CBC: Lym 1.01 (1.05-5.1)
                           -3/13: Lym 1044 (1060-4950), Plt 615 (143-448), Plt inc on direct

10/27    Chem: ALP 440 (23-212), GGT 30 (0-11), rest nsf
              -11/14: Glu 51 (70-143), Glob 4.7 (2.5-4 5), ALP 621, GGT 31
              -3/13: Na:K 27, ALP 2243 (5-180), GGT 117 (0-13)

    BP 100 (based on Echo)
                           -2/26:155 mg Hg, direct measurement
                           -3/13: 130-140 mmHg, direct measurement
              11/3      Tau-blood: 168 (200-350)
              3/13      UA: 1 010, pH 5
              3/13      TT4: 0 8 (1-4)
Rads 10/27: generalized cardiomegaly, left atrial enlargement, slight left auricular bulge, increased sternal contact & rounded heart, dorsal tracheal deviation, prominent
pulmonary vasculature with questionably mild inc interstitial opacity in caudal-dorsal lungs, suggesting early CHF/PE

 Echo: severe LV hypertrophy, mild-mod MV regurgitation, mod-sev LA dilation,
mild TV regurg, mild RV & RA dilation, mod-sev lower systolic function values

              -2/26: mild LV dilation, mild MV regurg, normal LA, mild TV regurg, normal RV & RA, low normal systolic functional indices of LV
 ECG: normal sinus rhythm

Prior MHx: 7/2017: doing well at home-occasionally coughs  several SQ masses, no murmur or cough on tracheal palpation; 10/23/2017-vaccines, doing well per O, no
murmur ausculted, not been getting HWP consistently,

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000806
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
https://eon fda gov/eon//

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
To: Palmer, Lee Anne; Rotstein, David; Carey, Lauren
Cc: Ceric, Olgica; Nemser, Sarah; "Reimschuessel, Renate (Renate.Reimschuessel@fda.hhs.gov)"
Subject: RE: 800.261-Zignature Kangaroo Formula:  - EON-350158
Date: Wednesday, April 04, 2018 9:32:00 AM
Attachments: EON-350158- -case summary-4.4.2018.doc
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image002.png
image003.png

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
Monday b/c cough worsened Æ to ER on  after coughing up pink tinged foam; no lethargy, continues to eat and drink; UTD on vaccines and HWP, no drugs Æ treat
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
Sent: Tuesday, March 27, 2018 3:40 PM
To: Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs gov>
Cc: Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs gov>; Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: Zignature Kangaroo Formula:  - EON-350158
 
Yes-let’s take a look! I think we should check taurine, cysteine, methionine, and beta-alanine. I’m curious if those aminoacid levels are normal if there is some underlying
renal disease causing whole body taurine depletion.
https://academic.oup.com/alcalc/article/36/1/29/138000
 
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Palmer, Lee Anne 
Sent: Tuesday, March 27, 2018 3:25 PM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer Jones@fda.hhs gov>
Cc: Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs gov>; Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: FW: Zignature Kangaroo Formula   - EON-350158
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
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Vet-LIRN Case Summary Document 

Vet-LIRN Case Number:   
EON/CC #:  EON-350158 
Owner LAST Name:  
Vet LAST Name:  
Vet-LIRN Initiation Date:  3/28/2018 
MedRec:  Requested:  Received with Complaint 
MedRec:  Received:   
MedRec:  Significant finding:   
Vet-LIRN Tests (planned):   
Vet-LIRN Test Results:   
Result Interpretation:   
IF NFA, justification:   

 

COMPLAINT Narrative: At the time of diagnosis ( ),  was a 13 year old female spayed 
Labrador retriever who had been maintained on a Zignature Kangaroo formula. She presented with a 
history of a progressive cough which, prior to presentation, became productive and she coughed up a 
small volume of pink foam (possible pulmonary edema). On examination she had a 2/6 left apical 
systolic heart murmur and on echo diagnosed with advanced dilated cardiomyopathy with severe left 
ventricular dilation, moderate to severe left ventricular systolic dysfunction, and moderate to severe left 
atrial dilation. Thoracic radiographs were suspicious for early congestive heart failure. A whole blood 
taurine level was submitted and was low at 168. She was treatment with furosemide, benazepril, 
pimobendan, spironolactone, taurine and l-carnitine and her diet was changed to Royal Canin Early 
Cardiac. At her recheck in 2/26/18,  heart had improved significantly with now mild dilated 
cardiomyopathy with normalized left atrial dimensions, mild left ventricular dilation and low normal left 
ventricular systolic function. The furosemide was able to be discontinued at this time. 
 
Signalment: -13 yr FS Lab 
 
Signs: productive, progressive cough 
 
Food Product: Zignature Kangaroo Formula 
 
Plan:  

x MRx 
x Open product for Tau, Cysteine, Methionine, +/- Beta-Alanine 

 
MRx summary: 
Presenting complaint 10/27 to rDVM: developed a cough on 10/25, cough for 3-4 days, not lethargic, 
normal eating/drinking, no vomiting or diarrhea, worse when lying down, dog didn’t cough while in 
clinic except for a tracheal cough when pulling on the leashÆ treated with hydroxyzine, doxycycline, 
hydrocodone Æ stopped all 3 drugs Monday b/c cough worsened Æ to ER on  after coughing up 
pink tinged foam; no lethargy, continues to eat and drink; UTD on vaccines and HWP, no drugs Æ treat 
with Lasix, benazepril, vetmedin, spironolactone, Tau, L-carnitine and vet recommended a diet change 
Ælabwork done 11/14 Æ to rDVM 11/16: doing well Æ recheck 2/26/18: intermittent cough, related to 
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excitement, change diet to RC Early Cardiac Æ on recheck improved Æ suspect Tau responsive DCM-
mild, suspect cough secondary to bronchial or primary respiratory disease Æ recheck 3/13: resting RR 
16 rpm, minimal coughing only when excited, since switching to cardiac food BMs are dense and 
tenesmus, owner Is weaning dog off lasix 
PE 10/27 @ rDVM: numerous lipomatous & dermal masses, no audible murmur or arrhythmia, shallow 
breathing 

PE @ specialist: LS-OU, HR 100 bpm, mild periodontal disease, Gr II/VI, left apical 
protosystolic murmur, questionable mild inc bronchovesicular sounds bilaterally, SC mass left ventrum, 
mildly tense cranial abdominal palpation 
 PE 11/16 @ rDVM: mild underbite, H/L wnl 

PE 2/26: Gr III/VI pansystolic, PMI MV, reg rhythm with S3 gallop, HR 130, BCS 6/9, 
hepatomegaly 

PE 3/13: T 99.9F, RR 56, HR 124 bpm, Gr III/VI murmur, rest nsf 
Labs: 10/27 CBC: Lym 1.01 (1.05-5.1) 
  -3/13: Lym 1044 (1060-4950), Plt 615 (143-448), Plt inc on direct 

10/27 Chem: ALP 440 (23-212), GGT 30 (0-11), rest nsf 
 -11/14: Glu 51 (70-143), Glob 4.7 (2.5-4.5), ALP 621, GGT 31 
 -3/13: Na:K 27, ALP 2243 (5-180), GGT 117 (0-13) 

 BP 100 (based on Echo) 
  -2/26:155 mg Hg, direct measurement 
  -3/13: 130-140 mmHg, direct measurement 
 11/3  Tau-blood: 168 (200-350) 
 3/13 UA: 1.010, pH 5 
 3/13 TT4: 0.8 (1-4) 
Rads 10/27: generalized cardiomegaly, left atrial enlargement, slight left auricular bulge, increased 
sternal contact & rounded heart, dorsal tracheal deviation, prominent pulmonary vasculature with 
questionably mild inc interstitial opacity in caudal-dorsal lungs, suggesting early CHF/PE 

 Echo: severe LV hypertrophy, mild-mod MV regurgitation, mod-sev LA dilation,  
mild TV regurg, mild RV & RA dilation, mod-sev lower systolic function values 

 -2/26: mild LV dilation, mild MV regurg, normal LA, mild TV regurg, normal RV & RA, low normal 
systolic functional indices of LV 

 ECG: normal sinus rhythm 
Prior MHx: 7/2017: doing well at home-occasionally coughs, several SQ masses, no murmur or cough on 
tracheal palpation; 10/23/2017-vaccines, doing well per O, no murmur ausculted, not been getting HWP 
consistently,  
 
An article about beta-alanine: https://academic.oup.com/alcalc/article/36/1/29/138000 
If Tau & Cys/Met are normal, we may need to reconsider other MOA’s causing this, unrelated to the 
food. 
 
I emailed the vet to request the full MRx and see if lot/best by information available for the leftover 
food. 
 
4/4/2018 
JJ-Vet sent the full MRx available and does not have any leftover food. We will purchase the food for 
testing. A dog from a previous case without food (800.218- ), Cocker Spaniel with Low Tau and 
also eating Zignature Essentials Kangaroo. 
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MRx added to above summary. 
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From: Jones, Jennifer L
To: Carey, Lauren; Hartogensis, Martine; Nemser, Sarah; Palmer, Lee Anne; Rotstein, David
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
Date: Thursday, July 19, 2018 9:32:00 AM
Attachments: PFI-VetLIRN DCM-7.19.2018.pptx
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Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Carey, Lauren 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 9:28 AM
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>; Jones, Jennifer L
<Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>; Nemser, Sarah <Sarah.Nemser@fda.hhs.gov>; Palmer, Lee Anne
<LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>; Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Hi Martine,
 
Slides attached. I’m willing to make any changes. Just let me know.
 
Thanks,
Lauren
 

From: Hartogensis, Martine 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 9:23 AM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>; Nemser, Sarah <Sarah.Nemser@fda.hhs.gov>;
Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>; Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>;
Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: FW: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Hi!

If you are comfortable and want to send me slides for the webinar today, that would be great.  PFI
can put them on the shared screen.
 
Thanks!!
Martine
 

From: Tabor, Peter [mailto:peter@petfoodinstitute.org] 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 9:11 AM
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To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Good morning, Martine. Will you/your FDA colleagues want to present anything on the screen? I
recall during our last webinar with you that we could not give you presenter privileges in
GoToMeeting – something to do with your IT/firewall, I think. If you want me to put anything on the
screen, please send it to me. I have the redacted version of your presentation from June and the
public announcement. Thanks.
 
Regards,
 
Peter
O: +
M: 
 

From: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 6:57 AM
To: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Subject: Re: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Ok, sounds good and thank you!
 
Martine
 
 

From: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Date: July 18, 2018 at 10:40:10 PM EDT
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: Re: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Thanks, Martine. Most participants PFI producer members participants are SMEs, with a few
corporate/legal reps in the mix. I really want this webinar to focus on the science behind FDA’s
notice and got broad agreement from members during our prep for this meeting today. 

Sent using OWA for iPhone

From: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, July 18, 2018 7:16:01 PM
To: Tabor, Peter
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Hi Peter,
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Thank you so much for the list.  Here are the folks invited from CVM:
 
Bill Burkholder
Siobhan DeLancey
Dave Rotstein
Pat McDermott
Jennifer Jones
Lauren Carey
Anne Norris
Lee Anne Palmer
David Edwards
Sarah Nemser
Janice Steinschneider
John Baker
Eric Nelson
Neal Bataller
 
 
Also, I recognize a few names on your list, but can you tell me (in general) if the PFI participants are
mainly SMEs or leadership?  We just want to get an idea of our audience.
 
Thanks very much in advance!

Martine
 

From: Tabor, Peter [mailto:peter@petfoodinstitute.org] 
Sent: Wednesday, July 18, 2018 4:58 PM
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Good afternoon, Martine. Attached is a list of PFI member participants in tomorrow’s webinar. Also
attached is the proposed agenda and the questions we sent you earlier, just for reference.
 
Did you already send us a list of FDA participants in the webinar? If not, can you send it this
afternoon/evening?
 
Thanks and we look forward to the call.
 
Regards,
 
Peter
O: +
M: 
 

From: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov> 
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Sent: Monday, July 16, 2018 9:29 PM
To: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Hi Peter!
 
Looks great!  Looking forward to our meeting Thursday!
 
Martine
 
 

From: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Date: July 16, 2018 at 2:17:16 PM EDT
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Good afternoon, Martine. Not sure if you’re still in Denver or on your way home – I hope the AVMA
meeting went well. I wanted to get your input on a draft agenda for the Thu webinar, to make the
most of everyone’s time.
 

Proposed Agenda
 

Welcome, introductions and PFI anti-trust policy reminder – PFI, FDA (10 minutes)
Overview of the issue, including the FDA notice and the data FDA presented to PFI in June –
FDA (30 minutes, including Qs from PFI)
Review of questions PFI sent to FDA for the webinar – PFI, FDA (50 minutes)
Open Q&A – PFI, FDA (20 minutes)
Conclusion and adjourn (10 minutes)

 
Please take a look and reply to me at your earliest convenience (today if possible) with thoughts or
suggested tweaks. Thanks and safe travels home.
 
Regards,
 
Peter
O: +
M: 
 

From: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, July 12, 2018 11:11 AM
To: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
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Hi Peter,
 
Yes, let’s touch base.  I am in a meeting until 12 and can call you then.  Does that work for you?
 
 
Martine
 

From: Tabor, Peter [mailto:peter@petfoodinstitute.org] 
Sent: Thursday, July 12, 2018 10:45 AM
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: Re: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Thanks for the heads-up, Martine. Very kind of you. My colleagues and I will review the info
and I’ll be in touch this afternoon. 
I was under the impression that our webinar next week would inform FDA’s and pet food
makers’ understanding of the issue, perhaps before any public messaging was issued. So this is
a little concerning. I imagine the public reaction might be quite severe and impact products
that aren’t implicated by FDA. Hopefully we can chat this afternoon. 
Thanks again for reaching out. 

Sent using OWA for iPhone

From: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Sent: Thursday, July 12, 2018 10:34:41 AM
To: Tabor, Peter
Subject: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Hi Peter,
 
I just left you a VM.  I am attaching the DCM comms materials that will be going live today.  Please
feel free to share them with your members and let me know if you have any questions.
 
Martine
 
 
 
Martine Hartogensis, DVM
FDA Center for Veterinary Medicine
Deputy Director, Office of Surveillance & Compliance
(240) 402-7178
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From: Carey, Lauren
To: Hartogensis, Martine; Jones, Jennifer L; Nemser, Sarah; Palmer, Lee Anne; Rotstein, David
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
Date: Thursday, July 19, 2018 9:46:11 AM
Attachments: PFI - 7-18-2018 DCM Presentation - lc.ppt

Hi Martine,
 
How’s this?
Thanks,
Lauren
 

From: Hartogensis, Martine 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 9:39 AM
To: Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>; Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>;
Nemser, Sarah <Sarah.Nemser@fda.hhs.gov>; Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>;
Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Hi Lauren,
 
I had some edits and questions on slide 4.  Also, are the last 2 slides showing the same material
(brands)?  Maybe it will be more clear when you present. 
 

 
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

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000822



 
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
To: Hartogensis, Martine; Palmer, Lee Anne; Rotstein, David; Burkholder, William; Norris, Anne; DeLancey, Siobhan
Cc: McDermott, Patrick
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
Date: Friday, July 27, 2018 7:54:00 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image004.png
image006.jpg

Good morning,
Here is the follow-up I had for PFI after yesterday’s call about the dog that recovered after veterinary
treatment, diet change, and supplementation.
 
13 year old Female Spayed Labrador Retriever
Diagnosed with DCM by echo at the end of October 2017.

Echo: severe eccenric left ventricular dilation, mild-moderate Mitral Valve regurgitation,
mod-sev LA dilation, mild Tricuspid Valve regurgitation, mild Right Ventricular and right atrial
dilation, moderate-severe decrease in contractility/heart muscle function
              Eating a Grain free diet with the following parameters according to the label: Crude protein
(min) 26%, Crude fat (min) 14%, Crude fiber (4.5%), Moisture (max) 10%, actual product Taurine
level 0.05%
The vet treated with Lasix, benazepril, vetmedin, spironolactone, Taurine (1500 mg BID), L-carnitine
(1500 mg TID) and vet recommended a diet change
At the end of Feb 2018-recheck echo was improved: mild, improved eccentric Left Ventricular
chamber dilation, mild, improved Mitral and very mild tricuspid valve regurgitation,
normal/improved Left Atrial chamber dilation, subjectively normal Right Ventriclular & Right Atrial
dimensions, low normal improved left ventricular contractility/heart muscle function

The new diet had the following parameters according to the label: Crude protein (min) 22%,
Crude fat (min) 14%, Crude fiber (max) 5.3%, Moisture (max) 10%, Taurine (min) 0.18%
             
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Hartogensis, Martine 
Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:59 AM
To: Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>; Jones, Jennifer L
<Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>; Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>; Burkholder, William
<William.Burkholder@fda.hhs.gov>; Norris, Anne <Anne.Norris@fda.hhs.gov>; DeLancey, Siobhan
<Siobhan.Delancey@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: McDermott, Patrick <Patrick.McDermott@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: FW: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Just a few points from PFI before our webinar today.
 
Martine

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000826



 

From: Tabor, Peter [mailto:peter@petfoodinstitute.org] 
Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:38 AM
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Good morning, Martine. First, thanks for this opportunity to engage with FDA on this issue. As
difficult as it can be at times, I think this is positive and consistent with PFI members’ commitment to
product safety and pet health. The more we can work together and the sooner in the process, the
better.
 
We have a good game of phone tag going so just wanted to send a quick note in case we don’t speak
before the webinar at 2:00pm.

Per our conversation, we’ll pick up where we left off. I’ll start posing the questions we sent o
FDA in advance of the 19 July webinar.
I know we’re scheduled for one hour but I imagine there will be a lot of interest, so please
advise if you/your colleagues are ok with going longer if necessary – hopefully no more than
10-15 minutes past our allotted time.
One question I’ll pose if others don’t, perhaps near the end of the webinar, relates to FDA’s
messaging going forward on this issue. There’s  a lot of concern among pet food makers that
an entire sector (grain-free) and a few ingredients (peas, lentils, legumes and potatoes) have
been indicted when it appears that the issue is really about formulation by certain pet food
makers since many grain-free diets and/or diets containing the aforementioned ingredients
are not implicated. Also, any FDA messaging usually leads to a spike in calls to pet food
makers’ call centers, even if they don’t make the products FDA may be investigating – the
jerky treats investigation is a perfect example.

 
That’s all for now. I am unavailable until around 1:00pm but feel free to call after that if we need to
speak before the webinar at 2:00pm.
 
Regards,
 
Peter
O: +
M: 
 

From: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 7:15 PM
To: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Cc:  < @petfoodinstitute.org>; Milton, Nanette <Nanette.Milton@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Ok, thanks Peter!
 
Nanette, can you work with  to schedule an hour continuation of the PFI webinar?  We got cut
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off after the first hour...
 
Looks like Tuesday around 11 might work.
 
Thanks in advance!!
 
Martine
 
 

From: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Date: July 19, 2018 at 4:40:25 PM EDT
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc:  @petfoodinstitute.org>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Hi, Martine. Sorry this message is coming to you later than expected. If you could let us know
whether Tuesday, 24 July in the morning (11:00am ET start time) works for you, I can notify our
participants and get it on everyone’s calendar.
 
Thanks again and we’ll be in touch.
 
Regards,
 
Peter
O: +
M: 
 

From: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 11:30 AM
To: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Hi Peter,
 
No worries and I am available now.  
 
Martine
 

From: Tabor, Peter [mailto:peter@petfoodinstitute.org] 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 11:29 AM
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
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 9:40 AM
To: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Hi Peter,
 
Here are the Vet-LIRN slides.  I will be sending the epi slides in a bit.
 
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
 

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000833

(b) (6)
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
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From:
To: Jones, Jennifer L
Subject: RE: FDA case investigation for  (800.261)
Date: Thursday, April 19, 2018 11:13:46 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image006.png

Hi Dr. Jones,
 
I will work on getting this record to you.
 

 
 

From: Jones, Jennifer L [mailto:Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, April 19, 2018 7:41 AM
To: 
Subject: FDA case investigation for  (800.261)
 
Good morning 
Thank you for submitting your consumer complaint to FDA. I’m sorry to hear about  illness.
As part of our investigation, we’d like to request:

Full Medical Records
Please email (preferred) or fax (301-210-4685) a copy of  entire medical history
(not just this event).

I attached a copy of our Vet-LIRN network procedures. The procedures describe how Vet-LIRN
operates and how veterinarians help with our case investigations.
Please respond to this email so that we can initiate our investigation.
Thank you kindly,
Dr. Jones
 
 
Jennifer L. A. Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer 
U.S. Food & Drug Administration
Center for Veterinary Medicine
Office of Research 
Veterinary Laboratory Investigation and Response Network (Vet-LIRN)
8401 Muirkirk Road, G704
Laurel, Maryland 20708
new tel: 240-402-5421
fax: 301-210-4685 
e-mail: jennifer.jones@fda.hhs.gov
Web: http://www.fda.gov/AnimalVeterinary/ScienceResearch/ucm247334.htm
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From: CVCA - Cardiac Care for Pets 
To: Jones, Jennifer L
Subject: Re: FDA Case investigation for  (EON-350158)
Date: Wednesday, March 28, 2018 6:28:29 PM
Attachments: image002.png
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Attached is entire medical records for ..Please let us know if you need anything
else- 
Thank- 

On Wed, Mar 28, 2018 at 6:08 PM, CVCA - Cardiac Care for Pets 
@cvcavets.com> wrote:

Dear Dr. Jones,
Thank you for following up on our patient, . We will be sending you our
complete records for  including the primary veterinarian history that we have and the
history from her previous emergency room visit. Unfortunately, the diagnosis was made in
October and the client has disposed of the diet. We will certainly keep this in mind for future
patients with dilated cardiomyopathy which could potentially be diet-related and have those
owners keep a sample and record the lot number for future testing/tracking. Thank you again
for looking into this issue for our patients.

Sincerely,
 - Cardiology

On Wed, Mar 28, 2018 at 2:40 PM, Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov> wrote:

Good afternoon ,

Thank you for submitting your consumer complaint to FDA. I’m sorry to hear about
 illness.

As part of our investigation, we’d like to request:

Full Medical Records
Please email (preferred) or fax (301-210-4685) a copy of  entire
medical history (not just this event).
Do you have records from her referring veterinarian?

Potentially Test Remaining OPEN product
Do you have any remaining product left?
Is there a lot number or best by date for the leftover food?
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·  Begin Taurine 1500 mg twice daily.  
·  Begin L-carnitine 1500 mg three times daily.  
·  You may purchase the taurine and L-carnitine at any health food or nutrition store or www puritanspride com. You 
may also obtain the L-carnitine in bulk powder form from North Carolina State University by calling 

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
·  is on a specialized diet which could be contributing to taurine deficiency. Please change her to a new diet, as 
her housemate is on a novel protein diet - consider prescription diets such as Royal Canin or Science Diet. Please 
discuss diet options with .
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
·  Diet changes should be done gradually (ie. over ~1 month) to avoid GI upset and avoided until is stable and 
eating well on the cardiac medications, usually about 2 weeks after starting or adjusting therapy.
·  If you are interested in a consultation with a veterinary nutritionist, please visit -- http://vetnutrition tufts edu/make-an-
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
·  Once her coughing has resolved, may gradually resume activity as she wants and is able to do.  Please allow 

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
than 30 breaths per minute.  Consider using a respiratory rate monitoring application to track respiratory rate - 
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

Information for CVCA :  03/28/2018
FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000852
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

Thank you for sending  to see us with  today.  Sadly, has dilated cardiomyopathy with 
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
whether this may be a contributing factor to  condition.  is interested in pursuing this test at your clinic, 
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
FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000854
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From: Jones, Jennifer L
To: "CVCA - Cardiac Care for Pets 
Subject: RE: FDA Case investigation for  (EON-350158)
Date: Friday, March 30, 2018 8:28:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image004.png
image002.png

Thank you for sending the records and reporting the case, .
I hope you have a nice holiday and weekend,
Jennifer
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 
From: CVCA - Cardiac Care for Pets  [mailto @cvcavets.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, March 28, 2018 6:27 PM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
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
October and the client has disposed of the diet. We will certainly keep this in mind for
future patients with dilated cardiomyopathy which could potentially be diet-related and have
those owners keep a sample and record the lot number for future testing/tracking. Thank
you again for looking into this issue for our patients.
 
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

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000866
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3.  I keep sending you the extra medical records that won't fit in the reporting portal.  Is
there someone else I should send these to so I don't keep clogging your inbox? 
 
Many thanks
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
To: Palmer, Lee Anne; Rotstein, David; Palmer, Lee Anne; Queen, Jackie L
Cc: Ceric, Olgica; Nemser, Sarah; "Reimschuessel, Renate (Renate.Reimschuessel@fda.hhs.gov)"
Subject: RE: Zignature Kangaroo Formula: 800.261- EON-351031 -owner -vet
Date: Wednesday, May 09, 2018 6:53:00 AM
Attachments: EON-351031-  MRx.pdf

image001.png
image005.png
image003.png

This was the product with low Taurine we recently tested (per feline AAFCO minimum Tau).
 
Golden Retriever with low blood taurine and a persistent history of arytenoid dysfunction, possible doxy +/- prednisone responsive infectious (Bartonella?) arytenoid
granulomas? Since 9 months old
 
MRx summary:
Presenting complaint 2/23/2018: CHF possible, consult; tachycardia, last 3 days dyspneic, no cough, poor appetite for 2 days, usually ravenous, decreased energy level, on
pred (5 mg EOD) over a year, tried soloxine but discontinued because it wasn’t helping; long history of a panting and swallowing disorder Æ diagnosed w/ DCM & L-CHF,
tentative pulmonary edema Æ start furosemide, pimobendan, and Taurine Æ 2/27 breathing better, eating ok, increased prednisone for gagging Æ 3/1 Tau low, dog still
on Zignature Kangaroo diet Æ vet said legumes in the diet likely prevent Met & Cys absorption Æ switched to Royal Canin Kangaroo & Oat; the dog was on Zignature
Kangaroo last 2-3 years, eats milkbones and baked dog treats from a bakery; before the Zignature, he ate Acana Ranch Lamb, Natural Balanace Bison & SP, Natural Balance
Fish & SP, Zignature Trout & Salmon Æ no supplements were taken before the DCM diagnosis Æ by 3/13 dog was eating Royal Canin Kangaroo Æ 3/22 restless at night but
RR = 22, try melatonin
PE 2/23: 40 kg, HR 120, gallop, panting; at rest/lying down still tachypneic
Labs:     2/23      Whole Blood Tau: 119 (200-350)
2/23 Echocardiogram: dilated LV w/ poor systolic function, LA enlarged, mod MR & TR, dec aortic and pulmonic flow
Prior MHx: 5/2014 aerophagia since 9 months old, episodes of gagging/choking with neck extension; 11/2014 myasthenia gravis negative; 5/2015 cerenia helps, gagging
episodes increasing in frequency, no megaesophagus, nodule on left vocal fold w/ assymetry of arytenoid function-granulomatous inflammation and treated with
Doxycycline for possible Bartonella (never tested); 6/2015 stopped air issues; 9/2015 good for two months then flair up of signs, then gone again, retreat with doxy; 3/2017
T4 & TSH low with WBC/NP elevated, recheck difficulty swallowing and upper airway noise Æ trial soloxine
 
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Jones, Jennifer L 
Sent: Friday, April 13, 2018 6:39 AM
To: Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs gov>
Cc: Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs gov>; Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: Zignature Kangaroo Formula:  - EON-351031
 
Thanks, Lee Anne. No, I wasn’t expecting it, but I can start with MRx!
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Palmer, Lee Anne 
Sent: Thursday, April 12, 2018 1:39 PM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer Jones@fda.hhs gov>
Cc: Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs gov>; Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: FW: Zignature Kangaroo Formula   - EON-351031
 
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
FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000872
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
Description: Feb 23, 2018 Patient presented to the cardiology service at  for tachypnea  He was diagnosed with
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
https://eon fda gov/eon  

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
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Patient History Report
Client: Patient:
Phone: Species: Canine Breed: Retriever, Golden

Address: Age: 6 Yrs. 2 Mos. Sex: Neutered Male
Color: Blonde

Date Type Staff History

4/12/2018 C MEDICAL COMMENTS     ***ADDENDUM 4/20/2018
4/12/2018     13:26
FDA Safety Reporting Portal - Individual Case Safety Report Number (ICSR)
2045676
ADDENDUM on 4/20/2018 at 08:34:23 from 

permission signed and returned to 

3/24/2018 P 1.00 [None] of Postage (UPS) -1 Lb (POSTA)
Rx #: 2863492   0 Of 0 Refills
***SHIP ONLINE ORDERS UPS ONLY!!!***                      Lasix

3/24/2018 C PHARMACY NOTE
TTO. Meds have been refilled

3/24/2018 P 100.00 tablet of Lasix (Salix / Furosemide) 50mg Tablet (M569)
Rx #: 2852561   1 Of 12 Refills  Filled by: 
1 1/2 TABLETS BY MOUTH TWO TIMES A DAY

3/22/2018 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
3/22/2018     13:03
dog is restless at night, making breathing sound, but sRR is consistently at 22
brpm,  so i do not think do has pulmonary edema, will try melatonin,  recheck in
end of april

Hey
His Melatonin dose is 4 or 5 mg once to three times a day.

Depending on size tablet you get, a 4 mg tablet or a 5 mg tablet, then start by
giving 1 tablet once day, 30 minutes before bed

B:Billing, C:Med note, CB:Call back, CK:Check-in, CM:Communications, D:Diagnosis, DH:Declined to history, E:Examination, ES:Estimates,
I:Departing instr, L:Lab result, M:Image cases, P:Prescription, PA:PVL Accepted, PB:problems, PP:PVL Performed, PR:PVL Recommended,
R:Correspondence, T:Images, TC:Tentative medl note, V:Vital signs

l Page  1 of 30 Date: 4/20/2018 5:17
PM

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000874

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

3/13/2018 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
3/13/2018     10:36
SWO - Owner consented to reporting  case to the FDA. He has been on the
Zignature Kangaroo for the past 2-3 years. Treats include Milkbones and baked
dog treats from pet bakery. Prior to the Zignature Kangaroo, he consumed the
Acana Ranch Lamb, Natural Balance Sweet Potato and Bison, Natural Balance
Sweet Potato and Fish, Zignature Trout & Salmon. He was receiving no
supplements prior to his DCM diagnosis. Owner will forward me a copy of her most
recent Chewy.com receipt for the Zignature. She does not have the bag anymore. I
will email her for additional information. She is now feeding the Royal Canin
Kangaroo and Oats.

3/1/2018 D Taurine Deficiency  Final

3/1/2018 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH DOCTOR
3/1/2018     13:22
i called vet, to let them know taurine is low,  she is still on kangaroo diet from
Zignature, rec to change diet.  The legumes in diet are most likely preventing
methionine and cystine absorption, should switch to Royal Canin kangaroo and
oats,  i originally lm and he called back. he said he would call owner

3/1/2018 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
3/1/2018     13:20
i called client to let her know taurine is low,  she is still on kangaroo diet from
Zignature, rec she talk to her vet at last appt, and she did to day at a recheck, and
told her to wait.  The legumes in diet are most likely preventing methionine and
cystine absorption, should switch to Royal Canin kangaroo and oats,  I will call her
vet.

2/27/2018 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
2/27/2018     11:03
i called owner, dog is breathing better, eating fine, getting sRR 18-26, did have
throat issues, does gagging, pred helped, increased pred again, continue as
planned, waiting on taurine level.   if normla will start enalapril

2/24/2018 L Miscellaneous results from 

B:Billing, C:Med note, CB:Call back, CK:Check-in, CM:Communications, D:Diagnosis, DH:Declined to history, E:Examination, ES:Estimates,
I:Departing instr, L:Lab result, M:Image cases, P:Prescription, PA:PVL Accepted, PB:problems, PP:PVL Performed, PR:PVL Recommended,
R:Correspondence, T:Images, TC:Tentative medl note, V:Vital signs

Page  2 of 30 Date: 4/20/2018 5:17
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

    (East) Requisition ID:        Posted      Final
Ascn:  Profile: Taurine RE: 16759 Taurine 119
Normal Values (nmols/ml)
                    Normal Range                  Critical
Level
Cat  Plasma            60-120                      Less than
40
     Whole Blood      300-600                      Less than
200

Dog  Plasma            60-120                      Less than
40
     Whole Blood      200-350                      Less than
150
TEST PERFORMED AT 

2/23/2018 C PHARMACY NOTE
Called , spoke to  Ordered Pimobendan 10 mg
tiny tablets  - 1 tablet two times a day, #100, 8 refills

2/23/2018 D Pulmonary Edema  Tentative
2/23/2018 D Taurine Deficiency  Tentative Date Diagnosis made final: 03/01/18
2/23/2018 D Dilated Cardiomyopathy  Tentative
2/23/2018 I Cardiology Discharge Instructions

2/23/2018

A cardiologist has evaluated  and has diagnosed her with Dilated
Cardiomyopathy (DCM).  DCM means your pet has poor muscle contraction of the
heart.  This means the heart muscle does not pump as well as a normal dog.  The
heart has enlarged due to the poor muscle contraction.  The change in the heart
has caused fluid to form in the lungs, causing increased respiratory rate.

Please take a sleeping respiratory rate rate (sRR) at home.  WHILE YOUR PET  IS
SLEEPING, count the number of times they breathe in over 15 seconds. Your pet
should have 8 breathes or less over 15 seconds while sleeping.  Do this once a day
over the next 3 days, then 2 times a week thereafter.
The free app software for iPhone and Google Play that can help with this is
Cardalis

B:Billing, C:Med note, CB:Call back, CK:Check-in, CM:Communications, D:Diagnosis, DH:Declined to history, E:Examination, ES:Estimates,
I:Departing instr, L:Lab result, M:Image cases, P:Prescription, PA:PVL Accepted, PB:problems, PP:PVL Performed, PR:PVL Recommended,
R:Correspondence, T:Images, TC:Tentative medl note, V:Vital signs

Page  3 of 30 Date: 4/20/2018 5:17
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

I have submitted blood for a taurine level.  The result may not return for 2 weeks.
In the mean time, please start Taurine at home, 2 gram two times a day with food.
This can be purchased at any health food store.  I will call in about 2 weeks with a
taurine level.

MEDICATIONS:
Furosemide 50 mg tablets 1 1/2 tablet two times a day
Furosemide: Also called Salix or Lasix.  This is a diuretic and will help clear the fluid
from your pet’s lungs.  Your pet may drink more on this medication.  Side effects
include electrolyte abnormalities (if they stop eating), dehydration and kidney
enzyme elevations.  The blood work can be done to monitor these.  This
medication will be probably given for the life of your pet.
YOU CAN GET REFILLS OF THIS MEDICATION FROM YOUR VETERINARIAN
OR HERE.  THIS SIZE TABLET IS NOT AVAILABLE IN HUMAN PHARMACIES.

Pimobendan 10 mg tiny tablets  - 1 tablet two times a day
Pimobendan is a phosphodiasterase inhibitor that gives increased contractility and
arterial vasodilation. This will help the heart function better, allow you dog to feel
better and live longer.  Any medication can upset the stomach.  This drug does not
typically cause this, but if you see any changes, please stop the drug till you talk to
a doctor here at .  PLEASE GIVE THIS MEDICATION WITH 
MEALS.  Even though package insert recommends giving on empty stomach, we
have adjusted the dose so that you can give with meals.  Giving on empty stomach
is more likely to make your pet nauseous.
We will script this drug through   Please call them in 4-5
days to order it, once we see that your dog will tolerate the drug.

Watch for the following clinical signs and call a veterinarian if you see any of these:
Excessive panting or wheezing
Restlessness, unable to get comfortable
Decreased appetite
Lethargy/weakness, less interactive or hiding
Collapse or fainting
Sudden rear leg or front leg lameness
Open-mouth breathing

It has been a pleasure meeting you and caring for your  Thank you for
entrusting us with her care. If you have any further questions or problems, don’t
hesitate to call.

2/23/2018 P 30.00 tablet of Pimobendan 10mg tiny tab (cpd)  (MMP0T8)
Rx #: 2852563   0 Of 10 Refills
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Client: Patient:
Phone: Species: Canine Breed: Retriever, Golden

Address: Age: 6 Yrs. 2 Mos. Sex: Neutered Male
Color: Blonde

Date Type Staff History

1 TABLET BY MOUTH TWO TIMES A DAY
2/23/2018 P 100.00 tablet of Lasix (Salix / Furosemide) 50mg Tablet (M569)

Rx #: 2852561   0 Of 12 Refills
1 1/2 TABLETS BY MOUTH TWO TIMES A DAY

2/23/2018 C CARDIAC EVALUTION - CLOSED 02/24/2018 - Cardiac Evaluation

Date of evaluation:  Friday, February 23, 2018

CHIEF COMPLAINT:  tachypnea

HISTORY: last 3 days has been working hard to breath.  No coughing.  Appetite has been poor last 2 days,
usually ravenous.  Energy level seems down.  No cardiac medications On 1/2 10 mg pred EOD for over year,
Tried thyroid medication but stopped it, did not help.  Has long history of panting and swallowing disorder.

PHYSICAL EXAM:   BAR.  HR = 120, regular rhythm, no murmur, gallop noted,  pulses normal and
synchronous.  Mild tachypnea but panting, when rests lying down, still tachypnea.  Normal bronchovesicular
sounds bilaterally, no crackles or wheezes ausculted.  BCS 5/9  PCS 0/4

ECHOCARDIOGRAM 2/23/18:  BW 40 kg  BSA 1.14
IVSd: 10 mm LVIDd: 64 mm LVPWd:  9 mm EPSS 21 mm
IVSs: 14 mm LVIDs: 52  mm LVPWs: 11 mm %FS: 19  % Pa: 21 mm
Ao:  24 mm     LAD:  43 mm LA:Ao ratio 1.79 LA max: 48 mm LLAD: 56 mm
RWT = IVSd+LVPWd/LVIDd = 0.30, LVID long 90 mm, Sphericity index 1.41 (Lax/Sax,<1.65=increased sphericity).
Norm LA:Ao < 1.7, Normal LLAD < 42.93 mm, LVIDdn = 2.16  (N<1.73), LIVDsn = 1.63 (N<1.4)
MV E vel: 132, MV Dec T:89, MV A vel: 67, IVRT:71 ms, E:A 1.97 (N 1-2)E:IVRT 1.86 (N<2.5) Ea 10 E:Ea 13.2 (N<14.5)
Pa distensibility (mm): 11.7 - 5 = 57 %, PEP/ET = 96/170 = 0.56,  > 0.4 is abnormal, with myocardial failure
Tricuspid peak flow velocity 3.2 m/s, gradient 41 mmHg, acceleration time 88 ms, PAET 177 ms, ratio = 0.50
(ratio greater than 0.30 is considered normal)
100% spec for PH if AT< 45 ms +/or AT:ET < 0.25, 100% spec for Normal if AT>64 ms +/or AT:ET > 0.42
Grey zone for predicting:  AT <58 ms (Se 88%, Sp 80%), AT:ET < 0.31 (Se 73% and Sp 87%)

COMMENTS:  dilated LV with poor systolic function.  Left atrial enlargement.  Large EPSS. Moderate MR and
TR. Reduce aortic and pulmonic flows.  no pleural or pericardial effusion

DIAGNOSIS/PROBLEM LIST:  dilated cardiomyopathy (DCM), left side congestive heart failure (LCHF)

SUMMARY:  The dilated cardiomyopathy may be related to diet and taurine deficiency.  There have been
personal communications amongst cardiologist of a rash of cases of Golden Retrievers on grain free and/or
kangaroo diets that have taurine deficiency cardiomyopathy.  We pulled a whole blood level taurine today and
started 2 grams of taurine BID.  I also started furosemide and pimobendan as below.  If taurine deficiency
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

cardiomyopathy, this could be reversible.  It could take 2 months to see echo changes, but dog may feel better
within a month.  Recheck echocardiogram in 2 months.  We should recheck a taurine level in 2 weeks.  They
will most likely do that with .
MEDICATIONS:
Furosemide 50 mg tablets 1 1/2 tablet two times a day
Pimobendan 10 mg tiny tablets  - 1 tablet two times a day
Taurine at home, 2 grams two times a day with food.

2/23/2018 V Feb 23, 2018 01:06 PM Staff: 
------------------------------
Weight            : 40.00 kilograms
   room 14

2/23/2018 CK CHF poss, setup by rdvm
Reason for Visit: Consult
Date Patient Checked Out: 02/23/18 Practice TF

2/23/2018 CB Callback - Call Client Back (CB)
---- Note from  on 2/23/2018 at 15:51:32 ----
Called , spoke to .
---- Note from  on 2/23/2018 at 15:06:34
----
Pimobendan  10 mg tiny tablets  - 1 tablet two times a day, #100, 8
refills

2/22/2018 TC RECORDS FROM RDVM/LDVM (see attachment) - TENTATIVE
2/22/2018     14:47     rDVM records attached.  -  Attachment(s)

3/10/2017 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
3/10/2017     10:26
updated owner regarding  recommending trial of soloxine. can be low from
pred. but worth a try. can consider fluoro study in future. called into rdvm thyrotab
0.8 mg bid ; recheck t4 4 hours post pill in a month

3/8/2017 L Endocrinology results from 
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

Test          Result               Reference Range
TSH           <0.03 ng/mL          0 - 0.60
 Ascn:   Profile: 

3/7/2017 C RAD RADIOLOGY REVIEW - CLOSED 03/08/2017
The right lateral views of the neck and thorax obtained today have been reviewed.
There are no significant abnormalities in the extra-thoracic soft tissues, visible skeletal structures, pleural space, pulmonary
parenchyma and vessels, cardiovascular structures, mediastinum, and cranial abdomen.
An endoscopic evaluation may be considered for further investigation of the previously diagnosed arytenoid nodule.

This review was written by: 

3/7/2017 V Mar 7, 2017 04:21 PM Staff: 
------------------------------
Weight            : 41.40 kilograms

3/7/2017 CK recheck for 
Reason for Visit: Recheck
Date Patient Checked Out: 03/07/17 Practice TF

3/7/2017 C IM PHYSICAL EXAM NEW
3/7/2017     10:10

Chief Complaint: reevaluation of hard swallowing; upper airway noise

History:  was originally evaluated in 2015 for hard swallowing, gagging. A
laryngeal exam at that time revealed a nodule on the larynx which was biopsied as
granulomatous. He has been on low dose prednisone since. Owner still notices
hard swallowing and sometimes regurgitation.  He also has upper airway noise
when sleeping- breathes through nose and no nasal disharge. Occasional hoarse
bark. No diarrhea, no pu/pd. He has gained weight. In 2015 a myasthenia titer was
negative. Diet includes zignature kangeroo. unsure of current dose of pred 1 tab in
morning and sometimes 1/2 tab at night unsure what strength

Previous Medical Problems:
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

Medications/Supplements:

Current Diet:
- Frequency:
- Amount:
Subjective:
  Mentation: Quiet, Alert, Responsive
Objective Findings
Temperature: 101.8     Pulse: 100     Respiration: panting     MM: Pink/CRT < 1 sec.
Hydration Status: normal
Pain Score: /4
Weight: 41.4 kilograms
Body Condition Score/Muscle Score: 8/9/
Oropharyngeal: Normal
Eyes/Ears: fundic normal
Integument: Normal
Peripheral Lymph Nodes: Normal size
Cardiovascular/Respiratory: heart ausculted normal; lungs clear; occasionally hard
swallowing in the room
Abdominal Palpation: There was no obvious mass or organomegaly, and the
abdomen was non-painful.
Urogenital: Normal
Musculoskeletal/neurologic: normal ambulation; weak gag; hard swallowing during
exam
Rectal: Normal

Diagnostics:
Lab Work: see below
Radiographic Findings: Thoracic radiograph unremarkable- no megaesophageous,
lateral laryngeal radiograph normal
Other Diagnostics:

Problems/Differential Diagnoses/Assesssment:
Hard swallowing- rule out esophageal motility disorder, laryngeal / pharyngeal
dysfunction , other types of neuromuscular condition; Low T4 consider secondary
to chronic pred,  hypothyroidism. Can consider trial of soloxine and recheck after a
month.  Other diagnostics to consider would be a fluoroscopy study of Leo
swallowing.

Treatment:
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Plan/Recommendations:

3/7/2017 L     Hematology results from Requisition
ID:        Posted      Final
Test          Result               Reference Range
HCT           45 %                 36 - 60
HGB           14.9 g/dL            12.1 - 20.3
MCHC          33 g/dL              30 - 38
WBC           19.6 10^3/uL H       4.0 - 15.5
Bands         0 %                  0 - 3
RBC           6.1 10^6/uL          4.8 - 9.3
MCV           73 fL                58 - 79
MCH           24.3 pg              19 - 28
ABS BASO      0 /uL                0 - 150
Platelet C    128 10^3/uL L        170 - 400
Platelet E    ADEQUATE
Neutrophil    91 % H               60 - 77
Lymphocyte    6 % L                12 - 30
Monocytes     3 %                  3 - 10
Eosinophil    0 % L                2 - 10
Basophils     0 %                  0 - 1
Absolute N    17836 /uL H          2060 - 10600
Absolute L    1176 /uL             690 - 4500
Absolute M    588 /uL              0 - 840
Absolute E    0 /uL                0 - 1200
 Ascn:   Profile: Complete Blood Count

 Platelet count reflects the minimum number due to platelet
clumping.

3/7/2017 L     Chemistry results from Requisition
ID:        Posted      Final
Test          Result               Reference Range
ALB           3.8 g/dL             2.7 - 4.4
ALKP          48 IU/L              5 - 131
ALT           33 IU/L              12 - 118
AMYL          461 IU/L             290 - 1125
AST           15 IU/L              15 - 66
BUN/UREA      19 mg/dL             6 - 31
Ca            10.0 mg/dL           8.9 - 11.4
Chloride      109 mEq/L            102 - 120
CHOL          209 mg/dL            92 - 324
CK            67 IU/L              59 - 895
CREA          0.2 mg/dL L          0.5 - 1.6
GGT           2 IU/L               1 - 12

B:Billing, C:Med note, CB:Call back, CK:Check-in, CM:Communications, D:Diagnosis, DH:Declined to history, E:Examination, ES:Estimates,
I:Departing instr, L:Lab result, M:Image cases, P:Prescription, PA:PVL Accepted, PB:problems, PP:PVL Performed, PR:PVL Recommended,
R:Correspondence, T:Images, TC:Tentative medl note, V:Vital signs

Page  9 of 30 Date: 4/20/2018 5:17
PM

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000882

(b) (6)

(b) (6)
(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)



Patient History Report
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GLU           72 mg/dL             70 - 138
Mg            1.9 mEq/L            1.5 - 2.5
PHOS          4.6 mg/dL            2.5 - 6.0
Potassium     4.5 mEq/L            3.6 - 5.5
Sodium        148 mEq/L            139 - 154
TBIL          0.2 mg/dL            0.1 - 0.3
TP            6.6 g/dL             5.0 - 7.4
TRIG          32 mg/dL             29 - 291
GLOB          2.8 g/dL             1.6 - 3.6
A/G Ratio     1.4                  0.8 - 2.0
B/C Ratio     95  H                4 - 27
Na/K Ratio    33                   27 - 38

3/7/2017 L Endocrinology results from 
    Requisition ID:        Posted      Final

Test          Result               Reference Range
T4            0.6 ug/dL L          0.8 - 3.5
 Ascn:   Profile: Total T4

 The Total T4 result is less than 1.0 mcg/dl. A Free-T4 by
equilibrium
 dialysis may be helpful in supporting the diagnosis of
hypothyroidism
 in patients demonstrating clinical signs compatible with
 hypothyroidism.Please contact Customer Service for this
additional
 testing.

3/7/2017 L Miscellaneous results from 
    Requisition ID:        Posted      Final

Ascn:   Profile: Superchem
RE: 1045 PrecisionP 50 U/L 24 - 140
Pancreatitis is unlikely, but a normal PrecisionPSL result
does not completely
exclude pancreatitis as a cause for gastrointestinal signs.
RE: 11067 Comment
Hemolysis 1+ No significant interference.

3/6/2017 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
3/6/2017     12:55
sto confirmed appt w/ @ 330 on 3/7
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Date Type Staff History

2/26/2017 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
2/26/2017     10:15
LMOM to confirm 3:30 pm  appt tomorrow

2/23/2017 TC RECORDS FROM RDVM/LDVM (see attachment) - TENTATIVE
2/23/2017     20:36     Records from   -  Attachment(s)

2/23/2017 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH DOCTOR
2/23/2017     17:18
SW  of  to request updated records from 5/3/15 forward be
faxed

2/20/2016 C RECEPTION ACTIONS NOTE
faxed ref letters and labs to  per req

9/28/2015 C OUTSIDE PHARMACY RX     ***ADDENDUM 10/2/2015 - Closed Sep 30/2015
Rx #: 0172

Prescribing doctor: 

Pharmacy prescription called in to: 

Pharmacy Phone #: 
Pharmacy Fax #: 

Medication: Doxycycline 100mg

Quantity and Unit of Measure: #56

# of Refills: none

Rx Instructions: 2t po q12h

Is this medication a controlled substance?
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Additional Comments: faxed
ADDENDUM on 10/1/2015 at 21:11:18 from 
Re-faxed as per request of .
ADDENDUM on 10/2/2015 at 11:27:39 from 
they only have 200mg tablets
ADDENDUM on 10/2/2015 at 13:26:23 from 
Owner said  charged more than Target, refaxing script to Target fax

.

9/28/2015 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
9/28/2015     13:29

 was good for 2 months, then small flair up, then went away again for a few
months. last time, we discussed repeat abx treat may not be helpful. discussed that
we can repeat abx treatment as it worked for such a long period of time. discussed
dual treatment for bartonella vs considering doxycycline and niacinamide.
will try doxy/niacinamide and recheck 2 wks.
will rx doxy to local rdvm, niacinamide 500 mg PO q 8 hr to get at local health store
(OTC)

6/1/2015 C OUTSIDE PHARMACY RX - Closed Jun 04/2015
Rx #: 

Prescribing doctor: 

Pharmacy prescription called in to: Target Pharmacy

Pharmacy Phone #: 
Pharmacy Fax #:

Medication: Doxycycline 100 mg

Quantity and Unit of Measure: #60/ 100 mg

# of Refills: 0

Rx Instructions: Give 2 tab PO q 12hr

Is this medication a controlled substance? Yes     No

Additional Comments: Called into Target Pharmacy in 
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Date Type Staff History

6/1/2015 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
6/1/2015     16:05
within the last 3 days stopped doing the neck movement/episodes that he was
having. still sounds congested. when he barks there sounds like there is something
in there. would continue abx for bartonella unless we are planning to rescope him.
owner needs refill of doxycyline. will touch base in 1-2 wks.

5/17/2015 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
5/17/2015     10:26
swo and asked how  is doing, owner said she started ab's yesterday and so far
he is doing well, owner will recheck in one week

5/15/2015 C OUTSIDE PHARMACY RX - Closed May 17/2015
Rx #: 0042

Prescribing doctor: 

Pharmacy prescription called in to: 

Pharmacy Phone #: n/a
Pharmacy Fax #: 

Medication: Enrofloxacin 136mg

Quantity and Unit of Measure: 45

# of Refills: 0

Rx Instructions: Give 1.5 tab (204mg) po q 24hr

Is this medication a controlled substance?

Additional Comments: Faxed to 

5/15/2015 C OUTSIDE PHARMACY RX
Rx #: 90115000043
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Prescribing doctor: 

Pharmacy prescription called in to: Target- 

Pharmacy Phone #: 
Pharmacy Fax #:

Medication: Doxycycline 100mg

Quantity and Unit of Measure: #60

# of Refills: 0

Rx Instructions: Give 2 tab PO q12hr

Is this medication a controlled substance? No

Additional Comments:

5/15/2015 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT     ***ADDENDUM 5/15/2015
5/15/2015     16:27
SWO per , cost of bartonella test is $342 which is something she can do via
tech appt. or if O would prefer  is OK with treating with AB's w/o testing.  O
wanted to know how long the course of AB's would be- per  it would be a 2-4
week course.  O also wanted to know if there is a chance of needing another
course of AB's after the initial 2-4wk course, per  P would not go on another
course of AB's at that point.  O would like go to skip blood test due to cost and try
treating with AB's first.  Would like called into Target Pharmacy in 
ADDENDUM on 5/15/2015 at 18:45:06 from 
called O, there are two medications- one is only veterinary can call into 

 and the other can be called into target in .  O OK with this plan.
Called  into target pharm and rx to be faxed to .

5/12/2015 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
5/12/2015     14:50
called owner with results. granulomatous inflammation. can be infectious,
inflammatory or immune mediated disease. discussed type of inflammation
present, there is concern for possible infectious organism. discussed bartonella
and that this can be difficult to diagnose. discussed triple blood draw and
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Address: Age: 6 Yrs. 2 Mos. Sex: Neutered Male
Color: Blonde

Date Type Staff History

performing PCR and serology. discussed infecitous disease CE and the
recommendations for testing for bartonella.  will look into cost for tests and then
take it from there. this may not be the cause for his signs. discussed whether
inflammation causes dysfunction or dysfunction started first. may need steroids or
doxepin. will be in touch with owner as soon as i can get pricing information.
last night he had the worst night. couldn't lay down. panting like crazy.

5/12/2015 C IM TREATMENT NEW
5/12/2015

Internal Medicine Assessment: is a 2 yo MN golden retriever with episodes of
swallowing and what appears to he "air sucking" behavior.  ddx include laryngeal,
pharyngeal disease, esophageal disease, epiglottal entrapment, epiglottal
retroversion

nodule on vocal fold with assymetry of arytenoid function: granulomatous
inflammation

consider infectious disease screening; however due to length of time this has been
doing on this is considered less likely. Consider treatment with anti-inflammatory
doses of prednisone for possible immune mediated vs sterile inflammation

if no improvement with either abx therapy, anti-inflammatory to possibly
immunosuppressive  steroid therapy, consider doxepin

Treatment: no treatment implemented today

Recommended Follow-up Care: looking into pricing for bartonella testing. will
recheck/touch base with owner when this is available; may go to local rDVM for
testing due to proximity

5/8/2015 L Miscellaneous results from 
    Requisition ID:        Posted      Final

Ascn:   Profile: Histopathology, Full Written
Report
RE: 7801 History:
Nodule on glottal opening. Episodes since he was 9 months
old.
Episodes are described as extending his neck repeatedly and
gagging/choking and swallowing.  would swallow hard
repeatedly and
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have continual lip licking with a stridorous noise when
breathing. He
licks the air. He will intermittently vomit, but not with
every
episode. He has been treated with sucralfate, Cerenia and
Pepcid. The
Cerenia seems to help, but does not completely resolve the
signs.
-
Received: Multiple fragments - all processed.
RE: 601 Biopsy
DESCRIPTION/MICROSCOPIC FINDINGS/COMMENTS:

Sections of fragments of an ulcerated inflammatory mass
lesion
affecting the glottal region are examined.  This lesion is
composed of
collagen bundles and fibroblasts arranged haphazardly among
moderate
numbers of capillaries.  There are moderate numbers of
neutrophils in
the stroma.  There also is mild edema.  No neoplasia or
infectious
organisms are seen.

MICROSCOPIC FINDINGS: Chronic-active, proliferative and
granulomatous,
inflammation

PROGNOSIS: Good

COMMENT: No neoplasia or infectious organisms are seen.
These
proliferative inflammatory lesions are common.  Most of these
lesions
develop secondary to ruptured ducts of submucosal glands but
some are
a reaction to a small penetrating foreign body.  Excision
usually is
curative.

PATHOLOGIST:

PATHOLOGIST:   DVM, 
email: , ph:

5/7/2015 I For your pet's safety, he/she was intubated for the anesthetic.  You may notice
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some coughing for the next couple of days.  This is normal due to a small amount
of irritation to the throat from the endotracheal tube.  If the coughing seems
excessive please contact our office.

5/7/2015 I  received an anesthetic.  Please keep him confined until full recovery.  Restrict
water intake to small amounts at a time for the next 12-24 hours.  Restrict food
intake to small amounts also; 1/3 of the normal ration this evening.  Because the
anesthetic can lower his body temperature, keep him where it is warm and dry.

5/7/2015 I Today's oropharyngeal exam revealed a small white nodule, irregular on the left
medial aspect, mid way up vocal fold. with suspected kissing lesion on the right
aryepiglottic fold; Assymetry to the left and right arytenoid with seemingly
inappropriate function of the left with collapse towards midline; both arytenoids
were able to abduct when inspiring but were asymmetrical when this was occurring.
edematous and swollen corniculate tubercle bilaterally; prominent tonsils which
were erythematous and out of crytps
 - nodule on vocal fold with assymetry of arytenoid function: r/o: pharyngeal or
laryngeal dysfunction secondary to inflammation, neurogenic or infitrative

5/7/2015 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
5/7/2015     14:10
called owner post procedure.  discussed scope findings. and discussed possible
causes for findings. no treatment recommended until results available. okay to d/c
at 5 pm.

5/7/2015 C ENDOSCOPIC EVALUATION
Upper Gastrointestinal:  oropharyngeal exam: small white nodule, irregular on the
left medial aspect, mid way up vocal fold. with suspected kissing lesion on the right
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

Lower Gastrointestinal:

Bronchoscopy:

Rhinoscopy:

Cystoscopy:
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Other:

Biopsies:  3 biopsies obtained with minimal bleeding

Culture/Sensitivity:
Visual Inspection:  suspected dysfunction of the left arytenoid with nodule present
on the left vocal fold.

Initial Recommendations:  consider doxepin 100 mg PO q 12 hr pending biopsy
results.

5/7/2015 C IM TREATMENT NEW
5/7/2015

Internal Medicine Assessment:  is a 2 yo MN golden retriever with episodes of
swallowing and what appears to he "air sucking" behavior.  ddx include laryngeal,
pharyngeal disease, esophageal disease, epiglottal entrapment, epiglottal
retroversion

nodule on vocal fold with assymetry of arytenoid function: r/o: pharyngeal or
laryngeal dysfunction secondary to inflammation, neurogenic or infitrative

Treatment: no treatment today

Recommended Follow-up Care: pending biopsies consider doxepin 100 mg PO q
12 hr

5/7/2015 C IM PHYSICAL EXAM
Chief Complaint:

History:   presented for endoscopic evaluation - prior hx:

 is a 3 yo MN golden retriever presenting for further evaluation of episodes that
he has been having since he was 9 months old. He was evaluated in May 2014 and
lab work and u/s were performed but did not elucidate the cause of his episodes.
He was additionally evaluated by  and the owner was told the problem was likely
neurological but may not be treatable. The owner says the episodes are becoming
more frequent and lasting longer.  The episodes are described as extending his
neck repeatedly and gagging/choking and swallowing.  The owner showed a video
at the consult and this behavior was witnessed where  would swallow hard

B:Billing, C:Med note, CB:Call back, CK:Check-in, CM:Communications, D:Diagnosis, DH:Declined to history, E:Examination, ES:Estimates,
I:Departing instr, L:Lab result, M:Image cases, P:Prescription, PA:PVL Accepted, PB:problems, PP:PVL Performed, PR:PVL Recommended,
R:Correspondence, T:Images, TC:Tentative medl note, V:Vital signs

Page 18 of 30 Date: 4/20/2018 5:17
PM

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000891

(b) (6) (b) (6)
(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)



Patient History Report
Client: Patient:
Phone: Species: Canine Breed: Retriever, Golden
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repeatedly and have continual lip licking with a stridorous noise when breathing.
The owner initially thought he had a hard time breathing. He licks the air. These
episodes can occur anytime of day or night. It is initiated by drinking and occured in
the exam room after drinking water. Eating is not as much of a trigger. He is eating
dry food which the owner waters down. The owner has not tried canned food.  She
doesn't think that the episodes are related to consistency. He does not have
episodes when active and out/about.  He seems to have episodes when lying down
or the owner will wake up and he will be doing this behavior.  On the evening of an
episode he will snore when sleeping.  When he has an episode, heads to the
front door to go outside and eat grass. He will intermittently vomit but not with every
episode.  He has no diarrhea. He is eating well. He seems to be acting normally
otherwise.  He has been treated with sucralfate, cerenia and pepcid. The cerenia
seems to help but doesn't completely resove the signs.  He has no travel history.
He is currently not receiving any medication. He receives flea and tick prevention.
He has no other medical problems reported.

Significant Physical Exam Findings:  Mentation: BAR
Temperature: 102.4   Pulse: 100     Respiration: panting     MM: Pink/CRT < 1 sec.
Hydration Status: adequate
Weight: 36.6 kilograms
Body Condition Score: 7/9
Oropharyngeal: minimal dental disease; no lesions noted; normal nasal planum;
normal cervical palpation
Eyes/Ears: clear OU; fundic exam WNL OU; clean AU
Integument: full coat; no ectoparasites
Peripheral Lymph Nodes: Normal size
Cardiovascular/Respiratory: no murmur, no arrhythmia, ssp, normal bv sounds,
eupneic
Abdominal Palpation: There was no obvious mass or organomegaly, and the
abdomen was non-painful.
Urogenital: neutered male; no prepucial d/c
Musculoskeletal/neurologic: Normal ambulation 4; weak gag; remaining CN WNL;
CP WNL; A complete neurologic and orthopedic exam was not performed.

Lab Work:  Chemistry: BUN: 11, Creat: 1.4 - NSF
CBC: HCT: 46.9%, WBC: 8.14, neut: 4.10, PLT: 57k

Radiographic Findings:  CHIEF COMPLAINT/HISTORY: 5/3/2015. Internal
Medicine Assessment:  is a 2 yo MN golden retriever with episodes of
swallowing and what appears to be "air sucking" behavior.  ddx include laryngeal,
pharyngeal disease, esophageal disease, epiglottal entrapment, epiglottal
retroversion, primary GI disease unlikely, neuro disease -functional problem vs
focal seizure.
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FINDINGS: Three views of the thorax are available for review.

No significant abnormalities are present in the extra-thoracic soft tissues, skeletal
structures, pleural and mediastinal spaces, pulmonary and cardiovascular
structures, as well as in the visible cranial abdomen.

SUMMARY/CONCLUSIONS:

1. Normal thorax with no evidence of megaesophagus.

5/7/2015 L Chemistry results from  In-clinic
    Laboratory Requisition ID:        Posted      Final

Test          Result               Reference Range
ALB =         3.2 g/dL             2.3 - 4.0
ALKP =        73 U/L               23 - 212
ALT =         31 U/L               10 - 125
AMYL =        744 U/L              500 - 1500
BUN/UREA =    11 mg/dL             7 - 27
Ca =          9.4 mg/dL            7.9 - 12.0
Chloride =    112 mmol/L           109 - 122
CHOL =        257 mg/dL            110 - 320
CREA =        1.4 mg/dL            0.5 - 1.8
GGT <         < 0 U/L              0 - 11
GLU =         97 mg/dL             74 - 143
LIPA =        1120 U/L             200 - 1800
PHOS =        4.0 mg/dL            2.5 - 6.8
Potassium =   4.7 mmol/L           3.5 - 5.8
Sodium =      153 mmol/L           144 - 160
TBIL =        0.3 mg/dL            0.0 - 0.9
TP =          6.0 g/dL             5.2 - 8.2
GLOB =        2.8 g/dL             2.5 - 4.5
ALB/GLOB =    1.1
BUN/CREA =    8
Na/K =        33
OSM calc =    303 mmol/kg

PCV=49% TS= 6.8g/dl (serum norm)

5/7/2015 V May 7, 2015 10:20 AM Staff: 
------------------------------
Weight            : 36.60 kilograms
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Temperature       : 102.4
Pulse             : 100
Respiration       : pant
   mm pk, crt <2s

5/7/2015 L Hematology results from  In-clinic
    Laboratory Requisition ID:        Posted      Final

Test          Result               Reference Range
HCT =         46.9 %               37.3 - 61.7
HGB =         16.3 g/dL            13.1 - 20.5
MCHC =        34.8 g/dL            32.0 - 37.9
WBC =         8.14 K/uL            5.05 - 16.76
NEUT =        4.10 K/uL            2.95 - 11.64
%NEUT =       50.4 %
EOS =         0.71 K/uL            0.06 - 1.23
%EOS =        8.7 %
PLT *         * 57 K/uL L          148 - 484
Retics =      21.5 K/uL            10.0 - 110.0
%Retics =     0.3 %
RBC =         6.94 M/uL            5.65 - 8.87
MCV =         67.6 fL              61.6 - 73.5
MCH =         23.5 pg              21.2 - 25.9
RDW =         18.1 %               13.6 - 21.7
MPV -         --.-- fL             8.7 - 13.2
PDW -         --.-- fL             9.1 - 19.4
PCT -         --.-- %              0.14 - 0.46
LYMPHS =      2.88 K/uL            1.05 - 5.10
%LYMPHS =     35.4 %
MONOS =       0.43 K/uL            0.16 - 1.12
%MONOS =      5.3 %
BASO =        0.02 K/uL            0.00 - 0.10
%BASO =       0.2 %

5/7/2015 C RADIOLOGY REPORT - FINAL 05/07/2015
RADIOGRAPHIC REPORT

CHIEF COMPLAINT/HISTORY: 5/3/2015. Internal Medicine Assessment:  is a 2 yo MN golden retriever with episodes
of swallowing and what appears to be "air sucking" behavior.  ddx include laryngeal, pharyngeal disease, esophageal
disease, epiglottal entrapment, epiglottal retroversion, primary GI disease unlikely, neuro disease -functional problem vs
focal seizure.

FINDINGS: Three views of the thorax are available for review.
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No significant abnormalities are present in the extra-thoracic soft tissues, skeletal structures, pleural and mediastinal
spaces, pulmonary and cardiovascular structures, as well as in the visible cranial abdomen.

SUMMARY/CONCLUSIONS:

1. Normal thorax with no evidence of megaesophagus.

5/7/2015 CK Drop off for procedure w/  - CXR, chem III, CBC
Reason for Visit: Medicine Procedure
Date Patient Checked Out: 05/07/15 Practice TF

5/6/2015 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
5/6/2015     11:48
Spoke to O and confirmed  procedure for tomorrow. Dropping off between
9:30 -10am.  Told O no food after midnight and no water after 6am tomorrow.  O
knows she will not speak to  at drop off.  She thanked me for calling.

5/3/2015 C IM TREATMENT NEW
5/3/2015

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
focal seizure

recommend further evaluation including thoracic radiographs, sedated oral exam
and endoscopy +/- fluoroscopy and esophagram.

Treatment: no treatment implemented

Recommended Follow-up Care: to return Thursday for further evaluation -
chemistry, CBC thoracic radiographs, oral exam and endoscopy
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5/3/2015 C IM PHYSICAL EXAM
Chief Complaint:

History:   is a 3 yo MN golden retriever presenting for further evaluation of
episodes that he has been having since he was 9 months old. He was evaluated in
May 2014 and lab work and u/s were performed but did not elucidate the cause of
his episodes.  He was additionally evaluated by  and the owner was told the
problem was likely neurological but may not be treatable. The owner says the
episodes are becoming more frequent and lasting longer.  The episodes are
described as extending his neck repeatedly and gagging/choking and swallowing.
The owner showed a video at the consult and this behavior was witnessed where

 would swallow hard repeatedly and have continual lip licking with a stridorous
noise when breathing.   The owner initially thought he had a hard time breathing.
He licks the air. These episodes can occur anytime of day or night. It is initiated by
drinking and occured in the exam room after drinking water. Eating is not as much
of a trigger. He is eating dry food which the owner waters down. The owner has not
tried canned food.  She doesn't think that the episodes are related to consistency.
He does not have episodes when active and out/about.  He seems to have
episodes when lying down or the owner will wake up and he will be doing this
behavior.  On the evening of an episode he will snore when sleeping.  When he has
an episode,  heads to the front door to go outside and eat grass. He will
intermittently vomit but not with every episode.  He has no diarrhea. He is eating
well. He seems to be acting normally otherwise.  He has been treated with
sucralfate, cerenia and pepcid. The cerenia seems to help but doesn't completely
resove the signs.  He has no travel history. He is currently not receiving any
medication. He receives flea and tick prevention. He has no other medical
problems reported.

Significant Physical Exam Findings:  Mentation: BAR
Temperature: 101.7   Pulse: 100     Respiration: panting     MM: Pink/CRT < 1 sec.
Hydration Status: adequate
Weight: 36.7 kilograms
Body Condition Score: 7.9
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

Lab Work:  none performed today

Radiographic Findings:  none performed today

5/3/2015 CK Reason for Visit: Recheck
Date Patient Checked Out: 05/03/15 Practice 

11/21/2014 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
11/21/2014     13:54
SWO - Myasthenia gravis test was negative, and so the next step for  would be
an esophageal scope to determine the cause for his clinical signs. Owner thankful,
will call and schedule with IM after thanksgiving.

11/14/2014 CK swallowing issues
Reason for Visit: Consult
Date Patient Checked Out: 11/14/14 Practice 

5/31/2014 C IM TREATMENT NEW
5/31/2014

Internal Medicine Assessment:  is a 2 yo MN golden retriever with usual
episodes of swallowing and what appears to he "air sucking" behavior.  ddx include
laryngeal, pharyngeal disease, esophageal disease, primary GI disease, neuro
disease -functional problem vs focal seizure

Chemistry - NSF
CBC - NSF
T4: WNL

No evidence of endocrine or metabolic disease based on screening labs.

B:Billing, C:Med note, CB:Call back, CK:Check-in, CM:Communications, D:Diagnosis, DH:Declined to history, E:Examination, ES:Estimates,
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Patient History Report
Client: ) Patient:
Phone: Species: Canine Breed: Retriever, Golden

Address: Age: 6 Yrs. 2 Mos. Sex: Neutered Male
Color: Blonde

Date Type Staff History

Treatment: no treatment implemented at this time

Recommended Follow-up Care: recheck after owner discusses steps with
insurance company - to consider chest radiographs, neuro consult, sedated oral
exam and endoscopy

5/31/2014 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
5/31/2014     11:29
Spoke with owner and relayed that blood results are all normal. owner would like to
speak with insurance prior to scheduling appt. next steps could be to get neuro
consult, sedated oral exam and endoscopy

5/31/2014 L     Hematology results from Requisition
ID:        Posted      Final
Test          Result               Reference Range
HCT           46 %                 36 - 60
HGB           15.9 g/dL            12.1 - 20.3
MCHC          34.6 g/dL            30 - 38
WBC           8.1 10^3/uL          4.0 - 15.5
Bands         0 %                  0 - 3
RBC           6.3 10^6/uL          4.8 - 9.3
MCV           73 fL                58 - 79
MCH           25.2 pg              19 - 28
Platelet C    158 10^3/uL L        170 - 400
Platelet E    ADEQUATE             ADEQUATE -
Neutrophil    49 % L               60 - 77
Lymphocyte    46 % H               12 - 30
Monocytes     4 %                  3 - 10
Eosinophil    1 % L                2 - 10
Basophils     0 %                  0 - 1
Absolute N    3969 /uL             2060 - 10600
Absolute B    0 /uL                0 - 150
Absolute L    3726 /uL             690 - 4500
Absolute M    324 /uL              0 - 840
Absolute E    81 /uL               0 - 1200
 Ascn:   Profile: CBC

 Platelet count reflects the minimum number due to platelet
clumping.

5/31/2014 L     Chemistry results from Requisition
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
ALB           3.5 g/dL             2.7 - 4.4
ALKP          42 U/L               5 - 131
ALT           28 U/L               12 - 118
AMYL          515 U/L              290 - 1125
AST           20 U/L               15 - 66
BUN/UREA      14 mg/dL             6 - 31
Ca            11.1 mg/dL           8.9 - 11.4
Chloride      109 mEq/L            102 - 120
CHOL          298 mg/dL            92 - 324
CK            40 U/L L             59 - 895
CREA          1.2 mg/dL            0.5 - 1.6
GGT           6 U/L                1 - 12
GLU           91 mg/dL             70 - 138
LIPA          428 U/L              77 - 695
Mg            1.7 mEq/L            1.5 - 2.5
PHOS          4.0 mg/dL            2.5 - 6.0
Potassium     4.8 mEq/L            3.6 - 5.5
Sodium        145 mEq/L            139 - 154
TBIL          0.1 mg/dL            0.1 - 0.3
TP            5.9 g/dL             5.0 - 7.4
TRIG          113 mg/dL            29 - 291
GLOB          2.4 g/dL             1.6 - 3.6
A/G Ratio     1.5 Ratio            0.8 - 2.0
B/C Ratio     12 Ratio             4 - 27

5/31/2014 L Endocrinology results from 
    Requisition ID:        Posted      Final

Test          Result               Reference Range
T4            1.6 ug/dL            0.8 - 3.5
 Ascn:   Profile: Total T4

5/31/2014 L Miscellaneous results from 
    Requisition ID:        Posted      Final

Ascn:   Profile: Superchem
RE: 1050 Na/K Ratio 30
RE: 11067 Comment
Hemolysis 1+. No significant analyte interference.

5/30/2014 C ULTRASOUND REPORT NEW
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

Recommended Follow-up Care: pending lab results; consider fluroscopy, sedated
oral exam and endoscopy with neuro exam prior.

5/30/2014 C IM PHYSICAL EXAM NEW
5/30/2014     22:58

Presenting Complaint:

History:  is a 2 yo MN golden retriever presenting for episodes that the owner
describes and extending his neck repeatedly and gagging/choking.   The owner
initially thought he had a hard time breathing. He licks the air. These episodes can
occur anytime of day or night. It is not associated with eating or drinking specifically
but does occur after drinking. He seems to have episodes when lying down or the
owner will wake up and he will be doing this behavior.  When he has an episode,

 heads to the front door to go outside and eat grass. He will intermittently vomit
but not with every episode.  He has no diarrhea. He used to have diarrhea until his
diet was switched to natural balance fish and sweet potato.  He has been treated
with sucralfate, cerenia and pepcid. The cerenia seems to help but doesn't
completely resove the signs.  These episodes seemed to start when was 9 mo
old and has been progressively more frequent.  The last 1-2 weeks he is having
daily signs. He has no travel history. He is currently not receiving any medication.
He receives flea and tick prevention. He has no other medical problems reported.

Mentation: BAR
Temperature: 102     Pulse: 100     Respiration: panting     MM: Pink/CRT < 1 sec.
Hydration Status: adequate
Weight: 37.3 kilograms
Body Condition Score: 7.9
Oropharyngeal: minimal dental disease; no lesions noted; normal nasal planum;
normal thyroid palpation
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

Lab Work: cbc, superchem, T4 pending to 

Radiographic Findings: none performed

5/30/2014 I  has unusual signs that appear to be a lot of swallowing air.  At this time it is not
clear why this is happening; however, our plans to further evaluate this include lab
work to rule out metabolic abnormalites, Gi malabsorption or thyroid problems.
These tests are pending and I will call you when results are available. The next
steps would include a neurology consultation, sedated oral exam followed by
endoscopy to evaluate his clinical signs +/- chest radiographs.

5/30/2014 V May 30, 2014 12:26 PM Staff: 
------------------------------
Weight            : 37.30 kilograms

5/30/2014 V May 30, 2014 12:26 PM
------------------------------

5/30/2014 CK Consult for possible scope
Reason for Visit: Consult
Date Patient Checked Out: 05/30/14 Practice TF

5/30/2014 L     Chemistry results from  Services Requisition
ID:        Posted      Final
Test          Result               Reference Range
COBALAMIN     442 ng/L             284 - 836
FOLATE        6.9 ug/L             4.8 - 19.0
 Ascn: 
SS                  MN CANINE

5/29/2014 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
5/29/2014     11:08
swo confirmed 5/30 apt at 1130
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

5/27/2014 C RECEPTION ACTIONS NOTE
Recevied fax from . Placed in box under 

5/27/2014 C RECEPTION ACTIONS NOTE     ***ADDENDUM 5/27/2014
recv'd fax from  and  in black
bx under 
ADDENDUM on 5/27/2014 at 12:49:24 from 
Recv'd fax from . Placed in black box under
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CARDIOLOGY DIET HISTORY FORM  
Please answer the following questions about your pet 

 
Pet’s name:  ______________________ Owner’s name :  _____________________________  Today's date: _____________
                
1. How would you assess your pet's appetite? (mark the point on the line below that best represents your pet's appetite) 

Example:  Poor___________________________________________________Excellent 
 
    Poor___________________________________________________Excellent 
 

2. Have you noticed a change in your pet's appetite over the last 1-2 weeks? (check all that apply) 
�Eats about the same amount as usual      �Eats less than usual     �Eats more than usual    
�Seems to prefer different foods than usual   �Other_______________________________________ 
 

3. Over the last few weeks, has your pet (check one)       
�Lost weight     �Gained weight  �Stayed about the same weight   �Don't know   

 
4. Please list below ALL pet foods, people food, treats, snack, dental chews, rawhides, and any other food item that your pet 

currently eats. Please include the brand, specific product, and flavor so we know exactly what you pet is eating. 
 
Food (include specific product and flavor)  Form   Amount  How often?  Fed since 
Examples are shown in the table – please provide enough detail that we could go do the store and buy the exact same food. 
  

Food (include specific product and flavor) Form Amount How often? Fed since 
Nutro Grain Free Chicken, Lentil, & Sweet Potato Adult dry 1 ½ cup 2x/day Jan 2018 
85% lean hamburger microwaved 3 oz 1x/week Jan 2015 
Pupperoni original beef flavor treat ½ 1x/day Aug 2015 
Rawhide treat 6 inch twist 1x/week Dec 2015 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
*Any additional diet information can be listed on the back of this sheet 
 

5. Do you give any dietary supplements to your pet (for example: vitamins, glucosamine, fatty acids, or any other 
supplements)?       �Yes  �No     If yes, please list which ones and give brands and amounts:  

Brand/Concentration           Amount per day 
Taurine    �Yes  �No ___________________________________________   _______________________ 
Carnitine   �Yes  �No ___________________________________________   _______________________ 
Antioxidants  �Yes  �No ___________________________________________   _______________________ 
Multivitamin   �Yes  �No ___________________________________________   _______________________ 
Fish oil    �Yes  �No ___________________________________________   _______________________ 
Coenzyme Q10  �Yes  �No ___________________________________________   _______________________ 
Other (please list): 
Example: Vitamin C         Nature’s Bounty       500 mg tablets – 1 per day 
_____________________  ___________________________________________   _______________________ 
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
         

6. How do you administer pills to your pet? 
� I do not give any medications   � I put them directly in my pet’s mouth without food 
� I put them in my pet's dog/cat food � I put them in a Pill Pocket or similar product  
� I put them in foods (list foods):________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Information below to be completed by the veterinarian: 
 

Current body weight:  ________________________kg      Current body condition score (1-9):  _____/9       
 

Muscle Condition Score:  �normal muscle   �mild muscle loss   �moderate muscle loss    �severe muscle loss 
FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000904



From: Hartogensis, Martine
To: Palmer, Lee Anne; Jones, Jennifer L; Rotstein, David; Burkholder, William; Norris, Anne; DeLancey, Siobhan
Cc: McDermott, Patrick
Subject: FW: DCM Comms Going Live Today
Date: Thursday, July 26, 2018 11:59:22 AM
Attachments: image001.jpg

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
M: +
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From: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 7:15 PM
To: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Cc: >; Milton, Nanette <Nanette.Milton@fda.hhs.gov>
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
Cc: 
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
 
Sorry about the technical difficulties. GoToMeeting is down around the country, apparently – see
below.
 

 
Please let me know when you’re free to chat. Hopefully we can find time in the next few days to
reschedule.
 
Regards,
 
Peter
O: 
M: +
 

From: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 9:50 AM
To: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Welcome, and the epi slides…
 
Martine
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From: Tabor, Peter [mailto:peter@petfoodinstitute.org] 
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 9:42 AM
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
 
Great – thanks.
 
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

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000909



 
 
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
To: Palmer, Lee Anne; Jones, Jennifer L
Cc: Rotstein, David; Norris, Anne; Burkholder, William
Subject: FW: DCM Information - Champion Petfoods
Date: Tuesday, August 21, 2018 2:52:58 PM
Attachments: Jim Wagner vCard.vcf

Hi Lee Anne,
 
So sorry to bug you again!  Anyway, just wondering if 

 
Many thanks in advance!

Martine
 
 

From: Jim Wagner [mailto:JWagner@championpetfoods.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2018 1:02 PM
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: DCM Information - Champion Petfoods
 
Dr. Hartogensis,
 
Good morning.  I was speaking with Peter Tabor this morning regarding the DCM investigation.
I’m wondering if you could share with me any information regarding 

Thanks very much for your consideration.
 
Kind regards,
 
Jim Wagner
VP | Quality Assurance & Regulatory

Champion Petfoods USA Inc

 C:  

12871 Bowling Green Rd. | Auburn, Kentucky, United States | 42206

The information contained in this message is confidential and is intended for the addressee only. If you have received this message in error or there are

any problems please notify the originator immediately. The unauthorized use, disclosure, copying or alteration of his message is strictly forbidden.
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From: Hartogensis, Martine
To: Jones, Jennifer L; Burkholder, William; Palmer, Lee Anne; Rotstein, David
Cc: Norris, Anne
Subject: FW: Feedback on the September 4 webinar
Date: Monday, September 10, 2018 7:58:14 AM
Attachments: Petfood Industry CDM Webinar Questions.xlsx

Good Morning!
 
Just passing these questions along FYI that were sent in last week following the pet food
industry.com webinar.  Just some issues to consider in the DCM investigation.  

 
Martine
 
 
 

From: Debbie Phillips <DPhillips@wattglobal.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 07, 2018 4:46 PM
To: pfit nutrition <pfitnutrition@gmail.com>; Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu>; Hartogensis,
Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: Norris, Anne <Anne.Norris@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: Feedback on the September 4 webinar
 
Hello Greg, Lisa and Martine:
 
Thank you again for being part of our webinar on Tuesday. It garnered what I believe are record
numbers in every category in terms of the webinars we organize:

Total Registrants = 683
Live Attendees = 360
Survey Responses = 165
 
Typically our webinars draw about 200-300 registrants, with live participation at 30-40%. So these
results show what an important topic this is for the pet food industry.
 
I’m not sure how the survey response rate ranks; I can tell you that the responses showed
overwhelmingly that the topic was relevant or very relevant to respondents, and they were satisfied
to very satisfied with the webinar.
 
We also received what I believe is a record number of questions and comments during the webinar:
97! That’s why I couldn’t get to all of them … but I am sharing them here in the attached
spreadsheet. I color-coded them for the person I thought was most appropriate (if the questioner
didn’t specify the speaker) or as general comments or questions that were answered during the
webinar. (Sorry, I tried sorting according to the color but my Excel skills only go so far!)
 
I don’t necessarily expect you to answer the ones directed to you, but I hope you might find them
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helpful as you continue to study this issue or if you write about it.
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. Thanks again!
 
Have a good weekend,
Debbie
 
DEBBIE PHILLIPS-DONALDSON

Editor-in-Chief, Petfood Industry/Petfood Forum

www.PetfoodIndustry.com

Watt Global Media

Office: +1.815.966.5424

Mobile: 

dphillips@wattglobal.com

Skype: 

www.gotomeet.me/DebbiePhillipsDonaldson

 

Register soon for upcoming Petfood Forum conferences!
Petfood R&D Showcase (Kansas State University, Manhattan, Kansas): October 9-11
Petfood Forum and Petfood Innovation Workshop 2019: April 29-May 1
Petfood Forum Europe 2019: June 13
Visit www.PetfoodForumEvents.com
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     ossible dog food link to cardiomyopathy - Question & Answer 
Blue = Hartogensis        Green = Freeman        Purple = Aldrich         Orange = General questions/comments      Black = Already   

Question Asked

Potatoes have been sold at very high levels for many more years than Grain Free.  How can potatoes be separated out and 
questioned differently since they have been sold for many more years and no evident concern?  Maybe solve quicker and 

What percentage of the dogs with normal taurine levels had both whole blood and plasma taurine tested.

Can you elaborate on the soluble fiber-taurine interaction? Would insoluble fiber generate the same effect?

When Dr. Aldrich said potatoes are playing some part in this  -It it  white and or sweet potatoes?.

Can you ask Dr. Freeman about her research in this, her survey she is asking companies to fill out, and how this data will be 
reported?

For Greg - could he make an estimate on the highest level of legumes to be recommended in a product?

should we carefully advise use of grain free diets for apparently "at risk" breeds/types? Esp. for dogs where grain free is 
human choice rather than canine need.....
For Dr. Freeman: In the study that found Golden Retrievers and Cocker Spaniels had taurine deficiency, was this thought to 
be a genetic issue? Goldens are not usually mentioned in the list of "typical breeds", but Cocker Spaniels are. Also, you 

Can Dr. Hartogenesis repeat the number of cases again and what the break out is?  She went really fast.  Thank you

Is there an increasing trend of case reporting after FDA announcement?

Will FDA take further steps regards this issue? If yes, what the timeline will be?

I represent a vet centric whole food nutrition company and we make both grain and grain free recipes made with real food. 
Our nutritionist learned about the issue through UC Davis 6 months ago. At that time we tested a cohort of dogs on our beef 

Sorry - I meant potatoes are the second ingredient.

We have also failed to see any cardiac issues in year long feeding trials an in our almost 8 years of food production in whole 
food recipes.

Isn't ingredient quality (ie: meal vs real USDA certified meat) a primary factor in amino acid nutrition?

Have any cases involved commercially prepared fresh, whole food diets?

What about working with companies that make grain free diets that do not have this issue? We'd be interested in working 
with the FDA.
Has anyone looked at the source of Taurine used in these cases? You can get taurine from China for less than half the cost 
from japan or NZ.

How many companies involved?  I hav ebeen told it only involves 3 companies?

Please define a "Boutique diet?"

Please define a "bag diet?"

With 6 of the top selling 7 formulas sold in US being grain free  wouldn't you exppect a higher number affected formulas 
being grain free?
Do you think this can have anything to do with the potential lectin content of these foods as this can affect the absorption of 
nutrients?
Dr. Aldrich - with the rise now of the veggie and vegan recipes aren't you afraid that these kind of health problems due 
probably to some misformulation will occur more frequently ? Because grain free just open the door to these new type of 
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Does this still appear to be fairly breed specific

Amy cases of mitral valve disease associated with these diets

Are there new varieities of legumes being grown & used

Was the taurine source looked at in the diet formulas?  I am wondering if there may be an improvement with taurine 
supplementation in the diet vs taurine coming from the ingredients.  

For the dogs taurine, was whole blood, serum or both tested? 

Where are the recommendations Dr. Freeman discussed posted? 

is the current sample size statistically significant?

How many dogs eat grain-free diets or diets with a lot of legume seeds in them?

I am not sure exactly how to phrase this but how often are the dieitary needs of dogs and cats tested? Every couple years to 
address any changes of need? ie Taurine levels

dietary needs in commercial pet food that is

Also being commercial frozen raw pet food doesnt have things like Legumes and are very high in organ meat - how dies this 
effect the Taurine issue?
I get a lot of question from my customers that many vets aren't getting the nutrition training they need. Very Hills and RC 
centered. Any comments on that? Do they have the wrong idea?

Do you have a recommendation for dog owners feeding exotic/grain free/legumes at the moment?

Do you have any figures for this from other countries?  For example the Uk, where grain free is very popular at the moment

does chicken meal have lower leaves of taurine and methionine than chicken by-product meal

Does this reflect in any way on products that have passed AAFCO feeding trials for maintenance that are now correlated with 
DCM? Are AAFCO feeding trials adequate to identify this type of issue?

Will Dr. Freeman please define "boutique"

Is Dr. Aldrich saying that formulating via the "nutrient levels" method not sound??

he seems to be saying that if they haven't done feeding trials, this is where we are going to end up?

Is there a direct correlation between pulses and potatoes with DCM? A recent Washington Post article seemed to point more 
towards pulses/legumes rather than potatoes. 

Is this limited to the US? Any reports coming from Europe?

Pending more information, is there any reason not to supplement with L-Taurine and L-Carnitine?  Any feedback on the 
dosing for dogs? 

1) What is a high level of pulse / legume ingredient in a dog food?

2) Diets fed to case animals - any difference is case numbers between diets containing whole pulses vs pulse fractions  (whole 
peas vs pea protein for example)

Dr. Aldrich mentioned increased fermentation in the colon and I wondered if anyone is studying that potential connection?

Has this webinar been submitted for veterinary CE units?

if rendered meal is a potential issue because of variability of amino acids, is fresh meats that are lightly cooked a better 
source? fresh cooked pet foods using muscle meats that are not rendered meals may be fine. please make a comment on 
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talking to vets will only get the vet to suggest a diet that they sell....this isn't necessarily the answer

Are veterinarian able to give the right nutritional advice, knowing that most veterinarian are not nutritionists, and had very 
limited nutrition training in vet school
Potatoes are not legumes or pulses. They are tubers, also considered nightshades. Are we confident they are also included in 
this or do the potato foods being investigated also include legume ingredients? 
What do we know about the type of protein in the diets investigated? Could the problem be that legumes are very high in 
protein and so the protein levels of these foods are high but the MEAT protein is not? Wouldn't that cause a deficiency in an 

please define "Boutique diet"

define "typical ingredients"

are pet food manufacturers required to test a breakdown of animo acids along with their protein content?

what percent of those ~150 were potato based and not legume/pulse based?

sounds like youre saying validation by feed trials is even more important. yes?

Sounds like diet VARIATION might be an easy recommendation. should we make that one?

Jennifer, Does anyone of them know the taurine value in those kind of diets?

if a pet owner has a dog breed that is predisposed to DCM (great dane or boxer, for instance), and they are feeding a grain 
free diet, would it be recommended to have the dog tested even if the dog has not shown any signs of illness and "appears 

Could there be a role played by solanine or saponin that come from tubers and legumes?

Do we foresee this causing AAFCO to change their nutrient level recommendations for any of the amino acids?

Can you give an example of a exotic, boutique, bag diet...ingredients etc that you reference that were involved in the cases 
reported as possible association to DCM
With the multitude of "grain free" diets available...what would your message be to the public about the grain free diets that 
are being fed to date and how to choose a grain free diet
Has a link to Selenium availability been studied deeply as research has found that selenium avilability is often decreased by 
certain processing steps?
Is this study only related to kibble foods? Has there been a link to DCM to real, whole peas, or just pea derivatives used in 
kibble? If so, what’s the maximum percentage of real peas you’d recommend having in a recipe?

Many veterinarians have no idea about foods and are not aware of the recent issues being discussed today?  What then.

Does the FDA data support Dr. Freeman's assessment that smaller companies and exotic ingredients are implicated?

For the prospective study, is the food and biological (blood, feces, urine) just analyzing for taurine or also for all the sulfur 
amino acids, carnitine, betaine, choline, B6, B12, and folic acid? All of these participate in sulfur amino acid metabolism.
Are other attributes of the animal being examined as well, specifically: estimate of body fat, age, level of exercise, and 
genetic (rather than pheotypic) evaluation.
When FSMA was implemented most companies moved to using greater temperatures to mitigate bacterial contamination, 
has anyone considered that we seriously ramped up heat damaged protein because of this? Does everyone understand that 
It appears that whole blood and plasma taurine are the primary measures being used to assess taurine status, but these 
values do not appear to correlate with DCM in many cases. Are there any other biomarkers of taurine status or taurine-
Given the variability in taurine status in cases vs. controls (similar to Dr. Freeman's statement - many cases are not taurine 
responsive), what other nutrients may be involved?
Given this issue, what is the chance that AAFCO will work on providing a taurine recommendation for dogs in the future? It is 
unknown why the taurine-responsive DCM publications from the early 2000's were apparently ignored by AAFCO. Will it be 

Have one specific diet or company been common in these cases?

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000922



Question for Dr Freeman please: May I ask the age of the dogs which have DCM but not Taurine deficient

Question for Dr Aldrich please: Would adding Taurine to the diet help when some dogs are showing a good or high level of 
Taurine in testing?
Since grain free canine diets are so popular, wouldn't is be reasonable to assume that its not unusual for the majority of the 
diets to be grain free?
Hi Umesh from India, what was approximate duration of feeding grain free diets in affected dogs before developing DCM  
Thank you 

Has the FDA or cardiac vets rules out genetics in the cases being discussed?  Thanks

AAFCO doesn't list taurine as an essential nutrient for dogs--you said that you looked at the foods and they weren't taurine 
deficient. What does that mean?

In regards to added legumes, is alfalfa considered one of the suspect ingredients?

It has been recommended that whole blood taurine levels are preferred over plasma taurine levels.  UC Davis is one lab that 
does these however there is another lab that prefers 'plasma' as the sample of preference based on the equipment being 
Do those patients w/ 'diet associated DCM' that have normal or high taurine levels respond to taurine supplementation in 
reagrds to the DCM changes?

what do you mean by Typical ingredient foods to go back to?  

A lot of foods with grain have peas and pea protein also, so it depends on the %, and they would have lower % most likely?  

are some meat proteins thatare  better than others for Taurine production.  

i don't think you can label just the small manufacturers,  because large ones also use exotic ingredients.  

no way, Vet's will  suggest Hill's and Royal Canin before better foods with better ingredients  Vets have just started to get 
involved with foods in the past few years  I think food is the last thing they are knowledgeable about in my opinion  
Question for Dr Martine Hartogensis - Has the FDA looked at other issues that could lead to lower taurine status?  For 
example trace mineral status?  Legumes are higher in phytates which can bind minerals and cause similar issues?  Also, has 
Question for Dr Martine Hartogensis:  How many of the offending foods actual have supplied analyticals and digestibility 
information?
would anyone on the staff recommend their friends and family to feed grain free diets using these questionable ingredients?  
would you recommend them to stop feeding these diets?
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                                          y answered during webinar
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From: Carey, Lauren
To: Hartogensis, Martine; Jones, Jennifer L; Nemser, Sarah; Palmer, Lee Anne; Rotstein, David
Subject: RE: DCM Comms Going Live Today
Date: Thursday, July 19, 2018 9:27:38 AM
Attachments: PFI - 7-18-2018 DCM Presentation.ppt

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
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DCM Reports as of 
7/18/2018 Database Review
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DCM Reports as of 7/12/2018 FDA CVM Update

• 31 reports

• 3 cat reports
• 7 cats reacted, 1 cat died

• 28 dog reports
• 30 dogs reacted, 3 died
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DCM Reports as of 7/12/2018 FDA CVM Update

• 31 reports discussed in CVM 
Update

• 28 dog reports

Dogs Age (yrs) Weight (lbs) Gender
Mean 7.7 62.6 F 12 (46%)
Range 2.5 - 13 11 - 141 M 14 (54%)

N 28 28 N 26
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DCM Reports as of 7/18/2018 Review

• 7/12/2018: CVM Update discussing 
FDA investigation into potential 
connection between diet and cases of 
canine heart disease
• 80 new cardiac-type reports received 

as of 7/18/2018 review
• 77 cardiac reports, 2 respiratory reports, 

1 GF report did not fully complete report
• 43 new reports specifically mention DCM 

in report narrative or within attachments
• Several other GF food reports through 

Safety Reporting Portal. Likely reported 
due to GF diet article, but no cardiac 
signs.
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DCM Reports as of 7/18/2018 Review

• 31 reports discussed in CVM 
Update

• Additional 43 DCM reports as of 
7/18/18
• Number likely to change as we 

review medical records
• More reports coming in

• All new reports are dog reports

Dogs Age (yrs)Weight (lbs Gender
Mean 7.4 62.4 F 27 (39%)
Range 1 - 13 11 - 145 M 42 (61%)

N 70 66 N 69

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000934



DCM Cases Reported to CVM as of 7/18/2018 Review
Breed Number of Dogs
Golden Retriever 12
Mixed 12
Labrador Retriever 7
Great Dane 6
American Cocker Spaniel 3
Bulldog 2
Doberman Pinscher 2
French Bulldog 2
Saluki 2
Shih Tzu 2
Afghan Hound 1
Australian Shepherd 1
Basset Hound 1
Boxer 1
Bull Terrier 1
Chinese Crested - Hairless 1
Dalmation 1
German Shepherd Dog 1
Gordon Setter 1
Greyhound 1
Irish Terrier 1
Maltese 1
Miniature Pinscher 1
Miniature Schnauzer 1
Portuguese Water Dog 1
Schnauzer (unspecified) 1
Shetland Sheepdog 1
Standard Poodle 1
Vizsla 1
Whippet 1
Unknown 1 FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000935



Foods Reported in Canine DCM Cases Received by CVM
Brands

Number of 
Reports

Flavor of Brand
Number of 

Reports
Kangaroo Formula 7
Lamb Formula 1
Venison Formula 1
Salmon Meal & Sweet Potato 2
Organic Chicken & Pea 2
Turkey Meal & Sweet Potato 2
Unknown 2
Kangaroo & Red Lentils 5
Kangaroo & Red Lentils; Venison & Green Lentils 1
Venison & Sweet Potato(?) 1
Coastal Catch 2
Meadow Feast 2
Great Plains Feast 1
Primitive Natural 1
Unknown 1
Grain Free Large Breed 2
Grain Free Beef & Potato 2
Grain Free 1
Large Breed Formula (unknown if Grain Free) 1
Multiple Blue Buffalo Products 2
Blue Basics Salmon & Potato Adult 3
Pacific Stream Canine Formula with Smoked Salmon 1
Sierra Mountain Canine Formula with Roasted Lamb 1
Pacific Stream Canine Formula with Smoked Salmon; Prey Angus Beef 1
Turkey Flavor; Bison Flavor 1
Four-Star Lamb & Lentil Recipe 1
Four-Star Surf & Turf 1
Heartland Adult Gold 1

Taste of the Wild 4

8Nature's Domain

Blue Buffalo 4

Earthborn Holistic 7

Fromm 3

California Natural 7

Zignature 9

4Health 6
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Foods Reported in Canine DCM Cases Received by CVM

Brands
Number of 

Reports
Flavor of Brand

Number of 
Reports

Grain Free Salmon, Sweet Potato & Pumpkin Recipe 2
Easy-To-Digest Fish Meal & Potato Recipe 1
Nutrish Cat Food 1
Nutrish Dog Food 1
Nutrish Zero Grain Free Salmon & Sweet Potato; Nutrish Zero Grain Beef, Potato & Bison 1

Acana 2 Lamb & Apple Singles Formula 1
Grain Free 1
Salmon Dry Food 1
Purrfect Bistro Grain Free Real Chicken Recipe 1
Grain Free Real Salmon + Sweet Potato Recipe 1
L.I.D. Sweet Potato & Bison Formula 1
L.I.D. Sweet Potato & Venison Formula 1

Fromm; Farmina 1 Four-Star Lamb & Lentil Recipe; Chicken & Pomegranate 1
Hill's 1 U/D Prescription Diet (not Grain Free) 1

Lotus; Nature's Variety 1 Oven-Baked Grain Free Fish; Instinct Raw Boost Chicken 1
Merrick; Wellness 1 Grain Free Rabbit & Chickpeas; Grain Free Wild Game 1

Evo 1 Grainfree Turkey & Chicken Formula Cat & Kitten 1
Nature's Variety 1 Instinct LID Lamb Meal & Peas Formula 1

NutriSource 1 Adult 1
Orijen 1 Unknown 1

Unknown 1 Limited Ingredient Kangaroo 1
Victor 1 Hi-Pro Plus (not Grain Free); Salmon & Sweet Potato 1

3Nature's Recipe

3Rachael Ray

Halo 2

Merrick 2

2Natural Balance
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From: Freeman, Lisa
To: Jones, Jennifer L
Subject: as promised
Date: Wednesday, August 08, 2018 4:43:32 PM
Attachments: Canine DCM protocol external 7-8-18.docx

Hi Jennifer
Below are the WSAVA guidelines and also my blog that expands on the quality control
measures.
https://www.wsava.org/WSAVA/media/Arpita-and-Emma-editorial/Selecting-the-Best-Food-
for-your-Pet.pdf
http://vetnutrition.tufts.edu/2016/12/questions-you-should-be-asking-about-your-pets-food/
 
Also, I think I sent the attached to you before but resending in case.
Thanks
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
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Recommended DCM Protocol  6/27/18 
 

1. Collect a complete diet history form on all patients at every visit (exact diet, treats, table food, 
rawhides/chews, supplements, and foods used for medication administration). See below and 
attached for diet history forms. 
 

2. If patient is eating any diet besides those made by well-known, reputable companies or if eating a  
boutique, exotic ingredient, or grain-free (BEG) diet: 

o Have owner save all current foods they are feeding (including bags, cans, or other 
packaging) 

o Report case to the FDA (the FDA website includes other useful tips for suspected important 
information for pet food complaints):  
https://www.fda.gov/animalveterinary/safetyhealth/reportaproblem/ucm182403.htm 

 
3. Measure whole blood and plasma taurine.  Recommend sending samples to the University of 

California Davis Amino Acid Laboratory: http://www.vetmed.ucdavis.edu/vmb/labs/aal/ 
o If owner declines measuring both, we recommend at least measuring whole blood taurine 
o Reference ranges for risk of taurine-deficient dilated cardiomyopathy should be interpreted 

cautiously.  In some cases (particularly golden retrievers), DCM has been diagnosed in dogs 
with whole blood taurine levels between 150-225 nmol/L.  These patients have responded 
well to diet change and taurine supplementation such that the “no known risk for taurine 
deficiency” range may need to be breed specific.  Due to ongoing research in golden 
retrievers with taurine responsive DCM, a whole blood taurine level of at least 250 nmol/L is 
recommended.  

 
4. Consider screening other dogs in the household eating same diet 

 
5. Start taurine supplementation. Although it is unclear whether dogs that are not taurine deficient gain 

any benefits from taurine supplementation, we currently recommend changing the diet and 
recommending taurine supplementation.  Because there are such problems with the quality control 
of dietary supplements, be sure to recommend a taurine supplement with independent quality 
control testing. Taurine supplements that appeared to have good quality control in one study 
(although it is now an old study:   Bragg RR.  Composition, disintegrative properties, and labeling 
compliance of commercially available taurine and carnitine dietary products. JAVMA 2009) 
included: NOW, Solgar, Swanson, Twinlab, and Vitamin Shoppe. 
 
Although the optimal dose is unknown, we recommend the following based on body weight: 

o <10 kg:  250 mg q 12 hr 
o 10-25 kg:  500 mg q 12 hr 
o >25 kg:  1000 mg q 12 hr 

 
6. Change the diet to one with more typical ingredients, including grains (e.g., chicken, beef, rice, 

corn, wheat) made by a well-known, reputable company with a long track record of producing good 
quality diets. Avoid grain-free diets.  Changing to a raw, homecooked, or vegetarian diet is not 
protective (and may increase the risk for other nutritional deficiencies).  If a patient requires a 
homecooked diet or has other medical conditions that require special considerations, consider 
referring the owner to a veterinary nutritionist (acvn.org) for optimal nutritional recommendations.   
 

7. Repeat echography in 3-4 months, although changes may take up to 6-9 months. 
 
For a recent post on this topic on the Petfoodology website (including links to other posts about pet 
food, ingredients, food allergies, and other myths): 
http://vetnutrition.tufts.edu/2018/06/a-broken-heart-risk-of-heart-disease-in-boutique-or-grain-free-diets-
and-exotic-ingredients/   
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Meeting between FDA, Tufts, and Florida 
 
Attendees: Anne Norris, Aurelie Pohl, Lauren Carey, Lisa Freeman, Sarah Peloquin, Siobhan DeLancey, 
William Burkholder, Darcy Adin, David Rotstein, Lee Anne Palmer 
 
Discussed ACVIM findings-to be published soon. 

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000945
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From: Darcy Adin
To: Jones, Jennifer L
Cc: Freeman, Lisa; adind@ufl.edu
Subject: checking in
Date: Wednesday, November 07, 2018 3:20:51 PM

Hi Jennifer,

I hope you are doing well!  I wanted to check in with you to let you know that I have changed
affiliations and am now working at the University of Florida (my new email is adind@ufl.edu,
copied above). 

Dr. Freeman and I wanted to check to see if your group be willing to have a follow up call
regarding the dietary induced DCM issue? 

Thanks!
Darcy

-- 
Darcy B. Adin, DVM, DACVIM (Cardiology)
Adjunct Clinical Assistant Professor of Cardiology
North Carolina State University
NC State Veterinary Hospital
1060 William Moore Drive
Raleigh, NC 27607
919-513-6032
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From: Jones, Jennifer L
To: Rotstein, David; Queen, Jackie L; Palmer, Lee Anne; Carey, Lauren
Cc: "Reimschuessel, Renate (Renate.Reimschuessel@fda.hhs.gov)"; Ceric, Olgica; Nemser, Sarah
Subject: DCM cases-food-Iodine screening results
Date: Monday, April 23, 2018 10:31:00 AM
Attachments: 800.261-MSU-iodine results.pdf

image001.png
image004.png

FYI-Iodine < 10ppm for the foods tested. Exogenous thyrotoxicosis unlikely a cause of the DCM
Multiple EONs Involved:

•       800.218
o   EON-323515
o   EON-345822

•       800.261
o   EON-350158

 
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
To: Milton, Nanette; Palmer, Lee Anne; Rotstein, David; McDermott, Patrick; DeLancey, Siobhan; Burkholder,

William; Norris, Anne; Jones, Jennifer L; Carey, Lauren
Cc: Edwards, David
Subject: RE: Information: PFI & CVM Webinar on July 19 (pre-meeting)
Date: Tuesday, July 17, 2018 2:32:24 PM
Attachments: Hartogensis AVMA Animal Food 2018.pptx

 
 
-----Original Appointment-----
From: Milton, Nanette 
Sent: Thursday, July 12, 2018 11:26 AM
To: Milton, Nanette; Palmer, Lee Anne; Rotstein, David; McDermott, Patrick; DeLancey, Siobhan;
Burkholder, William; Hartogensis, Martine; Norris, Anne; Jones, Jennifer L; Carey, Lauren
Cc: Edwards, David
Subject: Information: PFI & CVM Webinar on July 19 (pre-meeting)
When: Tuesday, July 17, 2018 1:30 PM-2:30 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
Where: C/R 181 and WebEx
 

Hi Nanette,
 
Please send the attached questions to the CVM folks attending the webinar on

the 19th.
 
Can you set up a pre-meeting from CVM so we can discuss?
 
Also, let PFI know who will be attending from CVM.
 
Thanks!
Martine
 
From: Dana Brooks [mailto:Dana@petfoodinstitute.org] 
Sent: Thursday, July 12, 2018 9:23 AM
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org>
Subject: Information: PFI & CVM Webinar on July 19
Importance: High
 

 
Martine,
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I wanted to reconfirm the webinar is scheduled for July 19.  I’m sharing some
questions with you in advance that may be asked by our members.  These are
the questions that our producer members presented to PFI as we informed
them of the DCM incidents.  I hope this is helpful to your team.
 
Please let us know who will be joining the call.  We will do the same from our
end. 
 
Thank you so much,
Dana Brooks

-- Do not delete or change any of the following text. --   
  
  
Join WebEx meeting   
Meeting number (access code):  
Meeting password:   
  

Join by phone  
+1-877-465-7975 US Toll Free  
Global call-in numbers  |  Toll-free calling restrictions   
  
Can't join the meeting? 
  
If you are a host, go here to view host information.

IMPORTANT NOTICE: Please note that this WebEx service allows audio and other information sent during the session to be recorded, which may
be discoverable in a legal matter. By joining this session, you automatically consent to such recordings. If you do not consent to being recorded,
discuss your concerns with the host or do not join the session.
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www.fda.gov

y /LYHVWRFN��SRXOWU\�DQG�DTXDFXOWXUH�IHHG
y 3HW�IRRGV�DQG�SHW�WUHDWV
y ([RWLF�DQLPDO�GLHWV��VXFK�DV�WKRVH�XVHG�LQ�]RRV
y 1XWULWLRQDO�VXSSOHPHQWV�IRU�DQLPDOV
y Raw materials and ingredients

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000961
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www.fda.gov

y Drug – based on intended use
y Food Additive – D�FRPSRQHQW�RI�IRRG�WKDW�LV�QRW�
*5$6

y Color Additive – FDSDEOH�RI�LPSDUWLQJ�FRORU

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000962
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)60$
y 

6KLIWLQJ�WKH�IRFXV�IURP�UHVSRQGLQJ�WR�IRRGERUQH�LOOQHVV�WR�SUHYHQWLQJ�LW



y Accredited Third-3DUW\�&HUWLILFDWLRQ

y &XUUHQW�*RRG�0DQXIDFWXULQJ�3UDFWLFH�DQG�+D]DUG�$QDO\VLV�DQG�5LVN-Based Preventive 
&RQWUROV�IRU�)RRG�IRU�$QLPDOV

y )RUHLJQ�6XSSOLHU�9HULILFDWLRQ�3URJUDPV��)693��

y 0LWLJDWLRQ�6WUDWHJLHV�WR�3URWHFW�)RRG�$JDLQVW�,QWHQWLRQDO�$GXOWHUDWLRQ

y 6DQLWDU\�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�RI�+XPDQ�DQG�$QLPDO�)RRG

y 6WDQGDUGV�IRU�WKH�*URZLQJ��+DUYHVWLQJ��3DFNLQJ��DQG�+ROGLQJ�RI�3URGXFH�IRU�+XPDQ�
Consumption

y 9ROXQWDU\�4XDOLILHG�,PSRUWHU�3URJUDP��94,3� FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000964
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www.fda.gov

y An appropriate product name
y $OO�LQJUHGLHQWV�LQ�GHVFHQGLQJ�RUGHU�RI�SUHGRPLQDQFH�E\�

weight
y 6WDWHPHQW�RI�QHW�TXDQWLW\�RI�FRQWHQWV��DQG�
y $GGUHVV�RI�PDQXIDFWXUHU�RU�GLVWULEXWRU��

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000965
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AAFCO

www.fda.gov

y An association with no regulatory authority
y Members are government officials UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�
HQIRUFLQJ�ODZV�UHJXODWLQJ�WKH�VDIH�SURGXFWLRQ�DQG�
ODEHOLQJ�RI�DQLPDO�IRRG�
y Federal government
y 6WDWH�JRYHUQPHQWV
y International governments

y Develops model bills and model regulations that are 
adopted and implemented by many states

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000969
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D� $Q\WKLQJ�WKDW�VHHPV�WR�EH�WKH�ODWHVW�FUD]H�
DQG�LV�PDUNHWDEOH

E� $UWLFOHV�WKDW�DUH�*5$6��$SSURYHG�)RRG�RU�
&RORU�$GGLWLYHV��RU�GHILQHG�$$)&2�)HHG�
Ingredients

F� &RPPRQ�GLHWDU\�VXSSOHPHQWV�IRU�SHRSOH
G� Internationally approved ingredients

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000972
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y Food
y 8QSURFHVVHG�JUDLQV��PHDWV��DQG�IUXLWV�RU�
YHJHWDEOHV�ZLWK�D�KLVWRU\�RI�XVH�

y Other ingredients or “articles”
y $Q\�FRPSRQHQW�RU�PL[WXUH�DGGHG�WR�DQG�RU�
FRPSULVLQJ�D�FRPPHUFLDO�DQLPDO�IRRG

y ,QFOXGHV�PDQ\�GLIIHUHQW�VXEVWDQFHV�IRU�YDULRXV�
uses

y Multiple regulatory pathways available
FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000973
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5(*8/$725<�&/$66(6�)25�$57,&/(6�$''('�72�$1,0$/�
FOOD

y Food additive
y $SSURYHG�IRRG�DGGLWLYHV�DUH�LQ����&)5����

y Generally recognized as safe for an intended use (GRAS)
y Partial list in 21 CFR 582
y 3UHYLRXVO\�DIILUPHG�*5$6�E\�)'$�LQ����&)5����
y 6HOI-FRQFOXVLRQ�E\�TXDOLILHG�H[SHUWV

y )'$�FRQFXUUHQFH�LV�QRW�UHTXLUHG
y 9ROXQWDU\�*5$6�1RWLILFDWLRQV�

y Defined feed ingredient
y Published in the Official Publication RI�$$)&2

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000974
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5(*8/$725<�&/$66(6�)25�$57,&/(6�$''('�
72�$1,0$/�)22'

y Color additive
y &RORUV�WKH�IRRG�LWVHOI�RU�WKH�WLVVXHV��PLON�RU�HJJV�IURP�
DQLPDOV�FRQVXPLQJ�WKH�IRRG

y ���&)5����DQG���
y New animal drug 

y ,QWHQGHG�IRU�GLDJQRVLV��FXUH��PLWLJDWLRQ��WUHDWPHQW�RU�
SUHYHQWLRQ�RI�GLVHDVH

y $IIHFWV�WKH�VWUXFWXUH�RU�IXQFWLRQ�RI�WKH�DQLPDO�RWKHU�WKDQ�
by providing nutrition, taste, or aroma  

y 21 CFR 558

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000975
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6DIHW\�5HSRUWLQJ�3RUWDO
y Opened May 2010
y $FFHSWV�3HW�)RRG�5HSRUWV��3)5V���/LYHVWRFN�)RRG�5HSRUWV��/)5V��DQG�

5HSRUWDEOH�)RRG�5HJLVWU\�UHSRUWV��5)5V����$OVR�XVHG�IRU�GUXJ�
UHSRUWV�IURP�PDQXIDFWXUHUV��FHUWDLQ�1,+�FOLQLFDO�WULDO�UHSRUWV���
/)5V��/LYHVWRFN�)RRG�5HSRUWV��VHFWLRQ�RSHQHG�LQ�����

y $OORZV�RZQHUV��YHWHULQDULDQV�RU�FRQFHUQHG�FLWL]HQV�WR�HQWHU�SHW�IRRG�
UHSRUWV�RQOLQH�WKURXJK�D�VWUXFWXUHG�TXHVWLRQQDLUH

y Accepts PFR reports concerning adverse events, product problems 
or both

y Can upload medical records, photographs, other documents
y 1RW�DYDLODEOH�IRU�DGYHUVH�GUXJ�HYHQW�UHSRUWV�IURP�FRQVXPHUV�RU�

veterinarians as this time

20
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Reporter is guided through required and optional questions

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000979
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:K\�DQ�653�IRU�SHW�IRRG�
UHSRUWV"��+LVWRU\��0DU������
����

y Pets – diet more limited, ingredients in common, 
FDQ�VHUYH�DV�VHQWLQHOV�IRU�SUREOHP�LQJUHGLHQWV�

y 0HQX�)RRGV�DQQRXQFHG�UHFDOO�RI����PLOOLRQ�
FRQWDLQHUV�´FXWV�DQG�JUDY\µ�VW\OH�IRRG�- 100 
brands

y &RPSDQ\�KDG�UHFHLYHG�FRPSODLQWV�RI�DQLPDOV�LQ�
NLGQH\�IDLOXUH�a�ZKHDW�JOXWHQ�QHZ�VXSSOLHU�

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000980
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CVM Animal Food Response
• 5HJXODU�PHHWLQJV�WR�GLVFXVV�DQLPDO�IRRG�UHODWHG�

adverse events and product problems

y ,QFOXGHV�&90�([SHUWV�LQ�9HWHULQDU\�1XWULWLRQ��
Pathology, Compliance, Toxicology, Chemistry and 
Epidemiology

y 9HWHULQDU\�/DERUDWRU\�5HVSRQVH�1HWZRUN��9HW-
/51�

y 6KDUH�87'�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ�RQJRLQJ�
LQYHVWLJDWLRQV��VLJQDOV��RXWEUHDNV��HWF�FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000982
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6RPH�5HFHQW�3HW�)RRG�,VVXHV«
y Listeria monocytogenenes, Clostridium botulinum, 

Salmonella sp. – UHFDOOV�LQYROYLQJ�UDZ�SHW�IRRG

y Dilated Cardiomyopathy     

y Elevated thyroid hormone – EHHI�FDQV�DQG�WUHDWV�

y Pentobarbitol
FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000983
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Salmonella 5HDGLQJ�LQ�5DZ�7XUNH\-Based Pet 
)RRG���+XPDQ�,OOQHVV�DQG�0XOWLVWDWH�2XWEUHDN

y Investigation-Index Case
y Epidemiology: 2 children from a household with GI symptoms; culture positive for Salmonella Reading
y Traceback:  Raw turkey-based pet food
y Microbiology: 

y Raw turkey and children had the same S. Reading based on Whole Genome Sequencing
y Multi-drug resistant

y FDA CVM Response: Class 1 Recall and Public Notification (Firm and FDA)

y Outbreak Investigation
y Rare pattern of S. Reading led to identification of cases in multiple states
y 81 cases in 25 states; 36 hospitalizations and no deaths
y Non-human isolates found including 120 food isolates, raw turkey pet food, and 1 dog
y 42/55 people interviewed had turkey exposure (raw and processed), raw turkey pet food
y Possibly a persistent stain in the population, environment, or animal feed

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000985
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'LODWHG�&DUGLRP\RSDWK\��'&0��
cases
y Approximately 24 cases of veterinary cardiologist-diagnosed 

DCM were reported to FDA CVM between 4/3/2014 and 
6/12/2018
y 3 of those 24 are cat cases – 7 cats involved
y 21 dogs 

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000986
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DCM cases reported to CVM
Age 
(yrs)

Dogs Wt (lbs) Dogs Gender Dogs

Mean 7.5 Mean 58.6 F 8  (42%)

Range 2 - 13 Range 14 - 96 M 11 (58%)

N 20 N 17 N 19

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000987



Breed Number of dogs

Golden Retriever 5

Labrador Retriever 3

American Cocker Spaniel 2

Afghan Hound 1

Bull Terrier 1

Bulldog 1

Dalmation 1

Doberman Pinscher 1

Great Dane 1

Miniature Schnauzer 1

Mixed 1

Shih Tzu 1

Unknown 1

Whippet 1

DCM cases reported to CVM – dog breeds

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000988



Foods reported in Canine DCM cases CVM has received
Brand Flavor Number 

of 
reports

California Naturals
GF L.I.D. Kangaroo & Red Lentils Recipe (1 also ate Venison/green 
lentils) 4

Zignature Limited Ingredient Formula Kangaroo (3), 1 is lamb 4

4Health Grain Free Formulas (one is unclear) 3

Nature's Recipe
Grain Free Salmon, Sweet Potato & Pumpkin Recipe (same 
household – 2 dogs) 2

Acana Lamb & Apple Singles Formula 1

Blue Buffalo Blue Basics GF Salmon & Potato; Blue Basics Salmon 1

Earthborn Holistic Primitive Natural 1

Hill's U/D Prescription Diet 1

Nature's Domain Turkey Meal & Sweet Potato 1

Nature's Variety Instinct LID Lamb Meal & Peas Formula 1

Taste of the Wild Pacific Stream Canine Formula with Smoked Salmon 1

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000989
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Dietary ingredient exposure on a case 
basis (n = 41)

Ingredients on a case basis:

Yes No percent

Grain-free 39 2 95

Peas 38 2 95

Lentils 22 18 55

Flaxseed 32 8 80

Kangaroo 15 25 37 5

Lamb 7 31 18

Salmon 10 28 26

Rice 3 37 7 5

Taurine added? 14 26 35

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000990













Canine Exogenous Thyrotoxicosis
y Although hypothyroidism is a common endocrine disorder in dogs, naturally 

RFFXUULQJ�K\SHUWK\URLGLVP�LV�FRQVLGHUHG�UDUH�RU�XQFRPPRQ��.RKOHU�������DQG�
%URRPH�������

y Causes in dogs�
y 1HRSODVLD���XVXDOO\�D�WK\URLG�JODQG�FDUFLQRPD��YV��DGHQRPD�LQ�FDWV�
y Excessive thyroid hormone replacement therapy in hypothyroid dogs
y 'LHWDU\�H[SRVXUH��KDV�EHHQ�UHSRUWHG�LQ�ERWK�KXPDQV�DQG�GRJV�

y &OLQLFDO�VLJQV�FDQ�LQFOXGH�ZHLJKW�ORVV��38�3'��YRPLWLQJ��GLDUUKHD��DJLWDWLRQ��
restlessness, tachycardia and panting, however, clinical signs may unapparent  

y 7K\URLG�JODQG�FDQ�HQWHU�IRRG�ZKHQ�LW·V�QRW�DGHTXDWHO\�WULPPHG�DZD\�IURP�
´JXOOHWµ��ODU\QJHDO�WUDFKHDO�DUHD�WLVVXH����7K\URLG�KRUPRQHV�DUH�QRW�
GHVWUR\HG�E\�JDVWULF�DFLG�ZKHQ�HDWHQ�DQG�DUH�DEVRUEHG��

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000996
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Dietary hyperthyroidism reports

Primary Suspect Product # reports
Wellness 95% Beef Canned food 4
Milo's Kitchen Grilled Burger Bites, Steak Grillers 4
Blue Buffalo Lamb and Rice Adult Recipe 2
American Jerky Bison Bars 2
Dave's 95% Premium Beef 1
Green Tripe w/ Trachea & Gullet 1
Real Meat Beef/Lamb Jerky 1
Merrick - multiple products 1
Stella & Chewy's Meal Mixers (beef) 1
Nature's Variety Beef/Barley Raw 1
K-9 Kravings All Life Stages Dog food 1

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-000997
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Adverse event reports for Smucker’s canned food products 
by year of receipt
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THANK YOU!
www.fda.gov/safefeed
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From: Hartogensis, Martine
To: Milton, Nanette; Burkholder, William; DeLancey, Siobhan; Rotstein, David; McDermott, Patrick; Jones, Jennifer L;

Carey, Lauren; Norris, Anne; Palmer, Lee Anne
Cc: Edwards, David; Reimschuessel, Renate; Nemser, Sarah; Steinschneider, Janice; Baker, John D; Nelson, Eric;

Bataller, Neal
Subject: RE: Dilated Cardiomyopathy
Date: Wednesday, July 18, 2018 7:10:31 PM
Attachments: 20180718 Participants list for Grain Free Diet and DCM call with FDA.DOCX

Good Evening!
 
I am attaching a list of PFI participants FYI.  Please pass this along to anyone I may have missed.
 
Thank you!!

Martine
 
-----Original Appointment-----
From: Milton, Nanette 
Sent: Friday, July 06, 2018 10:22 AM
To: Milton, Nanette; Burkholder, William; Hartogensis, Martine; DeLancey, Siobhan; Rotstein, David;
McDermott, Patrick; Jones, Jennifer L; Carey, Lauren; Norris, Anne; Palmer, Lee Anne
Cc: Edwards, David; Reimschuessel, Renate; Nemser, Sarah; Steinschneider, Janice; Baker, John D;
Nelson, Eric; Bataller, Neal
Subject: Dilated Cardiomyopathy
When: Thursday, July 19, 2018 10:00 AM-12:00 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
Where: Webinar
 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/
You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States: 
Access Code: 
Joining from a video-conferencing room or system? 
Dial:  
Cisco devices: 
First GoToMeeting? Let's do a quick system check: https://link.gotomeeting.com/system-check
 
 
Hi Nanette,
 
Can you work with Dana Brooks from PFI to schedule a 1-2 hour webinar?  The topic is Dilated
Cardiomyopathy. 
 
These folks should be included:
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David Rotstein
Jennifer Jones (OR)
Lee Anne Palmer
Lauren Carey
Siobhan DeLancey
Anne Norris (in OD)
Bill Burkholder
Martine Hartogensis
Pat McDermott
 
Thanks very much in advance!
Martine
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Member Name Company 
Royal Witcher Sunshine Mills, Inc. 
Gayan Hettiarachchi Champion Pet Foods LP 
Carlos Gonzalez Hill’s Pet Nutrition, Inc.  
Bill Behnken American Nutrition, Inc. 
Sarah Barrett Barrett Petfood Innovations 
Valerie Zimmer Perfection Pet Food 
Alan Bostick Sunshine Mills, Inc.  
Jim Bolton American Nutrition, Inc. 
Chinedu Ogbonna Champion Pet Foods LP 
Jay Trivedi Central Garden & Pet 
Darren Stephens American Nutrition, Inc. 
Leslie Hancock-Monroe The J.M. Smucker Company 
Kim Spinelli The J.M. Smucker Company 
Marcie Campion Cargill 
John Dickerson Cargill 
Greg Thompson  Blue Buffalo Company   
Nancy K Cook Cook & Associates Consulting, LLC 

(Sunshine Mills, Inc.)  
Steve Mills American Nutrition, Inc. 
Kelly Stevens Blue Buffalo Company   
Sandra Furbee Nestle Purina PetCare Company 
Jim Wagner Champion Pet Foods LP 
Todd Harper Blue Buffalo Company   
Raquel Maymir Blue Buffalo Company   
Jason Vickers Mars Petcare US 
James Chen Central Garden & Pet 
Royal Witcher Sunshine Mills, Inc. 
Kelly Stevens Blue Buffalo Company   
Stephanie Salinas Central Garden & Pet 
Gail Kuhlman Mars Petcare US 
Greg Reinhart Blue Buffalo Company   
Mark Brinkmann Diamond Petfood 
Nolan Frantz Blue Buffalo Company   
Chase Rasmussen Tuffy’s Pet Foods 
Sean McNear Blue Buffalo Company   
Melissa Brookshire Diamond Petfood 
Roxanne Cool  The J.M. Smucker Company 
Kelvin Hawkins Nestle Purina PetCare Company 
Heather Clarkson Spectrum Brands, Inc.  
Matt Golladay BrightPet Nutrition Group  
Christine Pendlebury Champion Pet Foods LP 
Gail Kuhlman Mars Petcare US 
David McLain Perfection Pet Foods 
Richard MacLean Blue Buffalo Company   
James Barritt Mars Petcare US 
Santo Perez Spectrum Brands, Inc. 
Allen Bingham  Bil-Jac Foods, Inc. 
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Natasha Bangel Hill’s Pet Nutrition, Inc. 
Tom Forster Hill’s Pet Nutrition, Inc. 
Tiffany Bierer Mars Petcare US 
Candance Sady Hill’s Pet Nutrition, Inc. 
Leah Lambrakis Simmons Pet Foods, Inc. 
Dave Lemmon  The J.M. Smucker Company 
Michael Wood Merrick Pet Care, Inc.  
Steven Zicker Hill’s Pet Nutrition, Inc. 
Victoria Carmella Blue Buffalo Company   
Christina Germain Nestle Purina PetCare Company 
Brittany Vester Boler  Nestle Purina PetCare Company 
Adam Ekonomon The J.M. Smucker Company 
Jay Hernandez American Nutrition, Inc. 
Kathy Gross Hill’s Pet Nutrition, Inc. 
Larry Thompson Nestle Purina PetCare Company 
Tim Simonds Merrick Pet Care, Inc.  
Alex Cedeno The J.M. Smucker Company 
Jeff Johnston Champion Pet Foods LP 
Brad Schulz C.J. Foods Inc.   
Bruce Blackford Midwestern Petfoods 
George Collings                 Midwestern Petfoods 
Jeff Nunn                             Midwestern Petfoods 
Dan Rice Champion Pet Foods LP 
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From: Milton, Nanette
To: Palmer, Lee Anne; Rotstein, David; McDermott, Patrick; DeLancey, Siobhan; Burkholder, William; Hartogensis,

Martine; Norris, Anne; Jones, Jennifer L; Carey, Lauren
Subject: Information: PFI & CVM Webinar on July 19 (pre-meeting)
Attachments: PFI Questions for CVM Regarding DCM.docx

Hi Nanette,
 
Please send the attached questions to the CVM folks attending the webinar on the 19th.
 
Can you set up a pre-meeting from CVM so we can discuss?
 
Also, let PFI know who will be attending from CVM.
 
Thanks!
Martine
 
From: Dana Brooks [mailto:Dana@petfoodinstitute.org <mailto:Dana@petfoodinstitute.org> ] 
Sent: Thursday, July 12, 2018 9:23 AM
To: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov <mailto:Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov> >
Cc: Tabor, Peter <peter@petfoodinstitute.org <mailto:peter@petfoodinstitute.org> >
Subject: Information: PFI & CVM Webinar on July 19
Importance: High
 
 
Martine,
 
I wanted to reconfirm the webinar is scheduled for July 19.  I’m sharing some questions with you in advance that may be asked by our members. 
These are the questions that our producer members presented to PFI as we informed them of the DCM incidents.  I hope this is helpful to your team. 
 
Please let us know who will be joining the call.  We will do the same from our end.  
 
Thank you so much,
Dana Brooks
  
-- Do not delete or change any of the following text. --   
  
  
Join WebEx meeting <https://fda1.webex.com/fda1/j.php?MTID=md1669c061ce203d0436a270da081f36e>    
Meeting number (access code):  
Meeting password:   
  

Join by phone  
+1-877-465-7975 US Toll Free  
Global call-in numbers <https://fda1.webex.com/fda1/globalcallin.php?serviceType=MC&ED=7002862&tollFree=1>   |  Toll-free calling restrictions
<https://e-meetings.verizonbusiness.com/global/pdf/Verizon_Audio_Conferencing_Global_Access_Information_August2017.pdf>    
  
Can't join the meeting? <https://collaborationhelp.cisco.com/article/WBX000029055>  
  
If you are a host, go here <https://fda1.webex.com/fda1/j.php?MTID=m0dab1d42838e7d6c5224d9d372e353d1>  to view host information.

IMPORTANT NOTICE: Please note that this WebEx service allows audio and other information sent during the session to be recorded, which may be
discoverable in a legal matter. By joining this session, you automatically consent to such recordings. If you do not consent to being recorded, discuss
your concerns with the host or do not join the session. 
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PFI Questions for FDA CVM Regarding DCM 

Questions Regarding the Language and Overall Scope of the Investigation 
Is “grain-free” an adequate descriptor of the category of diets being examined?  
Dr. Lisa Freeman at Tufts University indicates the incidence of DCM is associated with 
more than just grain-free diets: http://vetnutrition.tufts.edu/2018/06/a-broken-heart-
risk-of-heart-disease-in-boutique-or-grain-free-diets-and-exotic-ingredients/. 
Will FDA CVM consider the need for further evaluation of any link between pet food 
diets and incidence of DCM before deciding whether to issue a public notice? 

Questions Regarding Investigation History 
Can FDA CVM share more information regarding the breeds of dogs and ages involved in 
its observations, including information on which breeds it believes are predisposed to 
DCM? Also, has FDA CVM looked into the relationships between dogs exhibiting DCM to 
determine whether/how genetics could be playing a role in the observed cases of DCM? 
Can the FDA share the details around the formal diagnoses of DCM in these dogs? Were 
the diagnoses based on clinical pathology blood or serum samples alone? Was there any 
supporting electrocardiographic data for these animals? Similarly, were the diagnoses 
confirmed with medical imaging data or post-mortem gross pathology/histopathology 
evaluations? 
Can FDA CVM share the comprehensive diet histories of the impacted animals and the 
total dietary fiber, soluble fiber and viscous fiber content of the diets tested?  
Is a nutritionist gathering diet history information as part of FDA’s investigation? 
What were the protein sources and digestibility in each of these diets? 
Were any (paired or whole) blood or plasma tests for taurine performed? Was any urine 
taurine measured before or after treatment?  
In the case of the dog that improved with a diet change from one grain-free diet to 
another, what were the dietary taurine levels, total dietary fiber levels and digestibility 
percentages of the implicated and treatment diets? 
In dogs whose condition improved, in addition to diet change, what level of taurine 
supplementation was given?  
How much of the research presented at the ACVIM forum (on June 14) represents the 
full series of complaints that FDA CVM is investigating? 

Does FDA CVM believe that other brands are implicated as well, and, if so, what 
are the data used by the agency to reach this conclusion? 
Is there a common supplier or co-manufacturer of ingredients and/or products?   
Given that not all grain-free diets are linked to an increase in DCM, has the agency 
evaluated other grain-free diets that share the same legume sources as the diets 
consumed by dogs that developed DCM? 
Are there other pathologies being considered? 
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Research presented at ACVIM did not definitively conclude that the 
recently observed increase in DCM is a taurine issue (although low taurine 
has previously been linked to increased incidence of DCM).  

What is known about the formulations, ingredient handling and processing conditions 
for the diets that FDA CVM considers possibly associated with DCM?  
What is known about the amino acid balance in the diets containing pulses? 

Questions Regarding Certain Product Attributes and the Incidence of DCM 
Has FDA CVM considered whether there might be a connection between products that 
are not adding sufficient sources of vitamins and minerals and the incidence of DCM?  
What evaluations have been done to determine the presence/absence of sufficient 
vitamins and minerals in any of the diets identified as linked to incidents of DCM? 
Has FDA CVM considered what impact other dietary factors have on the intestinal tract 
in light of the tendency of many grain-free diets to contain higher levels of soluble fiber 
as compared to conventional diets?  
If taurine is not recognized as an essential nutrient for dogs and there is no standard 
developed, is FDA CVM considering recommending a minimum taurine level for all dog 
food diets?  
If a taurine requirement were to be proposed for dogs, would the requirement be based 
on repletion data or data shown to maintain normal blood taurine levels? 
Since the whole blood taurine was normal in tested dogs that were fed a grain-free diet, 
is taurine supplementation through food effective?  
Are the taurine dosage levels used in the treatment of DCM cases safe for long-term 
use? 
Is FDA CVM examining the presence of certain legumes and their levels as potentially 
impacting the synthesis of taurine? If so, what conclusions have been drawn? 

What other anti-nutrient factors may be present in legumes, tubers and other 
non-grain-type ingredients? Can these factors be measured in the finished 
product and can safe-levels be set against these? 

Green peas have been a common ingredient in single animal protein source diets since 
the 1990s. Have there been any proposed mechanisms to explain why there is an 
emergence of pea- association in DCM? 
Given the growing trend today toward pet food recipes that utilize novel ingredients 
over conventional ingredient diets (such as corn, wheat, soy, chicken, pork), is there 
consideration that the current generation of pet foods will require a unique set of 
nutrient requirements based on new knowledge of ingredient-nutrient interactions and 
manufacturing capabilities? What efforts would be needed to redefine nutrient 
requirements? 
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Blue Buffalo Blue Basics Salmon & Potato Recipe Adult (Limited-Ingredient, Grain Free) 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Blue Buffalo Life Protection Lamb (NOT GF): 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Blue Buffalo Wilderness Chicken  
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First-Mate Weight Control Senior Pacific Ocean Fish Meal Formula LID GF dry 

Ingredients 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Fromm: 

Fromm Heartland Gold Large Breed (GF) 
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Fromm Four Star Lamb & Lentil (GF) 

Fromm Four Star Surf & Turf (GF) 

 

Farmina – Chicken and Pomegranate – has both no grain and low grain dry foods (not sure which fed) 

 

Halo Salmon (no other info) 

Ingredients 
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Halo Salmon GF – ingredients not given 

 

Kirkland Signature Healthy Weight Formula: 

Chicken meal, brown rice, peas, cracked pearled barley, millet, powdered cellulose, oatmeal, chicken, 

rice bran, potatoes, dried beet pulp, chicken fat (preserved with natural tocopherols), natural flavor, 

flaxseed, fish meal, egg product, choline chloride, glucosamine hydrochloride, dried chicory root, 

chondroitin sulfate, L-Carnitine, dried Lactobacillus acidophilus fermentation product, dried 

Bifidobacterium animalis fermentation product, dried Lactobacillus reuteri fermentation product, 

carrots, dried kelp, apples, cranberries, rosemary extract, parsley flake, vitamin E supplement, iron 

proteinate, zinc sulfate, copper sulfate, potassium iodide, thiamine mononitrate, manganese proteinate, 

manganous oxide, ascorbic acid, vitamin A supplement, biotin, niacin, calcium pantothenate, manganese 

sulfate, sodium selenite, pyridoxine hydrochloride (vitamin B6), vitamin B12 supplement, riboflavin, 

vitamin D supplement, folic acid. 

 

Lotus Oven-Baked Fish Recipe Grain-free Dry dog food: 

Sardine, Pollock, Dried Potato, Dried Peas, Dried Egg Product, Pea Fiber, Tapioca Flour, Organic Soybean 

Oil(Preserved with Mixed Tocopherols and Citric Acid) Brewers Dried Yeast, Dicalcium Phosphate, Sweet 

Potatoes, Monosodium Phosphate, Whole Ground Flaxseed, Calcium Carbonate, Sea Salt, Salmon Oil, 

Olive Oil, Carrots, Apples, Garlic, Spinach, Pumpkin, Blueberries, Dried Kelp, Zinc Proteinate, Iron 

Proteinate, Vitamin E Supplement, Copper Proteiante, Manganese Proteinate, Niacin, Sodium Selenite, 

Calcium Pantothenate, Inulin, Yucca Schidigera, Dried Lactobacillus Acidophilus Fermentation Solubles, 

Lactobacillus Lactis Fermentation Solubles and Lactobacillus Casei Fermentation Solubles, Folic Acid, 

Vitamin A Supplement, Riboflavin Supplement, Calcium Iodate, Vitamin B12 Supplement, Thiamine 

Mononitrate, Pyridoxine Hydrochloride, Vitamin D3 Supplement, Rosemary Extract. 

 

Merrick Lil’ Plates - TUBBED:  (GF)  (lots of other flavors – all gf) 

Petite Pot Pie: Deboned Chicken, Chicken Broth, Turkey Broth, Chicken Liver, Dried Egg Whites, Potato 

Starch, Potatoes, Carrots, Peas, Apples, Guar Gum, Sunflower Oil, Tricalcium Phosphate, Salt, Sodium 

Phosphate, Natural Flavor, Potassium Chloride, Calcium Carbonate, Minerals (Zinc Amino Acid Chelate, 

Iron Amino Acid Chelate, Copper Amino Acid Chelate, Manganese Amino Acid Chelate, Sodium Selenite, 

Cobalt Amino Acid Chelate, Potassium Iodide), Choline Chloride, Vitamins (Vitamin E Supplement, 

Thiamine Mononitrate, Niacin Supplement, D-Calcium Pantothenate, Vitamin A Supplement, Riboflavin 

--
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Supplement, Biotin, Vitamin B12 Supplement, Pyridoxine Hydrochloride, Vitamin D3 Supplement, Folic 

Acid), Rosemary, Sage, Thyme, Xanthan Gum. 

 

 

 

Merrick Grain-free Rabbit and Chickpea: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wellness CORE Grain-free Wild Game (proteins vary) 

New Formulation: Duck, Lamb Meal, Chickpeas, Peas, Turkey Meal, Lentils, Pea Protein, Chicken Fat 

(Preserved with Mixed Tocopherols), Tomato Pomace, Wild Boar, Rabbit, Ground Flaxseed, Dried Egg 

Product, Natural Duck Flavor, Choline Chloride, Spinach, Broccoli, Potassium Chloride, Kale, Vitamin E 

Supplement, Carrots, Parsley, Apples, Blueberries, Taurine, Mixed Tocopherols Added to Preserve 

Freshness, Zinc Proteinate, Glucosamine Hydrochloride, Chondroitin Sulfate, Zinc Sulfate, Calcium 
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Carbonate, Niacin, Ferrous Sulfate, Iron Proteinate, Beta-Carotene, Vitamin A Supplement, Copper 
Sulfate, Thiamine Mononitrate, Copper Proteinate, Manganese Proteinate, Manganese Sulfate, D-
Calcium Pantothenate, Sodium Selenite, Pyridoxine Hydrochloride, Chicory Root Extract, Yucca 
Schidigera Extract, Riboflavin, Vitamin D3 Supplement, Biotin, Calcium Iodate, Vitamin B12 Supplement, 
Folic Acid, Ascorbic Acid (Vitamin C), Dried Lactobacillus Plantarum Fermentation Product, Dried 
Enterococcus Faecium Fermentation Product, Dried Lactobacillus Casei Fermentation Product, Dried 
Lactobacillus Acidophilus Fermentation Product, Rosemary Extract, Green Tea Extract, Spearmint 
Extract. 

 

Old Formulation:  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Natural Balance (Dick Van Patten’s ) LID Sw P & Venison 

 

 

 
 

 

Sweet Potatoes, Venison, Pea Protein, Potato Protein, Canola Oil (Preserved with Mixed Tocopherols), 
Brewers Dried Yeast, Natural Flavor, Dicalcium Phosphate, Salmon Oil (Preserved with Mixed 
Tocopherols), Flaxseed, Dried Potato Products, Calcium Carbonate, Salt, Dl-Methionine, Minerals (Zinc 
Proteinate, Zinc Sulfate, Ferrous Sulfate, Iron Proteinate, Copper Sulfate, Copper Proteinate, Manganese 
Sulfate, Manganese Proteinate, Calcium Iodate, Sodium Selenite), Choline Chloride, Vitamins (Vitamin E 
Supplement, Niacin, D-Calcium Pantothenate, Vitamin A Supplement, Riboflavin Supplement, Thiamine 
Mononitrate, Vitamin D3 Supplement, Pyridoxine Hydrochloride, Folic Acid, Biotin, Vitamin B12 
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Supplement), Taurine, Mixed Tocopherols (Preservative), Rosemary Extract, Green Tea Extract, 
Spearmint Extract. 

Natural Balance Sw P and Bison: 

 

Old Formula:  

 

 
 

Natural Balance LID chicken & sw pot gf: 

 

Natural Balance Sw Pot and Fish LID GF 

Sweet Potatoes, Salmon, Menhaden Fish Meal, Potato Protein, Canola Oil (Preserved with Mixed 
Tocopherols), Natural Flavor, Dried Potato Products, Salt, Salmon Oil (Preserved with Mixed 
Tocopherols), Dl-Methionine, Minerals (Zinc Proteinate, Zinc Sulfate, Ferrous Sulfate, Iron Proteinate, 
Copper Sulfate, Copper Proteinate, Manganese Sulfate, Manganese Proteinate, Calcium Iodate, Sodium 
Selenite), Vitamins (Vitamin E Supplement, Niacin, D-Calcium Pantothenate, Vitamin A Supplement, 
Riboflavin Supplement, Thiamine Mononitrate, Vitamin D3 Supplement, Pyridoxine Hydrochloride, Folic 
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Acid, Biotin, Vitamin B12 Supplement), Choline Chloride, Flaxseed, Potassium Chloride, Taurine, Citric 
Acid (Preservative), Mixed Tocopherols (Preservative), Rosemary Extract. 

 

Nature’s Domain (Kirkland – GF) Salmon & Sw P 

Salmon meal, sweet potatoes, peas, potatoes, canola oil, ocean fish meal, pea protein, potato fibre, 
natural flavour, flaxseed, salt, choline chloride, dried chicory root, tomatoes, blueberries, raspberries, 
yucca schidigera extract, dried Lactobacillus acidophilus fermentation product, dried Bifidobacterium 
animalis fermentation product, dried Lactobacillus reuteri fermentation product, vitamin E supplement, 
iron proteinate, zinc proteinate, copper proteinate, ferrous sulfate, zinc sulfate, copper sulfate, 
potassium iodide, thiamine mononitrate (vitamin B1), manganese proteinate, manganous oxide, 
ascorbic acid, vitamin A supplement, biotin, niacin, calcium pantothenate, manganese sulfate, sodium 
selenite, pyridoxine hydrochloride (vitamin B6), vitamin B12 supplement, riboflavin (vitamin B2), vitamin 
D supplement, folic acid. 

Nature’s Domain GF turkey meal & sw p: 

Turkey meal, sweet potatoes, peas, potatoes, canola oil, tomato pomace, flaxseed, natural flavor, 
salmon oil (a source of DHA), salt, choline chloride, dried chicory root, tomatoes, blueberries, 
raspberries, yucca schidigera extract, dried Lactobacillus acidophilus fermentation product, dried 
Bifidobacterium animalis fermentation product, dried Lactobacillus reuteri fermentation product, 
vitamin E supplement, iron proteinate, zinc proteinate, copper proteinate, ferrous sulfate, zinc sulfate, 
copper sulfate, potassium iodide, thiamine mononitrate (vitamin B1), manganese proteinate, 
manganous oxide, ascorbic acid, vitamin A supplement, biotin, niacin, calcium pantothenate, manganese 
sulfate, sodium selenite, pyridoxine hydrochloride (vitamin B6), vitamin B12 supplement, riboflavin 
(vitamin B2), vitamin D supplement, folic acid. 

Nature’s Domain Organic Chicken and Pea (GF): 

Organic chicken, organic peas, organic lentils, organic garbanzo beans, organic sweet potatoes, organic 
potatoes, organic canola oil (preserved with mixed tocopherols), organic sunflower meal, organic canola 
meal, organic flaxseed, natural flavor, organic pea protein, calcium carbonate, choline chloride, taurine, 
organic kelp, vitamin E supplement, iron proteinate, zinc proteinate, copper proteinate, ferrous sulfate, 
zinc sulfate, copper sulfate, potassium iodide, thiamine mononitrate (vitamin B1), manganese 
proteinate, manganous oxide, ascorbic acid, vitamin A supplement, biotin, niacin, calcium pantothenate, 
manganese sulfate, sodium selenite, pyridoxine hydrochloride (vitamin B6), vitamin B12 supplement, 
riboflavin (vitamin B2), vitamin D supplement, folic acid. 

Nature’s Domain Beef meal and sw pot (GF): 

Beef meal, sweet potatoes, garbanzo beans, peas, canola oil, egg product, pea flour, tomato pomace, 
flaxseed, brewers yeast, natural flavor, potato protein, pea protein, salmon oil (a source of DHA), salt, 
choline chloride, dried chicory root, yucca schidigera extract, tomatoes, blueberries, raspberries, dried 
Lactobacillus acidophilus fermentation product, dried Bifidobacterium animalis fermentation product, 
dried Lactobacillus reuteri fermentation product, vitamin E supplement, iron proteinate, zinc proteinate, 
copper proteinate, ferrous sulfate, zinc sulfate, copper sulfate, potassium iodide, thiamine mononitrate 

-

-
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(vitamin B1), manganese proteinate, manganous oxide, ascorbic acid, vitamin A supplement, biotin, 
niacin, calcium pantothenate, manganese sulfate, sodium selenite, pyridoxine hydrochloride (vitamin 
B6), vitamin B12 supplement, riboflavin (vitamin B2), vitamin D supplement, folic acid. 

 

Nature’s Recipe Easy to Digest Fish Meal & Potato Recipe (Rice, but not GF)  (Says NO corn, beef, wheat) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

NutriSource chicken pea GF 

Chicken, chicken meal, peas, pea starch, pea flour, chicken fat (preserved with mixed tocopherols and 
citric acid), flax seeds, alfalfa meal, natural turkey and chicken flavors, salmon meal (a source of fish oil), 
dried tomato pomace, sunflower oil, dried brewers yeast, dried egg product, salt, potassium chloride, 
minerals (zinc proteinate, iron proteinate, copper proteinate, manganese proteinate, cobalt proteinate, 
selenium yeast), vitamins (vitamin A acetate, vitamin D3 supplement, vitamin E supplement, niacin, d-
calcium pantothenate, thiamine mononitrate, pyridoxine hydrochloride, riboflavin supplement, folic 
acid, biotin, vitamin B12 supplement), lactic acid, glucosamine hydrochloride, choline chloride, L-
ascorbyl-2-polyphosphate (source of vitamin C), chondroitin sulfate, yucca schidigera extract, calcium 
iodate, rosemary extract, yeast culture (Saccharomyces cerevisiae), dried Lactobacillus acidophilus 
fermentation product, dried Enterococcus faecium fermentation product, dried Aspergillus niger 
fermentation extract, dried Trichoderma longibrachiatum fermentation extract, dried Bacillus subtilis 
fermentation extract. 

Petcurean GO! LID Venison Sensitivity & Shine (GF, termed “zero-grain”): 

 

Pure Balance Wild & Free (GF) – Walmart 
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Purina ONE Lamb & Rice: 

Lamb (Source of Glucosamine), Rice Flour, Whole Grain Corn, Whole Grain Wheat, Chicken By-Product 
Meal (Source of Glucosamine), Corn Gluten Meal, Soybean Meal, Beef Fat Naturally Preserved with 
Mixed-Tocopherols, Mono and Dicalcium Phosphate, Glycerin, Calcium Carbonate, Liver Flavor, Salt, 
Caramel Color, Soybean Oil, Potassium Chloride, Dried Carrots, Dried Peas, Vitamins [Vitamin E 
Supplement, Niacin (Vitamin B-3), Vitamin A Supplement, Calcium Pantothenate (Vitamin B-5), Thiamine 
Mononitrate (Vitamin B-1), Vitamin B-12 Supplement, Riboflavin Supplement (Vitamin B-2), Pyridoxine 
Hydrochloride (Vitamin B-6), Folic Acid (Vitamin B-9), Menadione Sodium Bisulfite Complex (Vitamin K), 
Vitamin D-3 Supplement, Biotin (Vitamin B-7)], Minerals [Zinc Sulfate, Ferrous Sulfate, Manganese 
Sulfate, Copper Sulfate, Calcium Iodate, Sodium Selenite], Choline Chloride, L-Lysine 
Monohydrochloride, Sulfur. V-4162. 

 

Rachael Ray Nutrish Zero-Grain Salmon and Sw Pot: 

 

Taste of the Wild Sierra Mountain Lamb (All flavors of dry dog food are GF) 

Lamb, lamb meal, sweet potatoes, egg product, lentils, peas, pea flour, canola oil, potatoes, dried yeast, 
roasted lamb, tomato pomace, natural flavor, salmon oil (a source of DHA), salt, DL-methionine, choline 
chloride, taurine, dried chicory root, tomatoes, blueberries, raspberries, yucca schidigera extract, dried 
Lactobacillus plantarum fermentation product, dried Bacillus subtilis fermentation product, dried 
Lactobacillus acidophilus fermentation product, dried Enterococcus faecium fermentation product, dried 
Bifidobacterium animalis fermentation product, vitamin E supplement, iron proteinate, zinc proteinate, 
copper proteinate, ferrous sulfate, zinc sulfate, copper sulfate, potassium iodide, thiamine mononitrate 
(vitamin B1), manganese proteinate, manganous oxide, ascorbic acid, vitamin A supplement., Biotin, 
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niacin, calcium pantothenate, manganese sulfate, sodium selenite, pyridoxine hydrochloride (vitamin 
B6), vitamin B12 supplement, riboflavin (vitamin B2), vitamin D supplement, folic acid. 

 

V-Dog Kinder Kibble Vegan Adult Dry (RICE, not really GF): 

Dried Peas, Pea Protein, Brown Rice, Oatmeal, Potato Protein, Sorghum, Canola Oil (Preserved with 
Mixed Tocopherols) , Natural Flavor, Suncured Alfalfa Meal, Brewers Dried Yeast, Dicalcium Phosphate, 
Flaxseeds, Millet, Calcium Carbonate, Lentils, Peanut Hearts, Quinoa, Sunflower Chips, Salt, Potassium 
Chloride, Choline Chloride, Taurine, Dried Carrots, Minerals (Ferrous Sulfate, Zinc Sulfate, Copper 
Sulfate, Sodium Selenite, Manganese Sulfate, Calcium Iodate), DI-methionine, Dried Parsley, Vitamins 
(Vitamin E Supplement, Vitamin A Supplement, Niacin Supplement, D-calcium Pantothenate, Riboflavin 
Supplement, Vitamin D2 Supplement, Thiamine Mononitrate, Vitamin B12 Supplement, Pyridoxine 
Hyrdochloride, Biotin, Folic Acid), L-Ascorbyl-2-Polyphosphate (A Source Of Vitamin C), Preserved with 
Citric Acid, Preserved with Mixed Tocopherols, Dried Blueberries, Dried Cranberries, Dried Celery, Yucca 
Schidigera Extract, Dried Lettuce, L-Carnitine, Dried Watercress, Dried Spinach, Rosemary Extract. 

 

Victor Hi-Pro Plus Formula Dry Dog food (no corn, wheat, soy or glutens)  NOT GF 

 

Whole Hearted GF Lamb and Lentil 

Lamb, lamb meal, lentils, chickpeas, peas, pea flour, canola oil (preserved with mixed tocopherols), fava 
beans, flaxseed, tomato pomace, natural flavor, salmon oil, salt, choline chloride, dried chicory root, 
yucca schidigera extract, dried Lactobacillus acidophilus fermentation product, dried Bifidobacterium 
animalis fermentation product, dried Lactobacillus reuteri fermentation product, vitamin E supplement, 
iron proteinate, zinc proteinate, copper proteinate, ferrous sulfate, zinc sulfate, copper sulfate, 
potassium iodide, thiamine mononitrate (source of vitamin B1), manganese proteinate, manganous 
oxide, ascorbic acid (preservative), vitamin A supplement, biotin, niacin, calcium pantothenate, 
manganese sulfate, sodium selenite, pyridoxine hydrochloride (source of vitamin B6), vitamin B12 
supplement, riboflavin (vitamin B2), vitamin D3 supplement, folic acid. 
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Zignature Kangaroo LID GF dry: 

Kangaroo, Kangaroo Meal, Peas, Chickpeas, Pea Flour, Sunflower Oil (preserved with Citric Acid), 
Flaxseed, Red Lentils, Green Lentils, Dehydrated Alfalfa Meal, Pea Protein, Natural Flavors, Salt, Minerals 
(Zinc Proteinate, Iron Proteinate, Copper Proteinate, Manganese Proteinate, Cobalt Proteinate, 
Selenium Yeast), Choline Chloride, Potassium Chloride, Calcium Carbonate, Vitamins (Vitamin A, 
Acetate, Vitamin D3 Supplement, Vitamin E Supplement, Niacin, d-Calcium Pantothenate, Thiamine 
Mononitrate, Pyridoxine Hydrochloride, Riboflavin Supplement, Folic Acid, Biotin, Vitamin B12 
Supplement), Lactic Acid, Calcium Iodate, Preserved With Mixed Tocopherols. 

Zignature Whitefish LID GF dry: 

Zignature Venison LID GF Dry: 

Zignature Lamb LID GF dry: 

Zignature Zssential LID GF dry: 
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 Unusual pet diets may be linked to heart disease
By Greg Cima
Posted July 11, 2018

Some specialty diets may be causing heart disease in dogs, and researchers are trying to identify the connection.

Dr. Lisa M. Freeman, a nutritionist and professor at the Cummings School of Veterinary Medicine at Tufts University, wrote June 
4 on the university's Petfoodology blog about a 4-year-old Beagle-Labrador mixed-breed dog saved from life-threatening dilated 
cardiomyopathy with treatment and a change of diet. Before treatment, the dog had been eating grain-free pet food containing 
kangaroo meat and chickpeas.

"It appears that diet may be increasing dogs' risk for heart disease because owners have fallen victim to the many myths and 
misperceptions about pet food," she wrote. "If diet proves to be the cause, this truly is heart-breaking to me."

Anne Norris, a spokeswoman for the Food and Drug Administration's Office of Foods and Veterinary Medicine, said the agency is 
studying a possible connection and will share more information when possible. Dr. Freeman had noted that the FDA and 
cardiologists are investigating a possible link between diet and dilated cardiomyopathy.

A dog or cat with dilated cardiomyopathy has an enlarged, weak heart, 
which can cause abnormal rhythms, congestive heart failure, and death.

Cats and at least some dogs can develop dilated cardiomyopathy if their 
diets contain too little taurine, an amino acid found in meat and milk. It is a 
neurotransmitter and cell membrane stabilizer, among other functions, 
according to the National Institutes of Health.

Despite the known link between dilated cardiomyopathy and taurine 
deficiency, most dogs that develop the disease have taurine concentrations 
within reference limits. The cause of cardiomyopathy in those dogs is 
typically unknown, but Dr. Freeman wrote that she has seen a consistent 
connection with boutique diets.

The Cummings Veterinary Medical Center also is warning people that they 
should tell a veterinary cardiologist if their pets have heart disease and eat 
foods that are homemade, raw, or vegetarian or that are made by small 
companies.

Information from the Morris Animal Foundation, which is funding research 
on dilated cardiomyopathy at the University of California-Davis, indicates the number of dogs with the disease may have 
increased recently among Golden Retrievers. Dr. Josh Stern, a cardiologist, is studying potential genetic links between Golden 
Retrievers and the disease.

"I suspect that Golden Retrievers might have something in their genetic make-up that makes them less efficient at making 
taurine," Dr. Stern said in an article from the foundation. "Couple that with certain diets, and you've given them a double hit. If you 
feed them a diet that has fewer building blocks for taurine or a food component that inhibits this synthesis, they pop up with 
DCM."
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Dr. Freeman recommends that owners submit a report to the FDA when their dogs are determined to have dilated 
cardiomyopathy. The Department of Health and Human Services accepts reports to the FDA.
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From: Jones, Jennifer L
To: "Darcy Adin"; Freeman, Lisa
Cc: adind@ufl.edu
Subject: RE: checking in
Date: Thursday, November 15, 2018 10:57:00 AM
Attachments: image003.png

image004.png
image005.png

Great! I sent a calendar appointment. Please forward as necessary.
Would you be willing to forward me a copy of the DCM article for JAVMA? I’d like to share it with our
communication team. They may get some inquiries after it’s release, and it would help them
prepare.
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Darcy Adin <dbadin@ncsu.edu> 
Sent: Thursday, November 15, 2018 8:01 AM
To: Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu>
Cc: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>; adind@ufl.edu
Subject: Re: checking in
 
Hi Jennifer,
Based on Lisa’s times, I could do the 3rd from 9-1 and the 4th from 9-1.
Thanks!
Darcy 

On Nov 15, 2018, at 7:55 AM, Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu> wrote:

Hi Jen
Dec 3 (9-1 or after 3), 4 (anytime), or 5 (10-3) would work for me.
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
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From: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, November 15, 2018 7:44 AM
To: Darcy Adin <dbadin@ncsu.edu>
Cc: Freeman, Lisa <lisa.freeman@tufts.edu>; adind@ufl.edu
Subject: RE: checking in
 
Good morning Darcy and Lisa,
Yes, let’s plan for a meeting after Thanksgiving. When in early December would work
well for you?
Thanks,
Jen
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

<image001.png>    
 
From: Darcy Adin <dbadin@ncsu.edu> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 07, 2018 3:20 PM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: Freeman, Lisa <lisa.freeman@tufts.edu>; adind@ufl.edu
Subject: checking in
 
Hi Jennifer,
 
I hope you are doing well!  I wanted to check in with you to let you know that I have
changed affiliations and am now working at the University of Florida (my new email is
adind@ufl.edu, copied above). 
 
Dr. Freeman and I wanted to check to see if your group be willing to have a follow up
call regarding the dietary induced DCM issue? 
 
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
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Sent: Friday, May 4, 2018 9:46 AM
To: Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>; Queen, Jackie L <Jackie.Queen@fda.hhs.gov>;
Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>; Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: Reimschuessel, Renate <Renate.Reimschuessel@fda.hhs.gov>; Ceric, Olgica
<Olgica.Ceric@fda.hhs.gov>; Nemser, Sarah <Sarah.Nemser@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM cases-food-Iodine screening results
 
One more nutritional deficiency-Taurine low based on AAFCO’s Feline Minimum for Extruded foods.
The dog consuming the product had a low whole blood Taurine level.
 

•         Taurine = 45.5 mg/100g = 0.0455g/100g = 0.046% As Is Basis
If we assume a max of 10% moisture per the label (= 90% DMB),

then 0.0455 / 0.90 = 0.05% DMB, which is less than the AAFCO minimum for cats
eating extruded foods (0.1% DMB.)

•         Cystine = 293 mg/100g = 0.293 g/100g = 0.29% As Is Basis
If we assume a max of 10% moisture per the label (= 90% DMB), then 0.293 / 0.90 = 0.33%
DMB

•         Methionine = 358mg/100g = 0.358 g/100g = 0.36% As Is Basis
If we assume a max of 10% moisture per the label (= 90% DMB),

then 0.358 / 0.90 = 0.4% DMB, which is greater than the AAFCO minimum for
growth & reproduction of 0.35% DMB.

The Methionine-cystine % = 0.4% + 0.33% = 0.73% DMB, which is greater than the
AAFCO minimum for growth & reproduction of 0.7% DMB.

 
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Jones, Jennifer L 
Sent: Monday, April 23, 2018 10:32 AM
To: Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>; Queen, Jackie L <Jackie.Queen@fda.hhs.gov>;
Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>; Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: 'Reimschuessel, Renate (Renate.Reimschuessel@fda.hhs.gov)'
<Renate.Reimschuessel@fda.hhs.gov>; Ceric, Olgica <Olgica.Ceric@fda.hhs.gov>; Nemser, Sarah
<Sarah.Nemser@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: DCM cases-food-Iodine screening results
 
FYI-Iodine < 10ppm for the foods tested. Exogenous thyrotoxicosis unlikely a cause of the DCM
Multiple EONs Involved:

•         800.218
o   EON-323515
o   EON-345822
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•         800.261
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
Date: Friday, May 04, 2018 9:45:00 AM
Attachments: EON-350158-Ward-case summary-5.4.2018.doc

800.261- -Tau-Cys-Met.PDF
image001.png
image002.png
image003.png

One more nutritional deficiency-Taurine low based on AAFCO’s Feline Minimum for Extruded foods.
The dog consuming the product had a low whole blood Taurine level.
 

•       Taurine = 45.5 mg/100g = 0.0455g/100g = 0.046% As Is Basis
If we assume a max of 10% moisture per the label (= 90% DMB),

then 0.0455 / 0.90 = 0.05% DMB, which is less than the AAFCO minimum for cats
eating extruded foods (0.1% DMB.)

•       Cystine = 293 mg/100g = 0.293 g/100g = 0.29% As Is Basis
If we assume a max of 10% moisture per the label (= 90% DMB), then 0.293 / 0.90 = 0.33%
DMB

•       Methionine = 358mg/100g = 0.358 g/100g = 0.36% As Is Basis
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

Vet-LIRN Case Number:  800.261 
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

x MSU 
o Iodine 

x  
o Cys-Met-Tau 

Vet-LIRN Test Results: 
x Iodine < 10 ppm-no suspicion of 

exogenous thyroid tissue 
x Tau 

Result Interpretation:   
IF NFA, justification:   

 

COMPLAINT Narrative: At the time of diagnosis ),  was a 13 year old female spayed 
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

PE  @ specialist: LS-OU, HR 100 bpm, mild periodontal disease, Gr II/VI, left apical 
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
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From: Rotstein, David
To: Jones, Jennifer L; Norris, Anne; Carey, Lauren; Palmer, Lee Anne
Cc: DeLancey, Siobhan
Subject: RE: DCM-Follow up call?
Date: Monday, August 06, 2018 10:57:15 AM

That will work

David Rotstein, DVM, MPVM, Dipl. ACVP
CVM Vet-LIRN Liaison
CVM OSC/DC/CERT
7519 Standish Place

 (BB)

       

This e-mail message is intended for the exclusive use of the recipient(s) named above. It may contain information
that is protected, privileged, or confidential, and it should not be disseminated, distributed, or copied to persons not
authorized to receive such information. If you are not the intended recipient, any dissemination, distribution, or
copying is strictly prohibited. If you think you received this e-mail message in error, please e-mail the sender
immediately at david.rotstein@fda.hhs.gov.

-----Original Message-----
From: Jones, Jennifer L
Sent: Monday, August 06, 2018 10:46 AM
To: Norris, Anne <Anne.Norris@fda hhs.gov>; Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda hhs.gov>; Rotstein, David
<David.Rotstein@fda hhs.gov>; Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: DeLancey, Siobhan <Siobhan.Delancey@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM-Follow up call?

Would Wed from 4-5 work?

Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421
   

-----Original Message-----
From: Norris, Anne
Sent: Monday, August 06, 2018 8:34 AM
To: Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>; Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>; Jones, Jennifer
L <Jennifer.Jones@fda hhs.gov>; Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: DeLancey, Siobhan <Siobhan.Delancey@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM-Follow up call?

I'm interested. Best times would be this morning or Tuesday afternoon. My calendar should be up to date.

Thanks!

-----Original Message-----
From: Carey, Lauren
Sent: Monday, August 06, 2018 7:10 AM
To: Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>; Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>; Palmer, Lee
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Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: DeLancey, Siobhan <Siobhan.Delancey@fda.hhs.gov>; Norris, Anne <Anne.Norris@fda hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM-Follow up call?

I'm interested. I'm free every afternoon except today and all day Friday. Lee Anne's out for the week but I'll take
notes for her.

-----Original Message-----
From: Rotstein, David
Sent: Monday, August 06, 2018 6:48 AM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>; Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda hhs.gov>; Carey,
Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: DeLancey, Siobhan <Siobhan.Delancey@fda.hhs.gov>; Norris, Anne <Anne.Norris@fda hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: DCM-Follow up call?

I'm interested.  Vet-LIRN grants Tues and Thursday; I can do today, Wednesday, and possibly Friday.

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
Sent: Monday, August 06, 2018 6:42 AM
To: Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>; Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda hhs.gov>; Carey,
Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: DeLancey, Siobhan <Siobhan.Delancey@fda.hhs.gov>; Norris, Anne <Anne.Norris@fda hhs.gov>
Subject: FW: DCM-Follow up call?

Are you folks interested in attending? Let me know your availability this week (except Thursday).

Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421
   

-----Original Message-----
From: Darcy Adin [mailto:dbadin@ncsu.edu]
Sent: Friday, August 03, 2018 11:29 PM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: Lisa Freeman <lisa freeman@tufts.edu>
Subject: Follow up call?

Hi Dr. Jones,
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Dr. Freeman and I are wondering if your group would be willing to have another conference call as a follow-up to
discuss the nutritionally based DCM cases?  As you know, since the release of the FDA statement, there has been
much discussion among the public and the veterinary community, and we thought it could be useful to reconvene.

Thank you for your thoughts!
Darcy 
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From: Rotstein, David
To: Carey, Lauren; Ceric, Olgica; Jones, Jennifer L; Glover, Mark; Nemser, Sarah; Palmer, Lee Anne; Queen, Jackie

L; Reimschuessel, Renate
Subject: Re: Facebook Taurine Deficiency Warning
Date: Monday, February 12, 2018 7:16:58 AM

Thanks Lauren

I agree the verdict is out on the cause, but gutsy to raise awareness like that!

From: Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Date: February 12, 2018 at 7:10:21 AM EST
To: Ceric, Olgica <Olgica.Ceric@fda.hhs.gov>, Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>,
Glover, Mark <Mark.Glover@fda.hhs.gov>, Nemser, Sarah <Sarah.Nemser@fda.hhs.gov>,
Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>, Queen, Jackie L
<Jackie.Queen@fda.hhs.gov>, Reimschuessel, Renate <Renate.Reimschuessel@fda.hhs.gov>,
Rotstein, David <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: Facebook Taurine Deficiency Warning

FYI, I saw this posted on a veterinary hospital facebook page. Apparently the post comments were
overflowing with anger because the hospital warned pet owners that grain free diets were not
necessarily magical or good. People do love their “grain free.”
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From: Jones, Jennifer L
To: Carey, Lauren; Ceric, Olgica; Glover, Mark; Nemser, Sarah; Palmer, Lee Anne; Queen, Jackie L; Reimschuessel,

Renate; Rotstein, David
Subject: RE: Facebook Taurine Deficiency Warning
Date: Monday, February 12, 2018 7:12:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image003.png

Yes, unfortunatley, ? I
guess we’ll see when we test…
Thanks for sharing, Lauren!
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Carey, Lauren 
Sent: Monday, February 12, 2018 7:10 AM
To: Ceric, Olgica <Olgica.Ceric@fda.hhs.gov>; Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>;
Glover, Mark <Mark.Glover@fda.hhs.gov>; Nemser, Sarah <Sarah.Nemser@fda.hhs.gov>; Palmer,
Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>; Queen, Jackie L <Jackie.Queen@fda.hhs.gov>;
Reimschuessel, Renate <Renate.Reimschuessel@fda.hhs.gov>; Rotstein, David
<David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>
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
To: Freeman, Lisa
Subject: RE: FDA Update Links-Live 6/27/2019
Date: Monday, July 15, 2019 7:05:00 AM
Attachments: image005.png

image006.png
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Hi Lisa,
Yes, I absolutely have time. I’ll gather my group here and send a few calendar appointments.
Thank you,
Jen
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu> 
Sent: Friday, July 05, 2019 4:02 PM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: FDA Update Links-Live 6/27/2019
 
Hi Jen
It would probably make the most sense to schedule a time to chat with Darcy and me. 
Do you have some time in the next couple weeks?
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
Sent: Friday, July 05, 2019 6:50 AM
To: Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu>
Cc: Norris, Anne <Anne.Norris@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: FDA DCM Update Links-Live 6/27/2019
 
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

<image005.png>  <image006.png>
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From: Jones, Jennifer L
To: "Darcy Adin"; Freeman, Lisa
Subject: RE: Follow up call?
Date: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 6:42:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image003.png

Absolutely, Darcy. Please do!
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Darcy Adin [mailto:dbadin@ncsu.edu] 
Sent: Monday, August 06, 2018 7:33 PM
To: Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu>
Cc: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: Re: Follow up call?
 
Hi Jennifer
Would it be ok to invite the others who were previously involved in our call?  If so, I’ll ask
them if they are available at that time.
Thank you!
Darcy 

On Aug 6, 2018, at 6:48 PM, Darcy Adin <dbadin@ncsu.edu> wrote:

That would work for me as well.  Thank you!
Darcy
 
On Mon, Aug 6, 2018 at 11:00 AM, Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu>
wrote:

That works for me
Thanks
LIsa

-----Original Message-----
From: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Monday, August 6, 2018 10:47 AM
To: Darcy Adin <dbadin@ncsu.edu>
Cc: Freeman, Lisa <lisa.freeman@tufts.edu>
Subject: RE: Follow up call?

Good morning Darcy and Lisa,
Would you be available Wed at 4 pm?
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
Cc: Lisa Freeman <lisa.freeman@tufts.edu>
Subject: Follow up call?

Hi Dr. Jones,

Dr. Freeman and I are wondering if your group would be willing to have
another conference call as a follow-up to discuss the nutritionally based DCM
cases?  As you know, since the release of the FDA statement, there has been
much discussion among the public and the veterinary community, and we
thought it could be useful to reconvene.

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
To: Darcy Adin
Cc: Joshua A Stern; Korinn Saker; Fries, Ryan C; Freeman, Lisa; Jones, Jennifer L
Subject: Re: hold-FDA call w/ NCSU & Tufts re: DCM
Date: Tuesday, August 07, 2018 8:30:34 AM

Hi Darcy and others,

I am on vacation this week at the  and am not sure exactly where we will be

tomorrow at 4, but will do my best1

On Tue, Aug 7, 2018 at 7:08 AM, Darcy Adin <dbadin@ncsu.edu> wrote:

Hi Josh, Korinn, Ryan and ,

I know it is short notice but if any of you are available to conference with Dr. Jones and her

group at the FDA, we would love to have you join us tomorrow (wednesday) at 4pm EST to

discuss where we are with investigations after the FDA statement release. 

Thanks!

Darcy and Lisa

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>

Date: Mon, Aug 6, 2018 at 10:58 AM

Subject: hold-FDA call w/ NCSU & Tufts re: DCM

To: "Norris, Anne" <Anne.Norris@fda.hhs.gov>, "DeLancey, Siobhan"

<Siobhan.Delancey@fda.hhs.gov>, "Rotstein, David" <David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>,

"Palmer, Lee Anne" <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>, "Carey, Lauren"

<Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>, "Reimschuessel, Renate" <Renate.Reimschuessel@fda.hhs.

gov>, "Ceric, Olgica" <Olgica.Ceric@fda.hhs.gov>, "Nemser, Sarah"

<Sarah.Nemser@fda.hhs.gov>, Darcy Adin <dbadin@ncsu.edu>, Lisa Freeman

<lisa.freeman@tufts.edu>

-- Do not delete or change any of the following text. --   
  
  
Join Webex meeting   
Meeting number (access code)  
Meeting password   
  

Join by phone  
+1-210-795-0506 US Toll  
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

IMPORTANT NOTICE: Please note that this Webex service allows audio and other information sent during the session to be recorded, which
may be discoverable in a legal matter. By joining this session, you automatically consent to such recordings. If you do not consent to being
recorded, discuss your concerns with the host or do not join the session.

 

-- 
Darcy B. Adin, DVM, DACVIM (Cardiology)
Clinical Assistant Professor of Cardiology
North Carolina State University
NC State Veterinary Hospital
1060 William Moore Drive
Raleigh, NC 27607
919-513-6032

-- 
, DVM, DACVIM (Cardiology)

ACVIM Cardiology Secretary
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From: Freeman, Lisa
To: Jones, Jennifer L
Subject: RE: Meeting to discuss ACVIM findings
Date: Tuesday, July 16, 2019 3:07:10 PM
Attachments: image004.png

image006.png

Hi Jen
I could make any of those work
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
Sent: Tuesday, July 16, 2019 1:23 PM
To: Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu>; ADIN,DARCY BRITTAIN <adind@ufl.edu>; Palmer, Lee
Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>; Carey, Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>; Norris, Anne
<Anne.Norris@fda.hhs.gov>; DeLancey, Siobhan <Siobhan.Delancey@fda.hhs.gov>; Rotstein, David
<David.Rotstein@fda.hhs.gov>; Peloquin, Sarah <Sarah.Peloquin@fda.hhs.gov>; Burkholder, William
<William.Burkholder@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: Meeting to discuss ACVIM findings
 
Good afternoon everyone,
Lisa mentioned sharing some updates on the preliminary DCM findings from work with Darcy. The
work was previously presented at ACVIM. Please reply by voting on the best day and time to meet to
discuss their update.
If the voting does not work, here are the dates/times.
              Tues July 30 at 2pm
              Mon Aug 5 at 11am
              Mon Aug 12 at 1pm
Looking forward to chatting with you.
Take care,
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
Cc: ADIN,DARCY BRITTAIN
Subject: Re: Meeting with Tufts and UFL-discuss ACVIM findings
Date: Tuesday, July 23, 2019 8:25:58 AM

Hi Jen. 
Any of these work except 8/27 at 8 am
Thanks. Lisa

Sent from my iPhone

> On Jul 23, 2019, at 7:07 AM, Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov> wrote:
>
> Would any of these dates work well?
> 8/13 at either 8 am or 10 am
> 8/19 at 10 am
> 8/26 at 10 am or 11 am
> 8/27 at 8 am or 10 am
>
>
> Jennifer Jones, DVM
> Veterinary Medical Officer
> Tel: 240-402-5421
>
>
> -----Original Message-----
> From: ADIN,DARCY BRITTAIN <adind@ufl.edu>
> Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2019 11:00 AM
> To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>; Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu>
> Subject: RE: Meeting with Tufts and UFL-discuss ACVIM findings
>
> Hi Jennifer,
>
> Monday and Tuesday mornings work best for me if there are any dates where that would work for you?
>
> Thanks!
> Darcy
>
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
> Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2019 10:30 AM
> To: Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu>; ADIN,DARCY BRITTAIN <adind@ufl.edu>
> Subject: RE: Meeting with Tufts and UFL-discuss ACVIM findings
>
> Absolutely! Darcy, when are some good dates for you in August?
>
> Jennifer Jones, DVM
> Veterinary Medical Officer
> Tel: 240-402-5421
>
>
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu>
> Sent: Thursday, July 18, 2019 10:27 AM
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> To: ADIN,DARCY BRITTAIN <adind@ufl.edu>; Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda hhs.gov>
> Subject: RE: Meeting with Tufts and UFL-discuss ACVIM findings
>
> Hi Jen
> I'd love to have Darcy there. Could we look a little farther out for a date when she is available?
> Thanks
> Lisa
>
> Lisa M. Freeman, DVM, PhD, DACVN
> Board Certified Veterinary NutritionistTM Professor Cummings School of Veterinary Medicine Friedman School
of Nutrition Science and Policy Tufts Clinical and Translational Science Institute Tufts University
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.petfoodology.org&d=DwIGaQ&c=sJ6xIWYx-
zLMB3EPkvcnVg&r=V5a7URrvXpMRhVvlyTKAig&m=q2cdn42ly1j-
4kUqufSPes05nnq2f18hE6RBLDWOVqk&s=uQ-QwXWfNT9U4KBuYqDEDHtfFvlnFDP3gFpILADaRfM&e=
>
>
>
> -----Original Message-----
> From: ADIN,DARCY BRITTAIN <adind@ufl.edu>
> Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 9:18 PM
> To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
> Cc: Freeman, Lisa <Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu>
> Subject: Re: Meeting with Tufts and UFL-discuss ACVIM findings
>
> Hi Jen,
> Unfortunately I won’t be able to make the call but hopefully Dr. Freeman will be able to?
> Take care
> Darcy
>
>> On Jul 17, 2019, at 10:23 AM, Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda hhs.gov> wrote:
>>
>> Please forward if I missed anyone. This time seemed to work well for most folks.
>>
>>
>> -- Do not delete or change any of the following text. --
>>
>>
>>
>> When it's time, join your Webex meeting here.
>>
>>
>>
>>
>>
>> Meeting number (access code): 
>>
>> Meeting password: 
>>
>>
>>
>>
>>
>>
>>
>> Join<https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__fda1.webex.c
>> om_fda1_j.php-3FMTID-3Dm1e91ed293192a5751cf81fe0a878393f&d=DwMFAw&c=sJ
>> 6xIWYx-zLMB3EPkvcnVg&r=V5a7URrvXpMRhVvlyTKAig&m=8l8p6oias09ebW7G_x6RUT
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>> OrVjDMkiyrP9TxSrZeD0c&s=1Z05fOSrbYymRFMVCtPEpVkagDdW3BUjFDUb0L4zt0g&e=
>>>
>>
>>
>>
>>
>> Join by phone
>> Tap to call in from a mobile device (attendees only)
>> +1-210-795-0506 US Toll
>> +1-877-465-7975 US Toll Free
>> Global call-in
>> numbers<https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__fda1.webe
>> x.com_fda1_globalcallin.php-3FMTID-3Dm5dfe31deee3865c2ecbe371b84b925c3
>> &d=DwMFAw&c=sJ6xIWYx-zLMB3EPkvcnVg&r=V5a7URrvXpMRhVvlyTKAig&m=8l8p6oia
>> s09ebW7G_x6RUTOrVjDMkiyrP9TxSrZeD0c&s=V0vg6coPT-BiW7QgJ7lu9obvpfbl7Qbt
>> LivD7M9LQmQ&e=>  |  Toll-free calling
>> restrictions<https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__e-2D
>> meetings.verizonbusiness.com_global_pdf_Verizon-5FAudio-5FConferencing
>> -5FGlobal-5FAccess-5FInformation-5FAugust2017.pdf&d=DwMFAw&c=sJ6xIWYx-
>> zLMB3EPkvcnVg&r=V5a7URrvXpMRhVvlyTKAig&m=8l8p6oias09ebW7G_x6RUTOrVjDMk
>> iyrP9TxSrZeD0c&s=mGRi5gQiwNLfT7Oib_YoAmYq9o4RPteyYX9yoBLI2fA&e=>
>>
>>
>>
>>
>>
>> Need help? Go to
>> https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__help.webex.com&d=D
>> wIGaQ&c=sJ6xIWYx-zLMB3EPkvcnVg&r=V5a7URrvXpMRhVvlyTKAig&m=q2cdn42ly1j-
>> 4kUqufSPes05nnq2f18hE6RBLDWOVqk&s=1HTkYG-gl2_tHUjfBHV36a0bvVDljyunwQqE
>> D-hFGB4&e=
>> <https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__help.webex.com&d=
>> DwMFAw&c=sJ6xIWYx-zLMB3EPkvcnVg&r=V5a7URrvXpMRhVvlyTKAig&m=8l8p6oias09
>> ebW7G_x6RUTOrVjDMkiyrP9TxSrZeD0c&s=rA1k3wfkBJHshv4RBxaGyjT8xaJ9P9xdoDC
>> a10X4l74&e=>
>>
>>
>>
>>
>> <meeting.ics>
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From: Rotstein, David
To: Jones, Jennifer L; Palmer, Lee Anne; Carey, Lauren; Peloquin, Sarah; Burkholder, William; Freeman, Lisa;

ADIN,DARCY BRITTAIN; Pohl, Aurelie; Norris, Anne; DeLancey, Siobhan
Cc: Ceric, Olgica
Subject: RE: Meeting with Tufts and UFL-discuss ACVIM findings
Date: Tuesday, August 13, 2019 8:43:06 AM
Attachments: Histopathologic Findings – Confirmed and Non-Confirmed DCM [Autosaved] [Autosaved].pptx
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Please do not forward.
 
thanks
 
David Rotstein, DVM, MPVM, Dipl. ACVP
CVM Vet-LIRN Liaison
CVM OSC/DC/CERRT
7519 Standish Place

(BB)
 

        
 
This e-mail message is intended for the exclusive use of the recipient(s) named above. It may contain
information that is protected, privileged, or confidential, and it should not be disseminated,
distributed, or copied to persons not authorized to receive such information. If you are not the
intended recipient, any dissemination, distribution, or copying is strictly prohibited. If you think you
received this e-mail message in error, please e-mail the sender immediately at
david.rotstein@fda.hhs.gov.
 
-----Original Appointment-----
From: Jones, Jennifer L 
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 10:19 AM
To: Jones, Jennifer L; Palmer, Lee Anne; Carey, Lauren; Rotstein, David; Peloquin, Sarah; Burkholder,
William; Freeman, Lisa; ADIN,DARCY BRITTAIN; Pohl, Aurelie; Norris, Anne; DeLancey, Siobhan
Cc: Ceric, Olgica
Subject: Meeting with Tufts and UFL-discuss ACVIM findings
When: Tuesday, August 13, 2019 8:00 AM-9:00 AM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
Where: virtual meeting
 
Please forward if I missed anyone. 
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Need help? Go to http://help.webex.com

 

When it's time, join your Webex meeting here.
 

Meeting number (access code): 

Meeting password:  
 

 

Join  

 

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
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Histopathologic 
Findings – Confirmed 
and Non-Confirmed 
DCM
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DCM & Non-DCM Cases

• Cases
• Cases from CVCA and PFRs
• Dogs:

• 6  DCM based on echo
• 3  non-DCM:

• Sudden death
• Endocardiosis with lung and bladder mass
• Cardiomegaly with CHF
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Histologic Findings

• Group:
• Primary DCM (5/6)
• Secondary DCM (1/6)- infectious

• Histo- Cardiac
• Cardiomyocyte atrophy and degeneration (5/5)
• Fatty infiltration (steatosis)(4/5)
• Interstitial edema (3/5)
• (mild) interstitial myocarditis (3/5)
• Endocardiosis (5/5)
• Fibrosis (4/5)

• Histo- Non-Cardiac (associated with cardiac disease)
• Pulmonary edema (3/5)
• Pulmonary fibrosis (3/5)
• Hepatic chronic passive congestion (4/5)
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DCM: Gross
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800.267-CC-092-EON-361684-Dorsal Left Ventricle Level 2 10X
800.267-CC-092-EON-361684-Dorsal Left Ventricle Level 2 40X

800.267-CC-092-EON-361684-Dorsal Left Ventricle Level 2 40X-b

800.267-CC-092-EON-361684-Left Atrioventricular Valve- 2X

800.267-CC-191-EON-364014-Ventral Right Ventricle - 10X FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-001095



Secondary DCM & Non-DCM Cases

Secondary DCM- Myocarditis Mesothelioma Bronchoalveolar Carcinoma (middle photo) & 
Endocardiosis(lower photo)
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From: Hartogensis, Martine
To: Edwards, David; Palmer, Lee Anne; Burkholder, William; Jones, Jennifer L; Rotstein, David; Carey, Lauren;

Norris, Anne; DeLancey, Siobhan; Conway, Charlotte
Cc: McDermott, Patrick; Reimschuessel, Renate
Subject: Weekly DCM Call with PFI :)
Date: Friday, August 17, 2018 4:02:00 PM

Hi,
 
I had my weekly DCM call with PFI to share our updated case numbers (thank you Lee Anne and
Lauren!) with Peter Tabor.  I mentioned the 94 new cases involving DCM (~92 percent labeled as
grain-free).
 

 

 
 
That’s it for now and thank you all for all your help!!

Martine
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From: Palmer, Lee Anne
To: Hartogensis, Martine
Cc: Carey, Lauren; Rotstein, David; Jones, Jennifer L; Burkholder, William
Subject: PFI - CVM webinar and premeeting for next week - ...will need to miss (I had informed

Nanette)
Date: Thursday, July 12, 2018 11:42:47 AM
Attachments: Information PFI CVM Webinar on July 19 (pre-meeting).msg
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image004.jpg
image005.jpg
image006.jpg

Importance: High

Hi – never good timing, but we have  next week. I let Nanette know last week
when the PFI meeting was scheduled.  Understandably, she didn’t want to move the meeting since
it’s hard to schedule.  I will not be on either Tuesday or Thursday of next week for the meeting. 
Lauren should be well able to cover anything from our team.
 
Sorry to miss – thanks and good luck. Looks like an interesting set of questions from PFI…
 
Thanks, Lee Anne
 
Lee Anne M. Palmer, VMD, MPH
Team Leader HFV-242, Supervisory VMO        

Center for Veterinary Medicine
OSC, Division of Veterinary Product Safety
U.S. Food and Drug Administration
Tel: 240-402-5767
Leeanne.palmer@fda.hhs.gov
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
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From: DeLancey, Siobhan
To: Steven Rosenthal
Cc: Jones, Jennifer L
Subject: RE: FDA-CVCA Confidentiality Agreement for signature
Date: Wednesday, July 18, 2018 6:27:59 AM
Attachments: image001.png
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image003.jpg
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image005.jpg
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Steve, can you give me a call at your convenience today? I should be at my desk most of the day.
Right now the only time I know I’ll be unavailable is 10:30-11:30.
 
Siobhan DeLancey, RVT, MPH
Senior Advisor for Strategic Initiatives
Center for Veterinary Medicine
U.S. Food and Drug Administration
O: 240-402-9973
M: 202-510-4177

Siobhan.DeLancey@fda.hhs.gov

        
 

From: Steven Rosenthal [mailto:steven.rosenthal@cvcavets.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 17, 2018 10:37 PM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: DeLancey, Siobhan <Siobhan.Delancey@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: Re: FDA-CVCA Confidentiality Agreement for signature
 
OK Here we go - this time it is signed
Sorry for the first mishap
Steve
 
Steven Rosenthal DVM Dip ACVIM, Cardiology
CVCA Cardiac Care for Pets
Annapolis, Towson, Columbia, Gaithersburg, Rockville and Frederick, MD
Vienna, Leesburg, Springfield, Fairfax and Richmond, VA
Louisville, KY
Email:steven.rosenthal@cvcavets.com
Visit our Website: www.cvcavets.com
"Like" our Fan Page: www.facebook.com/CVCAVETS
"Follow" us on Instagram: https://www.instagram.com/cvcavets

On Jul 17, 2018, at 3:32 PM, Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
wrote:
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Good afternoon Steve,

Jen
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421
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From: Jones, Jennifer L 
Sent: Tuesday, July 17, 2018 10:11 AM
To: 'Steven Rosenthal' <steven.rosenthal@cvcavets.com>
Subject: RE: FDA-CVCA Confidentiality Agreement for signature
 
No worries. Please sign this copy. It has our office director’s signature.
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer
Tel: 240-402-5421
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From: Steven Rosenthal [mailto:steven.rosenthal@cvcavets.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 17, 2018 10:06 AM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: Re: FDA-CVCA Confidentiality Agreement for signature
 

I guess that would be a good idea - my apologies I will send it tonight - too many
things on my plate - I thought I signed it before scanning 

Sent from my iPhone

On Jul 17, 2018, at 8:40 AM, Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
wrote:

Good morning Dr. Rosenthal,
Thank you for sending the agreement. I don’t see a signature on the
document. Can you please resend?
Thank you again,
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
Sent: Monday, July 16, 2018 10:53 PM
To: Jones, Jennifer L <Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: Re: FDA-CVCA Confidentiality Agreement for signature
 
 
Here is the signed agreement
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

 

On Jul 16, 2018, at 6:58 AM, Jones, Jennifer L
<Jennifer.Jones@fda.hhs.gov> wrote:
 
Good morning Steve,
There are a few goals with the collaboration. 

 I’m happy to discuss further by phone.
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Jen
 
Jennifer L. A. Jones, DVM
Veterinary Medical Officer 
U.S. Food & Drug Administration
Center for Veterinary Medicine
Office of Research 
Veterinary Laboratory Investigation and Response Network (Vet-
LIRN)
8401 Muirkirk Road, G704
Laurel, Maryland 20708
new tel: 240-402-5421
fax: 301-210-4685 
e-mail: jennifer.jones@fda.hhs.gov
Web: http://www.fda.gov/AnimalVeterinary/ScienceResearch/ucm247334.htm
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<CVCA-FDA CDA-6.26.2018-Final.pdf>
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From: Medical Records
To: Jones, Jennifer L
Subject:  records
Date: Friday, April 20, 2018 5:18:44 PM
Attachments:  records.pdf

See Attached
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
ADDENDUM on 4/20/2018 at 08:34:23 from , BVSc, MRCVS,
ACVIM
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

Page  1 of 30 Date: 4/20/2018 5:17
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
Called , spoke to . Ordered Pimobendan 10 mg
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

Dr 
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

Pimobendan ( ) 10 mg tiny tablets  - 1 tablet two times a day
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

It has been a pleasure meeting you and caring for your Thank you for
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
Client: 2) Patient:
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
---- Note from , BVSc, MRCVS, ACVIM on 2/23/2018 at 15:06:34
----
Pimobendan ( ) 10 mg tiny tablets  - 1 tablet two times a day, #100, 8
refills

2/22/2018 TC RECORDS FROM RDVM/LDVM (see attachment) - TENTATIVE
2/22/2018     14:47     rDVM records attached.  -  Attachment(s)

3/10/2017 C COMMUNICATIONS WITH CLIENT
3/10/2017     10:26
updated owner regarding - recommending trial of soloxine. can be low from
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
 Ascn:   Profile: TSH

3/7/2017 C RADIOLOGY REVIEW - CLOSED 03/08/2017
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

This review was written by: , DVM, DACVR, DACVS

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
month.  Other diagnostics to consider would be a fluoroscopy study of 
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

 confirmed appt w/ gr @ 330 on 3/7
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

to confirm 3:30 pm  appt tomorrow

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
faxed ref letters and labs to  per o's req

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
# .

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
Rx #: PIYM90115000055

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
animal hospital and the other can be called into target in .  O OK with this plan.
Called doxy into target pharm and rx to be faxed to  animal hospital.

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

PATHOLOGIST:   DVM, PhD, DIPLOMATE ACVP
email: .com, ph:

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

Internal Medicine Assessment  is a 2 yo MN golden retriever with episodes of
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
episode he will snore when sleeping.  When he has an episode,  heads to the
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

5/7/2015 C FAC RADIOLOGY REPORT - FINAL 05/07/2015
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

Page 23 of 30 Date: 4/20/2018 5:17
PM

FDA-CVM-FOIA-2019-1704-001133

(b) (6)
(b) (6)

(b) (6)
(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) (6)

(b) 
(6)

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
Date Patient Checked Out: 05/03/15 Practice TF

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
will call and schedule with after thanksgiving.

11/14/2014 CK swallowing issues
Reason for Visit: Consult
Date Patient Checked Out: 11/14/14 Practice TF

5/31/2014 C IM TREATMENT NEW
5/31/2014

Internal Medicine Assessment  is a 2 yo MN golden retriever with usual
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

Referring Vet:  Hospital:

ULTRASONOGRAPHIC FINDING: # of
Films:
Written: 5/30/2014

   Liver     The liver appeared diffusely normal; the liver margins were smooth.
   Gallbladder     The gall bladder appeared normal-the visible biliary tree is not
dilated.
   Spleen     The spleen appeared normal.
   Right Kidney     The right kidney had good corticomedullary distinction; Smooth
capsule; there were no nephroliths and the renal pelvis was not dilated.  The right
kidney measured: 6.73 cm
   Left Kidney     The left kidney had good corticomedullary distinction, Smooth
capsule; there were no nephroliths and the renal pelvis was not dilated.  The left
kidney measured: 6.55 cm
   Urinary Bladder     The urinary bladder appeared normal; no urolith or masses
seen.
   Right Adrenal     The right adrenal was normal size and shape measuring: 0.45
cm
   Left Adrenal     The left adrenal was normal size and shape measuring: 0.54 cm
   Stomach     The stomach appeared normal and empty of ingesta
   Small Intestines     The small intestine appeared normal in layering and thickness
measuring 0.51 - duodenum
   Colon     The colon appeared normal.
   Pancreas     The pancreatic region appeared normal.
   Lymph Nodes     There was no obvious mesenteric or sublumbar
lymphadenopathy.
   Prostate     Appeared small and symmetrical for a neutered male.
   Uterus
   Testicles    Not visualized - neutered.
   Ovaries

Additional Comments:  There was no free fluid noted. There were no overt
abnormalities noted to explain patient's clinical signs.

5/30/2014 C IM TREATMENT NEW
5/30/2014

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
completely resove the signs.  These episodes seemed to start when  was 9 mo
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
Recevied fax from . Placed in box under " "

5/27/2014 C RECEPTION ACTIONS NOTE     ***ADDENDUM 5/27/2014
recv'd fax from  and  in black
bx under ".
ADDENDUM on 5/27/2014 at 12:49:24 from 
Recv'd fax from . Placed in black box under 
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From: Jones, Jennifer L
To: "Freeman, Lisa"
Subject: RE: as promised
Date: Wednesday, August 08, 2018 5:15:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image003.png

Thank you!
 
Jennifer Jones, DVM

Veterinary Medical Officer

Tel: 240-402-5421

    
 

From: Freeman, Lisa [mailto:Lisa.Freeman@tufts.edu] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 08, 2018 4:43 PM
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
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From: Conway, Charlotte
To: Edwards, David
Subject: FW: DCM Plan
Date: Tuesday, June 04, 2019 1:55:00 PM
Attachments: DCM Project Plan.docx

fyi
 

From: Forfa, Tracey 
Sent: Tuesday, June 04, 2019 12:22 PM
To: Steinberg, Nadine <Nadine.Steinberg@fda.hhs.gov>; DeLancey, Siobhan
<Siobhan.Delancey@fda.hhs.gov>; Norris, Anne <Anne.Norris@fda.hhs.gov>; Hartogensis, Martine
<Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>; Palmer, Lee Anne <LeeAnne.Palmer@fda.hhs.gov>; Carey,
Lauren <Lauren.Carey@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: Dewitt, Susan J <Susan.Dewitt@fda.hhs.gov>; Cepeda, Sandra <Sandra.Cepeda@fda.hhs.gov>;
Murphy, Jeanette <Jenny.Murphy@fda.hhs.gov>; Conway, Charlotte
<Charlotte.Conway@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: DCM Plan
 

Thank you!!!  
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      DCM Plan 
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From: Cepeda, Sandra
To: Palmer, Lee Anne
Cc: Hartogensis, Martine
Subject: RE: Copy of DCM Complaint File - 4-24-2019.xls FOR REDACTION
Date: Thursday, April 25, 2019 9:44:10 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.jpg
image003.jpg
image004.jpg
image005.jpg
image006.jpg

Good morning Lee Anne – We’ll start working on this.
 
I can convert it to PDF.
 
Thanks!
Sandra
 

From: Palmer, Lee Anne 
Sent: Thursday, April 25, 2019 9:18 AM
To: Cepeda, Sandra <Sandra.Cepeda@fda.hhs.gov>
Cc: Hartogensis, Martine <Martine.Hartogensis@fda.hhs.gov>
Subject: Copy of DCM Complaint File - 4-24-2019.xls FOR REDACTION
 
Hi Sandra – the Center has request we prepare a file of DCM complaints for webposting 

.  If not, just let me
know what you prefer. 
 
Thank you so much!
 
Lee Anne
 
 
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
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